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AGENDA ITEM 25

Discuss and take appropriate action on proposals received for installation of fiber optic cabling and equipment.

Proposals were received from the following:
Avnet Enterprise Solutions, Austin, Texas
Capco Communications, Inc., Austin, Texas
Carroll Systems, Austin, Texas
Central Texas Cabling, Inc., Austin, Texas
Complete Communication Services, Inc., d/b/a Co Com Cabling Systems, Pflugerville, Texas
KST Electric, Manor, Texas
O'Neal & Associates, Lubbock, Texas
GTE Southwest Incorporated d/b/a Verizon, Irving, Texas
NetVersant, Pflugerville, Texas
Orius Corp., Austin, Texas
PRO INFO, Austin, Texas
Titan Solutions, Austin, Texas

Moved: Judge Doerfler
Seconded: Commissioner Limmer
Motion: To approve 48-strand fiber optic cabling and to award proposal for installation of fiber optic cabling
and equipment to Verizon.
Vote: 4 - O. Commissioner Boatright was absent from the dais.

< Attachment>

--- -------
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Information Technology Services

June 4, 2002

To: Judge John Doerfler
Commissioner Mike Heiligenstein
Commissioner Greg Boatright
Commissioner David Hays
Commissioner Frankie Limmer

From: Jay Schade, Information Technology Services

Subject: Fiber Optic Cable Connecting County Facilities

SUMMARY

After reviewing the proposals for running fiber between the county facilities in Georgetown, I recommend
the Commissioners Court award the project to Venzon.

The total amount for the project, running 48-strands of fiber rather than 24-strands is $289,214.

Should you decide to run only 24-strands of fiber, the cost is $248,259.

This cost includes hanging the fiber, pole make-ready costs, burying 2.2 miles of fiber and connecting
into each of the buildings (ie. EMS, Justice Center, Courthouse, Juvenile Center, and URS).

Equipment to be placed in each building to connect to the network will cost an additional $35,529.

TOTAL COST OF PROJECT: $324,743 (48-strand) or $283,788 (24-strand).

(See discussion on following page)

405 M.L.K., Suite 308, Box 18, Georgetown, Texas 78626 • phone (512) 943-1456 • fax (512) 943-1488
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Page 2 - Fiber Proposal

DISCUSSION

We received 12 proposals for this project. The initial costs ranged from $89,711.09 to $488,600, with the
average cost being $217,544.98. After reviewing all of the proposals, we narrowed the field to three:
Verizon, Carroll Systems, and Co-Com Cabling. After discussing the proposals with these three vendors,
it became clear that there were two primary issues that separated the three vendors. These issues were the
route along which the fiber would be run, and along how much of that route the fiber would be buried or
hung aerially.

The Route

Carroll Systems and Co-Com Cabling proposed routes that were entirely aerially run on poles, which in
and of itself is not a bad practice. The concern is that, in order to run the entire route along existing poles,
a significant portion of the route must be "back-tracked" (the fiber would be run to a building and also
from that same building along the same poles). This makes that portion ofthe route more vulnerable and
the building involved susceptible to being severed from the rest of the network. Itjeopardizes our disaster
recovery strategy.

Verizon's route is a much more preferred route for a variety of reasons. First of all, when the county
builds future facilities on the Inner Loop, the fiber will be in place to connect them to the ring. Secondly,
the route runs right next to the House of Hatton so the fiber will be accessible when we are ready to
connect it as well. Thirdly, with the wireless technology the county already has in place (from the
courthouse to URS), Verizon's solution forms a true ring which facilitates our disaster recovery strategy.

Buried vs. Aerial

Another advantage Verizon's proposal has over the other proposals is the fact that 2.2 miles of the route
(the portion running along the Inner Loop) is buried. Having cable buried reduces the risk of it being
severed due to an automobile or similar accident, or by a natural disaster, which seems to be the primary
cause of cable damage.

Verizon's cost after negotiation was $221,723. My major concern was the "unknown" costs such as pole-
make-ready (estimated to be approximately 50 poles at between $1500-$2000/pole. Verizon has absorbed
the costs of the pole make-ready, as well as any costs associated with crossing the railroad tracks. To the
best of our research, all costs are now incorporated in Verizon's proposal. To address Judge Doerfler's
desire to have ample bandwidth in case we have non-County enterprises wanting to lease fiber in the
future, we also asked them to give us the cost to double the number of strands from 24 to 48. To double
the number of fibers ($40,955) and absorb the pole make-ready costs ($26,736), the total cost of their
proposal comes to $289,214. With the necessary hardware to connect the fiber to our network ($35,529),
the total project cost comes to $324,743.

To accomplish even minimal connectivity using Tis to these same locations would cost approximately
$26,000/year. As we look into other options such as Voice-Over-IP, as well as leasing a fiber from the
phone company to our fiber rather than having individual Tis from the phone company to each of the
county facilities, we can save another $30,000 to $75,000 per year. This project will easily pay for itself
in five to seven years.

.._._-~~--~
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RECORDERS MEMORANDUM
All or parts of the lext on this page was not
clearly legible for satisfactory recordation.
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Verizon Southwest
919 Congress Ave
Austin Tx 78701

April 22, 2002

Ms. Ginny Atkinson
Assistant Purchasing Director
Williamson County
710 Main Street Suite 303
Georgetown TX, 78626

Dear Ms. Atkinson.

Verizon is pleased to respond to Williamson County's request for proposal for Fiber
Optic Cabling, RFP number 02WC805.

Verizon has taken into consideration that we will be networking the existing four
locations, via fiber, at the Justice Center, Court House, URS Building, EMS and then
onto the brand new Detention Center. Verizon is very familiar with the
telecommunication workings and needs of Williamson County and therefore the most
qualified vendor to implement a solution of this scope. Verizon has over 80 years of
experience in the communications business and has excelled as a respected leader in
the industry. We provide not only experience, stability, and strength, but also an
unrivaled level of customer service that Williamson County should expect from their
vendor of choice.

We welcome the opportunity to continue as your partner and you have my personal
commitment that Verizon will excel in meeting your telecommunication needs. Should
you have questions regarding this proposal, please contact me at (512) 249-6585.
Thank you for allowing Verizon the continued opportunity to serve you.

Sh),cerely,

{/utt-t <-f?fJ~u-r
Colleen R Parker

r" Senior Account Manager
Verizon Enterprise Solutions Group
5122496585
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By:

PROPOSAL
FOR SERVICES TO:

Williamson County

For:

Proposal # 02WC805
Installation of Fiber Optic Cabling and

Equipment

GTE Southwest
D.B.A Verizon Southwest
500 East Carpenter Fwy

Irving TX 75062

April 24, 2002

This proposal shall not be disclosed outside of the organization receiving this proposal and shall not be
duplicated, used, or disclosed in whole or in part for any purpose other than its evaluation provided that if a
contract is awarded to this offer or as a result of or in connection with the submission of this proposal, the
organization receiving this proposal shall have the right to duplicate, use, or disclose it to the extent provided in
'the contract. This restriction does not limit the rights of the organization receiving this proposal to use
information contained in the proposal if it is obtainedfrom another source without restriction.
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY AUDITOR'S OFFICE
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

710 MAIN STREET - SUITE 303
GEORGETOWN, TEXAS 78626

http://www.williamson-county.org/Procurement

WILLIAMSON COUNTY
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

FORMAL REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING AND EQUIPMENT

PROPOSAL NUMBER: 02WC805

PROPOSAL OPENING DATE & TIME: APRIL 24, 2002 - 2:00 PM

r PURCHASING CONTACT
Ginny Atkinson
Assistant Purchasing Director
710 Main Street - Suite 303
Georgetown, TX 78626
(512) 943-1554
aatkinson@williamson-countv.ora

TECHNICAL CONTACT
Bill Bingham
Telecommunications Manager
405 MLK - Suite 308 - Box 17
Georgetown, TX 78626
(512) 943-1463
bbinaham@wilco.ora

FOR DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS AND QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE PROPOSAL PROCESS,
CONTACT GINNY ATKINSON.

FOR TECHNICAL QUESTIONS CONTACT BILL BINGHAM.

Contents

Proposal Instructions/Requirements

Public Notice

Proposal Check List

Official Proposal Form

Proposal Specification(s)/Proposal Sheet(s)

Page 1 to 8

Page 9

Page 10

Page 11

Attached
Pages 1 to 5

http://www.williamson-county.org/Procurement
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS/REQUIREMENTS

Proposals must be received in the Williamson County Auditor's Office prior to 2:00 PM on Wednesday. April
24, 2002. At which time the Proposals will be opened in the Williamson County Auditor's Office on the 3rd
floor of the County Courthouse. Proposals received after that time will not be opened and will be considered
void and unacceptable. As to each item, the Court may either reject all Proposals or award a contract to the
lowest and best Proposal.

r
ALL PROPOSALS MUST BE SUBMITIED ON THE FORMS PROVIDED IN THIS PROPOSAL DOCUMENT.

SEALED PROPOSALS may be hand-delivered to:
Williamson County Auditor's Office
Attn: Ginny Atkinson - Purchasing
Third (3rd) floor - Suite 303
Williamson County Courthouse (on the square)
710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas

OR
SEALED PROPOSALS may be mailed to:

Williamson County Auditor's Office
Attn: Ginny Atkinson - Purchasing
710 Main Street - Suite 303
Georgetown, Texas 78626

ALL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE PROPOSAL FORM MUST BE FURNISHED OR THE PROPOSAL
MAY BE DEEMED NON RESPONSIVE. WHERE THERE IS AN ERROR IN THE EXTENSION OF PRICE,
THE UNIT PRICE SHALL GOVERN.

ONE (1) ORIGINAL AND THREE (3) COPIES OF ALL PROPOSALS MUST BE SUBMITIED (THIS
INCLUDES ALL DOCUMENTATION SUBMITIED WITH THE PROPOSAL). PROPOSALS MUST BE
MARKED ORIGINAL OR COPY.

ALL PROPOSALS MUST BE RETURNED IN A SEALED ENVELOPE, MARKED WITH THE PROPOSAL
NAME, PROPOSAL NUMBER, AND PROPOSAL OPENING DATE & TIME. IF AN OVERNIGHT DELIVERY
SERVICE IS GOING TO DELIVER THE PROPOSAL THE PROPOSAL NAME, PROPOSAL NUMBER, AND
PROPOSAL OPENING DATE & TIME MUST ALSO APPEAR ON THE OUTSIDE OF THE DELIVERY
SERVICE ENVELOPE.

FACSIMILE AND ELECTRONIC MAIL TRANSMITIALS SHALL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

1. It is understood that the Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas, reserves the right to
accept or reject any and/or all Proposals for any or all materials and/or services covered in this
Proposal request, and to waive informalities or defects in the Proposal or to accept such Proposal it
shall deem to be in the best interest of Williamson County.

Awards should be made within sixty (60) days after the Proposal opening date. To obtain results, or if
you have any questions, please contact Ginny Atkinson at (512) 943-1544.

Page 2 of 2



3.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

06/04/2002 Page 205

Funding: Funds for payment have been provided through the Williamson County budget approved by
Commissioners Court for the October 1, 2001/September 30, 2002 fiscal year.

Late Proposal: Proposals received after submission deadline shall be unopened and will be
considered VOID AND UNACCEPTABLE. Williamson County is not responsible for lateness of mail,
delivery carriers, etc.

Altering Proposal: Proposals cannot be altered or amended after submission deadline.

Sales Tax: Williamson County is by statute, exempt from the State Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax.

Contract: This Proposal, when properly accepted by Williamson County, shall constitute a contract
equally binding between the successful proposer and Williamson County.

Changes: No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect the terms,
conditions, plans and/or specifications stated in the Proposal Package and or Proposal
Instructions/Requirements.

Delivery Times and Locations: The commodity and/or service covered by this Proposal shall be as
stated in the Proposal Package.

Payments: Payment shall be made by check from the County upon satisfactory completion and
acceptance of items and submission of the Invoice to the ordering department for work specified by
this Contract Document. As a minimum, invoices shall include:

(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Contractor and similar information in the event
the payment is to be made to a different address

(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number

(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the contract

(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount

(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Auditor's Office, Accounts Payable Department: Donna
McKitrick, 943-1558 or Kathy Blankenship, 943-1557.

Conflict of Interest: No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's
Texas Codes Annotated, Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171.

Ethics: The proposer shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business
arrangement with any employee, official or agent of Williamson County.

Minimum Standards for Responsible Proposers: A prospective proposer must affirmatively
demonstrate proposers responsibility. A prospective proposer must meet the following requirements:

a. have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b. be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c. have a satisfactory record of performance;
d. be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine proposers
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

Page 3 of 3
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References: Williamson County REQUIRES proposer to supply with this Proposal, a list of at least
three (3) references where like services have been supplied by their firm. Include name of firm,
address, telephone number and name of representative.

Proposer shall provide with this Proposal response, all documentation required by this Proposal.
Failure to provide this information may result in rejection of the Proposal.

Termination for Default: Williamson County reserves the right to enforce the performance of this
contract in any manner prescribed by law or deemed to be in the best interest of the County in the
event of breach or default of this contract. Non-Performance of the proposer in terms of specifications
shall be a basis for the termination of the contract by the County. The County shall not pay for
commodities/services which are unsatisfactory. Contractors will be given a reasonable opportunity
before termination to correct the deficiencies. This, however, shall in no way be construed as negating
the basis for termination for non-performance.

Contract Administration: Under this contract, Jay Schade, County Information Technologies Services
Director, shall be the contract administrator with designated responsibility to ensure compliance with
contract requirements, such as but not limited to, acceptance, inspection and delivery. The contract
administrator will serve as liaison between Williamson County Commissioners Court and the
successful proposer.

Purchase Order: Williamson County shall generate a purchase order(s) to the successful proposer as
products and/or services are required. The purchase order number must appear on all itemized
invoices and/or request for payment.

Silence of Specifications: The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detail or to the
apparent omission from it of a detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning
that only the best practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on
the basis of this statement.

PROPOSALS MUST BE: legible and of a quality that can be reproduced.

Proposal forms that are included in the Proposal package shall be used. CHANGES to Proposal
forms made by proposers shall DISQUALIFY THE PROPOSAL. Exceptions to the Proposal forms
and or specifications shall be made on an attachment to the Proposal package. Call Ginny Atkinson
(512) 943-1554 for explanation if exceptions are needed.

The Texas Labor Code, S406.096, requires workers' compensation insurance coverage for all
persons providing services on a building or construction project for a governmental entity. The rule
requires a governmental entity to timely obtain certificates of coverage and retain them for the duration
of the project. The rule also sets out the language to be included in bid specifications and in contracts
awarded by a governmental entity and the information required to be in the posted notice to
employees. The rule is adopted under the Texas Labor Code, S402.061. The information provided
below is a result of this rule. By SUbmittingyour bid to the county, you are acknOWledgingthat this rule
is a part of these bid specifications, and that you will observe and abide by all of the requirements
outlined in the rule. You are further agreeing that should your bid or proposal be accepted by the
Williamson County Commissioners' Court, the necessary certificates of coverage showing workers'
compensation coverage, will be provided to the following name and address, prior to beginning work:

Ginny Atkinson
Williamson County Auditor's Office
Purchasing
710 Main Street - Suite 303
Georgetown, Tx. 78626

Page 4 of 4
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If you have any questions related to this ruling andlor requirement, you are encouraged to contact
either the Williamson County Purchasing Department at (512) 943-1554, or you may call the Texas
Workers' Compensation Commission at (512) 440-3789.

,r"',

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE COVERAGE.

B.
r"',

r
d.

A. Definitions: Certificate of coverage ("certificate")-A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate of
authority to self-insure issued by the commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82,
TWCC-83, or TWCC-84), showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the
person's or entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of the project.

Duration of the project - includes the time from the beginning of the work on the project until the
contractor'slperson's work on the project has been completed and accepted by the governmental
entity.

Persons providing services on the project ("subcontractor" in S406.096) - includes all persons or
entities performing all or part of the services the contractor has undertaken to perform on the project,
regardless of whether that person contracted directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that
person has employees. This includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractors,
leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of
any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project. "Services" include, without
limitation, providing, hauling, or delivering eqUipment or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or
other service related to a project. "Services" does not include activities unrelated to the project, such
as food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.

The contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll
amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas
Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all employees of the contractor providing services on the project,
for the duration of the project.

C. The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being awarded
the contract.

D. If the coverage period shown on the contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the
duration of the project, the contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new
certificate of coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended.

E. The contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the
governmental entity:

(1) a certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the
governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all persons
providing services on the project;

(2) no later than seven (7) days after receipt by the contractor, a new certificate of coverage
showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of
coverage ends during the duration of the project.

F. The contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for
one year thereafter.

The contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery,
within ten (10) days after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially
affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project.

Page 5 of 5
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H. The contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the
Texas Workers' Compensation Commission, informing all persons providing services on the project
that they are required to be covered. and stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of
coverage.

I. The contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a
project, to:

(1) provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts
and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor
Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all of its employees providing services on the project. for the
duration of the project;

(2) provide to the contractor. prior to that person beginning work on the project, a certificate of
coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all employees of the person providing
services on the project. for the duration of the project;

(3) provide the contractor. prior to the end of the coverage period. a new certificate of coverage
showing extension of coverage. if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of
coverage ends during the duration of the project;

(4) obtain from each other person with whom it contracts. and provide to the contractor:

(a) a certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the project; &

(b) a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior to the end of
the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage
ends during the duration of the project;

(5) retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for
one year thereafter;

(6) notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within ten(10)
days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the
provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and

(7) contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to perform as required by
paragraphs (1) - (7), with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person for whom
they are providing services.

J. By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate of coverage, the
contractor is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the contractor who will
provide services on the project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the duration of
the project. that the coverage will be based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll
amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the
case of a self-insured. with the commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation. Providing false or
misleading information may subject the contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil
penalties, or other civil actions.

K. The contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the
contractor which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the contractor does not
remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of breach from the governmental entity.

Page 6 of 6
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23. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS: Chapter 2253.021 of the Texas Government Code
governs the requirements for performance and payment bonds for government entities making public
work contracts. A performance bond is required if the contract is in excess of $50,000 and is to be
made for the full amount of the contract. A payment bond is required if the contract is in excess of
$25,000 and is to be made for the full amount of the contract. The bonds are to be executed within ten
(10) days after receipt of written notification of award of contract prior to beginning work on the project
and must be executed by a corporate surety or sureties in accordance with the Texas Insurance Code.
In the event the bond exceeds $100,000.00, the surety must also (1) hold a certificate of authority from
the United States secretary of the treasury to qualify as a surety on obligations permitted or required
under federal law; or (2) have obtained reinsurance for any liability in excess of $100,000.00 from a
reinsurer that is authorized and admitted as are insurer in this state and is the holder of a certificate of
authority from the United States secretary of the treasury to qualify as a surety or reinsurer on
obligations permitted or required under federal law.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

In determining whether the surety or reinsurer holds a valid certificate of authority the County may rely
on the list of companies holding certificates of authority as published in the Federal Register covering
the date on which the bond is to be executed. If the public works contract is less than $50,000 the
performance bond will not be required as long as the contract provides that payment is not due until
the work is completed and accepted by the county.

The purpose of a performance bond is for the protection of the government entity and is conditioned on
the faithful performance of the work being done in accordance with the plans, specifications and
contract documents. The payment bond is for the protection of persons supplying labor and materials
to the contractor to ensure payment.

Prior to submitting any proposal, proposers are required to read the plans and specifications carefully;
to inform themselves by their independent research, test and investigation of the difficulties to be
encountered and judge for themselves of the accessibility of the work and all attending circumstances
affecting the cost of doing the work and the time required for its completion and obtain all information
reqUired to make an intelligent proposal.

Should the proposer find discrepancies in, or omissions from the plans, specifications, or other
documents, or should helshe be in doubt as to their meaning, he/she should notify at once Bill
Bingham, County Telecommunications Manager, and obtain clarification or addendum prior to
submitting any proposal.

In case of ambiguity or lack of clarity in the statement of prices in the proposals, the county reserves
the right to consider the most favorable analysis thereof, or to reject the proposal. Unreasonable (or
unbalanced) prices submitted in a proposal may result in rejection of such proposal or other proposals.

Award of the contract, if awarded, will be made within sixty (60) days after opening of the proposals
and no bidder may withdraw his proposal within said sixty (60) day period of time unless a prior award
is made.

Failure to execute the contract within ten (10) days of written notification of award or failure to furnish
the performance bond, or letter of credit if applicable, and payment bond as required by item 23 above,
shall be just cause for the annulment of the award

The Contractor shall not commence work under this contract until he has furnished certification of all
insurance required and such has been approved by Williamson County, nor shall the contractor allow
any subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until proof of all similar insurance that is
reqUired of the subcontractor has been furnished and approved.

Page 7 of 7
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Any quantities given in any portion of the contract documents, including the plans, are estimates only,
and the actual amount of work required may differ somewhat from the estimates. The basis for the
payment shall be the actual amount of work done and/or material furnished.

Proposals shall be submitted on a separated contract basis. No Texas sales tax shall be included in
the prices proposed for materials consumed or incorporated into the finished product under this
contract. This contract is issued by an organization which is qualified for exemption pursuant to the
provisions of Section 151.309(5) of the Texas Tax Code. Williamson County will issue an exemption
certificate to the Contractor. The Contractor must then issue a resale certificate to the material
supplier for materials purchased. The Contractor must have a valid sales tax permit in order to issue a
resale certificate.

In obtaining consumable materials, the Contractor will issue a resale certificate in lieu of payment of
sales tax, and the following conditions shall be observed;

1) The contract will transfer title of consumable, but not incorporate, materials to Williamson
County at the time and point of receipt by the Contractor;

2) The Contractor will be paid for these consumable materials by the County as soon as
practicable. Payment will not be made directly but considered subsidiary to the pertinent
proposed item. The Contractor's monthly estimate will state that the estimate includes
consumables that were received during the month covered by the estimate; and

3) The designated representative of Williamson County must be notified as soon as possible of
the receipt of these materials so that an inspection can be made by the representative. Where
practical, the materials will be labeled as the property of the Williamson County.

THE TEXAS HAZARD COMMUNICATION ACT, Chapter 502 of the Health and Safety Code, Sec.
502.006, states that a chemical manufacturer or distributor shall provide appropriate Material Safety
Data Sheets (MSDS) to employers who acqUire hazardous chemicals in this state with each initial
shipment and with the first shipment after a MSDS is updated. The MSDS must conform to the most
current requirements of the OSHA standard in 29 CFR 1910.1200. By submitting your bid to the
County you are acknowledging that this regulation is a part of this bid and that you will provide
appropriate MSDS with each initial shipment and with the first shipment after a MSDS is updated.

THE WILLIAMSON COUNTY HAZARD COMMUNICATION PROGRAM POLICY Under Revised
Texas Hazard Communication Act (THCA) of 1993 states that it is the responsibility of all
contractor/sub-contractors who bring hazardous chemicals onto county property to provide appropriate
MSDS to the county at the work site. When exposure to a hazardous chemical is expected each
contractor/sub-contractor shall be responsible for the appropriate training of their employees. For a
copy of the Williamson County Hazard Communication Program Policy contact the Williamson County
Unified Road & Bridge System SafetylTraining Coordinator at 512/930-3330. By submitting your bid to
the County you are acknowledging that this policy is a part of this bid and that you will provide
appropriate MSDS to the county work site and provide for appropriate training as applicable.

Page 8 of 8
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PUBLIC NOTICE
WILLIAMSON COUNTY

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

The Williamson County Commissioners Court invites the submission of sealed Proposals for:

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING AND EQUIPMENT

Sealed Proposals will be pUblicly opened in the County Auditor's Office, 3rd Floor, Williamson
County Courthouse, Georgetown, Texas on Wednesday, April 24, 2002 at 2:00 PM.

Detailed specifications may be obtained by calling Ginny Atkinson at (512) 943-1554or by
Visiting the Williamson County Procurement web site.

http://www.williamson-countv.orqlProcurement

Performance and Payment Bonds will be required as stated in the proposal documents.

REQUIRED WORKERS' COMPENSATIONCOVERAGE: "The law requires that each person
working on this site or providing services related to this construction project must be covered

r~y workers' compensation insurance. This includes persons providing hauling, or delivering
, ~quipment or materials, or providing labor or transportation or other service related to the

project, regardless of the identity of their employer or status as an employee."

"Call the Texas Workers' Compensation Commission at (512) 440-3789to receive information
on the legal requirement for coverage, to verify whether your employer has provided the
required coverage, or to report an employer's failure to provide coverage."

The Williamson County Commissioners Court reserves the right to accept the lowest and best
proposal as deemed by the Court, or reject any and/or all proposals.

Issued by order of the Williamson County Commissioners Court on April 2, 2002.
John C. Doerfler, County Judge.

Page 9 of 9
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PROPOSALCHECK LIST

Please check the following prior to sealing and submitting your proposal.

1. Official Williamson County Proposal Form Completed, signed, and
enclosed?

YES X NO _

2. All proposal specification sheets completed (including company name at
bottom of each sheet) and attached?

XYES NO _

Have you included and marked (original or copy) six (6) complete proposal
sets as required?

YES _~_ NO _

4. Have you written the name of your business on the front of the sealed
envelope?

YES X NO _

5. Have you written the Proposal name, Proposal number, and Proposal
opening date & time on the front of the sealed envelope?

YES X NO _

6. Are you using an overnight delivery service to deliver your proposal? If you
r are have you written the Proposal name, Proposal number, and Proposal

opening date & time on the outside of the delivery service envelope?

YES NO~
Page 10 of 10
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY PROPOSAL FORM

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING AND EQUIPMENT

PROPOSAL NUMBER: 02WC805

PROPOSAL OPENING DATE & TIME: APRIL 24, 2002·2:00 PM

The undersigned, by his/her signature, represents that he/she is authorized to bind the
proposer to fully comply with the terms and conditions of the attached Request for Proposal,
and Specifications for the amount(s) shown on the accompanying Proposal sheet(s). By
signing below, you have read the entire document and agreed to the terms therein.

NAME OF PROPOSER: GTE Southwest Incorporated d/b/a Verizon

Mailing Address: 500 E. John Carpenter Freeway

City: Irving State: Texas Zip: 75062

Email Address: _~",,",-,-="'-"'=':;=~=='-'-='-'-- _pamela.hughes@verizon.com

Telephone: ( 972) _--'-'""'--"'-'-='-"-- Fax: (972 ) _--'-'-'-""~:L- __719-3145 717-0284

Date of Proposal: April 24, 2002

Name and Title of Signer: -----'-"""'--'-'-'''''''''-'="'----~=':'_='''.~':7'~'---------Vice President - Branch Operations
(Please Print or Type)

PLEASE COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING:

[X] "all or none" basis. (Will accept award of "all" items only. If left blank, low item will apply.)
[ ] low item basis. (Will accept award on "any or all" items.)
List Additional Limitations if applicable: _

DO NOT SIGN OR SUBMIT THIS FORM
WITHOUT READING ENTIRE DOCUMENT

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED WITH BID

Page 11 of 11
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY

PROPOSAL SPECIFICATIONS/PROPOSAL SHEETS

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING & EQUIPMENT

PROPOSAL NUMBER: 02WC805

PROPOSAL OPENING DATE & TIME: APRIL 24, 2002 - 2:00 PM

1. BACKGROUND: The Williamson County Information Technologies Services Office,
hereinafter referred to as "ITS", is seeking proposals from qualified vendors and suppliers
for the installation of a Fiber Optic Cable to support new Voice and LAN communications
services for Williamson County. The installation shall include, but is not limited to the
installation of fiber optic cable, fiber patch panels, and free standing equipment racks.

2. SCOPE OF WORK: The vendor will be responsible for providing all labor and materials for
the completion of the following -

2.1. All necessary design and engineering.

2.2. Installation, terminating and testing of 24-strand, single-mode fiber cable from the
Justice Center in Georgetown, Texas to the County Court House, to the New
Juvenile Detention Center, and then to the Unified Road & Bridge System (URS)
Building.

2.3. Installation, terminating and testing of 6-strand, single-mode fiber cable from the
Justice Center in Georgetown, Texas to the Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
Building.

2.4. Installation of 19-inch equipment racks and 12-inch ladder rack in Main Distribution
Frame (MDF) room and Intermediate Distribution Frame (IDF) rooms.

3. DESIGN REVIEW:

3.1 Fiber cable runs shall be between the following locations in Georgetown, Texas:

3.1.1 County Justice Center at 405 MLK Computer Room on the 3rd floor, Suite
308, and the County Court House at 710 Main Street Telephone Room in the
basement.

3.1.2 County Court House at 710 Main Street Telephone Room in the basement
and the New Juvenile Detention Center at 1821 SE Inner Loop Road, Room
193.

3.1.3 New Juvenile Detention Center at 1821 SE Inner Loop Road, Room 193, and
the URS Building Computer Room at 3151 SE Inner Loop Road.

3.1.4 County Justice Center at 405 MLK Computer Room on the 3rd floor, Suite
308, to the County EMS Building Computer Room at 307 MLK.

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING
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4.
r--.

DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS:

4.1. Test Results - The vendor shall provide all test results in hard copy (print out) as
well as electronic format (Excel, Access, etc.). The test results shall include at a
minimum the following: Building, Customer, Operator, Date and Time of test, Link
Identification and test results.

4.2. Other Documentation

4.2.1. Materials Listing - Upon completion of system installation, vendor will provide
Bill Bingham, County Telecommunications Manager with an itemized
material listing (by description, brand, stock/part number and vendor source)
of all cables, conduit, connectors, patch panels and equipment racks
installed.

4.2.2. Vendor Qualifications - Vendor shall be required to submit all certifications,
licenses, references, and other documentation in support of Section 9.

5. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS:

5.1 Other Standards - The cabling system and labor shall be in compliance with all
applicable ordinances, regulations or codes. See Section 8.

6. WARRANTY REQUIREMENTS:

6.1 Vendor Warranty

6.1.1. Workmanship - The County expects the successful vendor to implement
standard quality control procedures as defined in this Request for Proposal
(RFP) and as otherwise defined herein for installation of this fiber system.
We further reqUire the vendor to produce written criteria for guality control
guidelines to be employed when such guidelines do not comply with this
agreement. The successful vendor will be held responsible for the
professional installation of all materials, including the neat and orderly
routing.

6.1.2. Guarantee - The vendor shall provide the County with a lifetime guarantee on
their workmanship.

6.1.3. Warranty Repairs - During the warranty period, twenty-five (25) years after
date of acceptance, the successful vendor will repair or replace at no cost to
Williamson County, all defective system components andlor correct
deficiencies in workmanship within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving
notification of such deficiency from the County.

7. OTHER REQUIREMENTS:

7.1 Materials Storage - Due to limited space availability the vendor will be responsible for
providing adequate storage facilities for cabling tools, materials and test equipment.

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING
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7.2 Ceiling Grid, Ceiling Tile & Building Condition -The successful vendor shall be
.r'" responsible for careful handling of ceiling tiles and existing cabling during the

installation process. The successful vendor shall also be responsible for repairing or
replacing any building component that the vendor, in the sole opinion of the County,
has damaged. All such repairs or replacements shall return damaged components to
"like new condition" without further cost to Williamson County. Any and all damage
caused by the successful vendor (or designated subcontractor/representative) must be
promptly repaired by the vendor.

7.3 Trash Removal - The successful vendor must provide his/her own clean up and trash
removal services. The successful vendor will not be allowed to utilize the County's
trash dumpster for clean up and trash removal services.

7.4 Variations in Installation and Design - The successful vendor shall be required to notify
and obtain written approval from the County before deviating from any required
installation design, materials, installation schedule, or installation implementation.

7.5 Security - Vendor employees who are assigned to work on-site at any Williamson
County Facility will be required to undergo background checks and be assigned
temporary Visitor badges prior to being granted access to any Williamson County
Facility.

8. APPLICABLE STANDARDS:

8.1 All materials and workmanship shall be in accordance with the current applicable
federal, state, and local regulations, ordinances, building codes and standards.
These standards include, but are not limited to the following:

8.1.1 Electronic Industries AssociationlTelecommunications
Association (EIAlTIA) -568-A: Commercial
Telecommunications Standard

Industry
Building

8.1.2 EIAlTIA-569: Commercial Building
Telecommunications Pathways and Spaces

8.1.3 EIAlTIA-606: Administration Standard for the Telecommunications
Infrastructure for Commercial Buildings

Standard for

8.1.4 EIAlTIA-607: Commercial Building Grounding and Bonding
Requirements for Telecommunications.

8.1.5 12.6 National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)

8.1.6 American National Standards Institute (ANSI) /NFPA 70 Article 800-
52 shall be applied for separation requirements from typical branch
circuits (120/240V, 20A)

8.1.7 NFPA - National Electric Code (NEC)

8.1.8 Underwriters Laboratory (UL)

8.1.9 National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA)

8.1.10 Bell Communications Research (Bellcore)

8.1.11 Federal Communications Commission (FCC), Title 47, Code of
Federal RegUlations,Part 68

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING
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VENDOR QUALIFICATIONS:

9.1 In order to qualify for installation of the communications system, the Vendor must
possess and provide documentation of the following:

9.1.1. The vendor must have been in business and in the business of installing
telecommunications systems, continuously, under the same company name,
for a period of at least three (3) years, prior to the date of this proposal.
Vendor must also provide a list of key installation personnel, their hire dates,
and a resume of their experience. Key installation personnel shall include at
least one (1) Foreman and one (1) Journeyman Level installer or technician.
By submitting the names of these personnel, the Vendor is committing them
to the execution of the project outlined in this specification.

9.1.2. The vendor must have successfully performed at least five (5) projects of
similar scope that have been functional for at least one (1) year prior to the
proposal opening date. Proof of performance shall be in the form of
reference sheets which shall include a brief description of the project, starting
and ending dates, the beginning and ending contract price, the project
foreman or superintendent's name, and the name, address, and telephone
number of a customer project contact.

9.1.3. The vendor must have a Registered Communications Distribution Design
(RCDD) member on staff or on contract to provide approval on the final
design, installation and documentation of this communications system. The
vendor must submit certification of RCDD.

9.1.4. The vendor must have well documented in-house quality, safety and training
programs.

9.1.5. The vendor must have uniformed employees with visible 10 badges.

9.1.6. The vendor must be bonded.

10. INSTALLATION SCHEDULE:

10.1 Installation Schedule - Cabling must begin within seven (7) working days after
performance and payment bonds have been accepted by the County and a Notice to
Proceed has been issued. Prospective vendors, who are able to begin work in a shorter
period of time, should so indicate accordingly. The vendor will have thirty (30) working
days prior to the time cabling is required to begin to complete all ready work required for
communications support services. Prospective vendors able to complete this project in
a shorter period of time should so indicate and provide projected completion date.

10.2 Timeline Restrictions - The vendor must provide a timeline with his/her proposal.
The contract award may be based in part upon the successful cable vendor's ability to
deliver the cabling system in a timely manner, thirty (30) working days from when the
order is placed.

10.3 Installation Time Frame - The successful vendor shall provide an installation
schedule including proposed timelines for the completion of work outlined in Section 2
with an estimated "time-to-completion" (including finish out) stated in number of calendar
days.

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING
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10.4 County Operations Schedule - Except as otherwise provided herein, all work shall
-. be accomplished during the County business hours: Monday - Friday 7:45 AM through

4:45 PM, exclusive of holidays. By mutual agreement, successful vendor may complete
specifically identified tasks outside of said hours with the written approval of Bill
Bingham, County Telecommunications Manager.

10.5 liquidated Damages - A fee of one hundred dollars ($100.00) will be charged for
each day beyond the specified number of days allowed for the completion of this project.
A total of five (5) rain days will be allowed.

11. ACCEPTANCE CRITERIA: County Acceptance of the cable system shall be based on the
results of the following:

11.1 Test Results - All cables shall be thoroughly tested.

11.2 Receipt of all documentation described in Section 4 above.

11.3 Receipt of all inspections, warranties, guarantees, registrations andlor assurances as
required by this specification, applicable ordinances, regulations or codes or
manufacturer, see Section 6.

11.4 A walk through shall be conducted between vendor and County personnel for
inspection of all areas of installation. A punch list will be formulated by Bill Bingham,
County Telecommunications Manager referencing all deficiencies. The vendor will be
required to correct all deficiencies within five (5) working days in order to obtainr, acceptance.

11.5 Workmanship - The successful vendor must implement standard quality control
procedures as defined in paragraph 9 of this performance specification and as
otherwise defined herein for installation of this premise distribution system. We further
require the vendor to produce written criteria for quality control guidelines to be
employed when such guidelines do not comply with this agreement. The successful
vendor will be held responsible for the professional installation of all materials,
including the neat and orderly routing, machine-generated labeling.

12. PAYMENT

12.1 Countv Payment - Vendor may submit an invoice for payment to Bill Bingham, County
Telecommunications Manager when all areas of the Acceptance Requirements
(Section 11.0) have been fully met in accordance with this document.

12.2 Contract Modifications - Vendor must submit in writing to the County any proposed
modifications with applicable pricing before a formal change in contract scope; terms
or conditions will be authorized. The County will not reimburse the vendor for any
additional work performed or materials supplied unless such additions have been
specifically and formally authorized in writing by the County.

13. EVALUATION CRITERIA

Vendor Qualifications
Vendor Experience
Total Cost
Project Timeline

25%
25%
25%
25%

INSTALLATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABELING
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Pricing For
Williamson County

Proposal # 02WC805

Material Termination Hardware

Description Manufacturer Part # Quantity

19" Wall Mnt Rack CPI 11632-718 1 ea
19" Free-Standing Rack CPI 46353-703 4ea
CCH Fiber Cabinet Corning CCH-02U 3 ea
12 fiber Pre-Loaded Pnls SC Corning CCH-CPI2-59 12 ea
CCH Fiber Cabinet Corning CCH-olU 2 ea
6-fiber Preloaded Pnls SC Corning CCH-CP06-38 2 ea
Wall Mnt. Splice Cabinet Corning WSC-oOl 1 ea
Splice Trays Corning M67-048 3ea

r Splice Enclosure (underground) Corning SCF-6C22-01-72 1 ea
Cable Pathway Material 60ea
24 Fiber Cable Corning 36,000 ft.
6 Fiber All-Dielectric Cable Corning 1,000 ft.

Material: $ 70,032.00
Labor: $144,587.00
Engineering: $ 34,626.00
Bonds: $ 1,938.00

TOTAL $251,183.00
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Attachment A
Exceptions



06/0412002 Page 221

Contractual Exceptions
After review of Bid # 02WC805, Verizon would like to note that there were no Terms
and Conditions included with the RFP. Therefore, a copy of our contract is included as an
exhibit under Tab 8 and this will form the basis for negotiations.

Verizon would also like to take exception to the following items within this bid.

Page 7, Item 28: Verizon requests to revise this clause to read as follows; "Failure to
execute the contract within ten (10) days, or such other timeframe as mutually agreed to,
of written notification .... "

Page 8, Item 31.2: Verizon requests clarification of the implication of "Progress
Payments"

Page 12, Item 6.1.2: Verizon must take exception to this clause. Please Refer to
Engineering Notes and Conditions

Page 12, Item 6.1.3: Verizon must take exception to this clause. Please refer to
Engineering Notes and Conditions

Page 12, Item 7.2: Verizon requests to revise this sentence to read as follows;
".... replacing any building component that the vendor and the County agree was
damaged by the vendor."

Page 15, Item 10.5: Due to the Exceptions to the outlined scope of work, we must take
exception to this clause.
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Exceptions to Outlined Scope of Work
Verizon has surveyed all of the sites identified in the Williamson County Proposal that
require fiber optic cabling. Verizon understands the cabling requirements and has chosen
both aerial and buried construction for the implementation. However, there are, at this
time, certain costs which Verizon was unable to determine and which will be an
additional cost factor to Williamson County. These costs are described in the following
paragraphs.

Verizon has contacted the City of Georgetown Municipal Power to request pole contacts
on behalf of Williamson County. Mark Miller and Michael Mayben, with the City of
Georgetown, talked with Verizon on the possibility of Williamson County contacting the
City poles and using the City right-of-ways. Mark and Mike looked at our proposed
routes and made some suggestions on route changes. They also told us that the annual
pole contact fee would be approximately $7.50 per pole, and there will be approximately
100 poles that the fiber will attach. Also, the City will charge Williamson County a
"make ready" charge of$I,500.00 to $2,000.00 per pole on approximately 50 poles. This
make ready charge has not been included in Verizon's pricing. The make ready costs will
be the responsibility of Williamson County. The City requested Verizon to submit a set
of plans when we are ready to implement. The City at that time will approve or refuse the
County's pole attachments. The County will be responsible for these annual fees.
Verizon will prepare all permit submittals for the pole contacts. The County will be
responsible for any cost associated with these permit requests.

As mentioned, most of the cabling inside of Georgetown will be aerial except where there
will be underground "dips" into the building entrance conduit. Verizon is proposing
approximately 2.2 miles of direct buried fiber cable on the Inner Loop Drive from F.M.
1460 to both the new Juvenile Detention Center and the URS Building. This buried
construction, after conferring with the URS personnel, is on the County's property and
would be their right of way.

Verizon has uncovered other concerns and possible additional costs where the cable will
cross the Georgetown Railroad. Crossing the Railroad will require a permit, which
Verizon will prepare, but we have not included the associated cost of this permit in the
cable pricing. Williamson County will be responsible for the costs of the Railroad
permits.

The Williamson County Courthouse will be difficult to access. The City of Georgetown
has completed a beautification project of the Square. Verizon contacted Mark Miller and
Michael Mayben with the City of Georgetown. They suggested, and told us that the City
of Georgetown would approve open cutting the asphalt along 7th Street to Austin Ave
where we could use the first two parking spots for a bore pit. The bore would be made
from the Southwest corner of 7th Street, across Austin Ave, to the Northwest corner of the
Courthouse Square. The cable would be buried from the end of the bore into the
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Courthouse. The costs for open cutting and restoring has been included in Verizon's
pricing.

The proposed pricing assumes the City of Georgetown, and the State of Texas provide
access to all necessary right of ways and pole lines.
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Engineering Notes and Conditions for Williamson County

All permit applications and fees are the responsibility of others.

The Installation Schedule (Outside Plant Portion) is controlled by the permitting agencies
Once the permits are approved we can order cable and start all prep work.

The construction days talked about in the Installation Schedule will not start until the
cable has been pre-tested by Verizon and accepted by the customer.

Our prices are based on using existing conduit at all building entrances, place
approximately 20,000 feet of aerial cable on existing poles, 9500 feet of buried cable, 800
feet of cut and restore asphalt.

Term of Warranty:
ISP Labor: 10 years
ISP Material: 5 years

OSP Labor and Material: Standard 1 year

1. Warranty

1.1. If within one (l) year from the date of installation or the date of substantial
completion, whichever earlier, the cable fails due directly to a defect in workmanship,
Verizon will, at its sole discretion, repair or replace the failed cable free of charge.

1.2. This warranty does not apply to:
• damage caused by accident, abuse, mishandling, or vandalism;
• cables that have been subject to repair by third parties;
• damage due to failure of electrical power, sprinkler of humidity control; and
• damage due to fire, water damage or Acts of God.

Under no circumstances shall Verizon be liable to purchaser or
any other person for any indirect, special or consequential damages, including loss of use
or loss of profits, whether arising out of breach of warranty, breach of contract or
otherwise, nor shall it be liable for damages exceeding the amount charged by Verizon
for the original cable installation.

1.3 Under no circumstances shall Verizon be liable to purchaser or
any other person for any indirect or direct damages to installed components, including
loss of use or loss of profits, whether arising out of breach of warranty, breach of contract
or otherwise, nor shall it be liable for damages exceeding the amount charged by Verizon
for the component.
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1.4 Statements made relating to the cable or its installation, made prior to execution
of this agreement, are not warranties. It is understood that such statements were not
intended to, and did not, form a part of the agreement; they were merely made in the
course of negotiations of the parties.

1.5 The warranty period for each site begins upon approval of the deliverable
documentation.
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REFERENCES 8: QUAL/FICA TlONS

Provided are three project references of substantial scope and size.
PREMISE! CAMPUS WIRING SYSTEM REFERENCES:

Reference Name
Address

Phone Number
Contact Names

Installation Date
Description of
Work

Henderson County Courthouse
100 East Tyler
Athens, Tx. 75751
903-675-6172
Brad Burnett
Network Administrator
1998-1999
Re-cabling of the Juvenile Center, Courthouse and re-
model of the New Administration Building. Also installed
fiber connectivity between the Courthouse and Admin Bldg.

CAMPUS WIRING SYSTEM REFERENCES:

Reference Name
Address
Phone Number
Contact Names
Installation Date
Description of
Work

Reliant Energy
Houston, TX.
713-207-5646
Kevin Seat
2000 -2001
Project consisted of the installation of 81 miles of optical
fiber cabling to 77 Aldine ISD sites.

CAMPUS WIRING SYSTEM REFERENCES:

Reference Name
Address
Phone Number
Contact Names
Installation Date
Description of
Work

Henkels and McCoy, Inc.
Confidential and Proprietary

Reliant Energy
Houston, TX.
713-207-5646
Kevin Seat
2001
Project consisted of the installation of 13 miles of optical
fiber cabling to 17 Deer Park ISD sites.
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Theodore A. Hussey
1903 SpringY-alley Dr.
Denton, Texas 76208

(940) 484-1647

EDUCATION:

Basic Electric and Advanced Electrical Principles at Central Florida Community College.
Certificate of Authorization Lucent Systimax Structured Connectivity Solutions
BICSI Registered Installation Technician

EMPLOYMENT:

12100 - Present Henkels & McCoy, Inc. Title: Area Manager of North Texas Region. Responsibilities:
Insured margins are met from both the field and overhead. Also handle all hiring of
personnel with-in our area.

6/95 - 12100 Henkels & McCoy, Inc. Title: Estimator - Duties included, site surveys, estimating
projects, insuring projects came in under-budget while still maintaining a high quality
service.

9/91 - 6/95 Henkels & McCoy, Inc. Title: Lead Technician - Duties included site surveys. tracking
job performance, insuring projects where brought in on time and under budget.
Projects included: Bank of Mid-America - Oklahoma City, Okla. Installed 24 fiber cable
to numerous IDFs through-out. Installed LAN cabling voice and data to approx. 2500
locations.
Other projects included National roll-out for Chilies, Bennigans and Steak & Ale
Restaurants. Installation of redundant fiber ring for Peterbilt Truck Manufacturer and Six
Flags Over Texas. Installed Type I cabling for Sears national cabling project.

10/82 - 9/91 Outside Plant Engineering and Construction: Title: Forman - Duties included the
over-seeing of 10 man crew in the installation of fiber optic cables and systems for the
U.S. Government in locations the U.S. and countries abroad.

MILITARY SERVICE
6/76 - 9/82 UNITED STATES AIRFORCE
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Rt.1
Box206B-e
Whitney, Texas 76692

Phone 254-694-35B1

Keith Mowery

Summary Project Manager and Sr. Technician capable of managing large projects
and experienced in all aspects of voice and data cable installations as
well as fiber optic installations and termination. Current responsibilities
include conducting surveys of potential customer job locations, analyze
cable systems, procure correct cable and cabling components for
installation. Follow up with change orders and invoices to be sent to
Accounts Receivable, as well as provide technical advise to field
installation crews.

Work experience
1988· Present Henkels and McCoy, Inc. Lewisville, Texas

Project Manager and Sr. Technician
Managed numerous local and national accounts. Pertorm sije surverys,
analyze existing cable systems. Perform installations of various networks and
cabling. Assist in installation of hubs, routers, and various other electronic
components.

1986-1987

UtIlity Unemen
Texas Utilijies Electric Waxahachie, Texas

Education 1982 -1984 Hill College Hillsboro, Texas

Major - Physical Education

1978 - 1982 Iowa Park H.S.

General Studies

Iowa Park, Texas

certifications Structured Cabling Systems for Voice and Data (CATS) -Cabling
Business Institute - 12/99

Seicor M77 Fusion Splicing Applications - Seicor - 6/98

Fluke Media Certification Training Course Certified Test Technician-
Fluke - 5/98

3M Certification MS2 Installation Technician - 3M - 6/97

BICSI Cerfitied - BICSI - Expires 12/02

Thomas & Betts Registered Installer - Thomas & Betts - 6/95

Krone Products Installer - Krone - 7/95
Fiber Optic Installation and Splicing for LAN, Building and Campus
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r- Applications - Seicor - 6/95

Ortronics CATS Networking Partner - Ortronics Open System
Architecture - 8/94

Avaya Certified - 2002

Siemens Certified - 2002

Other Skills
Trained CPR Emergency Provider

Licensed Fork Lift Operator

OSHA Respirator Certified

Certnied Scissor and Boom Operator

Hiiji Certnied

Passport for Overseas Work

Personal Info
I am a devoted family man, non-smoker, and drug free. I have a very strong
work ethic. I like to work! I am willing to leam new skills and I am not afraid to
work hard to achieve company goals as we all personal goals.
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940..aB3·3149
harrison@wccsnet
9725391746 ext 258

Mike Harrison

Objective Concept to Completion Project Management:

OSP/ISP Network/lnfrastructure Design, EstimationlProposal, Project Mngl.

Experience 1990-2001 Henkels and McCoy, Inc. Lewisville, TX

senior Tech, Estimator, Project Manager
• No non-proftt jobs attributed to my management or crew leadership in 10

yrs.
• Increased recent sales per estimated project proposals submitted.
• Suggested new products and methods that could increase eamings and

productivtty.
• Led projects in excess of $.25 mil.

1989-1990 Burnup & Sims

OSP Projects Supervisor
• Pole Line Telco and Distribution Power Line Restoration after Hurricane

Hugo on St. Thomas, USVI.
• Supervised 25 power and telephone Linemen.
• Implemented orientation course for new recrutts. Increased productivtty.
• Our inttial objective was telephone restoration, but we had several power

lineman that were only slightly productive at phone line installations. I
realized a need for power line repair ahead of our phone crews for safety
reasons. We had the resources for this repair, so I negotiated a plan wtth
the Virgin Islands Power Co. to clear and repair trouble areas, at a rate
higher than the phone crew rates. This also eased tension between
Vitelco, and WAPA.. This decreased construction downtime by 50% and
increased sales by $70,000.00 over three months.

Tampa, FL

1978-1989 Self Employed

Telecommunications and Electrical Contractor
• Aerial and underground OSP construction of Telephone, CATV, and

power lines in a 500 mile radius of Fl. Worth.
• Contracts with REA, Contel, SWBT, Untted Telco, Guadalupe Valley

Telco, Southwest Texas Telco, Fort Bend Telco, Teleprompter Cable,
Wamer Communications, People's Telco, Salina-Spavinaw Telco, South
Westem Engineering, GenTel, Exxon, Gull, and Sohio Pipeline.

• Specialized in cross country, storm restoration, and difficull sttuations.

1971-1978

OSP Supervisor
CCCand MWCC Houston and Lufkin, TX
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• CATV and Telephone

Education 1968-1970 Henderson Co. Jr. College
• A.A., PrerequisITeto Mech.Eng. and Computer SCience.
• Graduated Dean's List.
• Football SCholarship

Athens, TX

Interests OutdoorslWilderness Activities, Gourmet food, Home improvements,
Technologies and SCience.
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VERIZON WI~f1RCUSTOMERS

·1l'h1"'i1!t~"D~l·rryl)i~ W!';~liri~:b~§iihoidSand nearly 30 millionwireless
customer~,~eriZoni~'}o~thela.rgest and most valuable consumer
franChi§e~iifhtbeworld.,:}.ISO serve nearly 4 million business customers.
Delivering~hel1~~t gen~r~!;<?rof innovation an~~~chnology to our millions
of customersrej7;lresen~~<"remendous growth opportunity.

;~iness model for delivering):"

deploy'world-class wireless and

products and services, bundle r;

\,
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ON1fa1~t1R SHAREOWNERS

flrlal:1:ctalstrength and market leadership offer investors a unique combination

hd'growt With our established track record of operating excellEmceand

9 cashflows. hasthe ability to both rewardshareownerswith a competitive

eland conti "vesting. for growth. We have demonstrated our ability to

. fln~"cl~t ~.~rgetsyear afte,r...~~- proof-positive of our commitment to increasing

owner value and trans10~9qUr company for long-term success.

EARNiNGS PER SHARE· DlVIOENDS PEA SHARE 20-01 REVENUES CAPITAL SPENDING

Telecom 54%
Telscom Data 10%
Wireless 26%
Information Services 6%
Intemational4%

• Diluted basis, before special items

Total $67.2 Billlon
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VERIZON ffil~~COMMUNITIES WE SERVE

Verizon has a strong legacy of community support. Our investments in telecommunications networks make us a critical

link in creating a vibrant economic infrastructure in every market we serve. Through the Venzoo Foundation, we also make a difference

on issues that matter most to our customers: creating an educated and literate workforce, closing the digital divide and promoting

employee volunteerism by matching donations in both time and dollars.

Economic Development
With nearly 250,000 employees, Verizon
is one of the ten largest private employers
in the nation.
As part of our commitment to bridging the
digital divide, Verizon has wired schools
and libraries throughout our territory with high-
speed connections to the Internet.
In 2002, Verlzon will inveSt more than $15
billion in our wireline and wireless networks.

Philanthropy
Through a special program that matched
employee contributions three-to-one, Verizon
raised $14 million in donations to the
September 11th Fund.
Verizon's unique matching gift program-
Verizon Volunteers, or ~V-Squared" ~allows
employees to earn matching funds for their
contributions to disaster relief, colleges and
non-profit organizations.
Verizon Wireless's HopeLineSM program puts
wireless services to work to combat domestic
violence, donating wireless phones, airtime
and monetary contributions to domestic
violence shelters and prevention programs
across the country.

,
'"\"

,

~,..

2

Literacy
As part of our commitment to be America's
literacy champion, we launched the
Verizon Literacy Network, the first national
web-based network linking national and local
literacy providers.
During the holidays, employees supported our
literacy effOr1Sthrough a program called
"Season's Readings" by contributing more than
68,000 books and volunteering more than
15,000 hours of time to read books to young
people in the communities we serve.
In 2001, Verizon contributed nearly $20 million
to local and national literacy organizations.
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VERIZON ~~I~tVERIZON PROMISE
When disaster struck America on September 11th, the Verizon Promise didn't tell us exactly what to do at every minute and in

every situation, but it gave us the goals and it gave us the inspiration. Those on-the-spot decisions have to be made by instinct, and

that's where the strength of your values as an organization really gets tested. I am humbled by the way our values-our absolute

commitment to serving customers and the community-guided us in everything we did.

"Verizon has really done a tremendous job to
get service back. I can't express to you how
appreciative we are of what they're doing,
including taking some real risks in order to make
sure that we have at least emergency service,
and that we keep our telephone service, ~
Rudolph Giuliani, Former Mayor, New York City

.-...

"Inside our firm, we refer to Verizon as our
business partner, We saw the true meaning
of partnership over the last ten days in your
employees' every word and deed,"
Bill Harrison, Chairman, J.P. MorganChase

"To the Verizon employees who sifted through the rubble,
climbed through windows, hung wires through hallways and streets
and worked till your fingers bled ... Thank you,~
Verlzon Employee Email

Chuck Lee, Chairman and Co~CEO, Verizon

"It was a Herculean job on the part of the men and
women of Verizon. ) can't say enough about the wonderful
Verizon people on the line who worked continuously, 24/7,
from September 12th until the New York Stock Exchange
re-opened September 17th. ~
Dick Grasso, Chairman & CEO, NYSE

"I was a soldier and have seen troops in the field. I can
recognize commitment to getting a tough job done.
I can sense a genuine pride in the mission and sincere
spirit in carrying it out. I sawall of these things in the
Verizon employees toiling on the street, in the rubble and
in the vaults, It made me immensely proud to be in the
communications field."
Michael Powell, Chairman, Federal Communications Commission

"We lost some humanity here Tuesday. So I'm just
trying to get my hands dirty here. Do my share. We're all
trying to get a little of that humanity back."
James ladlch,Technician at Ground Zero

Verizon's building adjacent to the World Trade
Center rises amid the devastation.
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.-, VERIZON AT A GLANCE

DOMESTIC TELECOM
Verizon serves residential and business wireline
customers in 32 states and the District of Columbia.
We have more than 61 million access lines and
more than 132 million voice grade equivalent lines.
Our wireline footprint includes 67 of the top 100
U.S. markets, 31 million households, more than
one~third of Fortune 500 company headquarters
and the Federal Government.

Consumer 41 % ~--,
General Business 14%

Wholesale 25%
Enterprise Business 17%

Other 3%

REVENUES
(bHi;ons)

2001 Revenues of $43,1 Billion

OOMESTIC WIRELESS
Verizon Wireless is the leading wireless
communications provider in the U.S. with nearly 30
million customers. The company's footprint covers
more than 90% of the nation's population and 97 of
the top 100 U.S. markets. It was formed by the
combination of the U.S. wireless businesses of
Verizon and Vodafone in April 2000. Verizon currently
owns 55% of Verizon Wireless, and Vodafone owns
the remaining 45%.

Service 92%
Equipment and Other 8%

REVENUES
(biiHons)

2001 Revenues of $17.4 Billion

INTERNATIONAL
Verizon has international investment interests in 19
countries, with a global presence that extends to
more than 40 countries in the Americas, Europe,
Asia and the Pacific. Our Global Solutions network
interconnects leading commercial centers in the
world, and provides customers access to an
extensive selection of voice, data and IP products
and services.

REVENUES
{billions)

2001 International Revenues of $2.3 Billion
Proportionate Revenues of $5.9 Billion

INFORMATION SERVICES
Verizon Information Services is the world's
leading print and online directory publisher and
content provider for communications products and
services. A leader in linking buyers and sellers,
Information Services' bundled print and electronic
commerce products and services include
SuperPages printed telephone directories and
SuperPages.com, the Internet's preeminent online
directory and directory services provider for MSN,
InfoSpace, AltaVista, Excite, Lycas, Ask Jeeves,
Hot Bot, BigFoot, Tripod and Angelfire.

Domestic 90% ~--,
International 10%

REVENUES
(bdlions)

2001 Revenues of $4.3 Billion

4
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DSL SUBSCRIBERS
(,!1ousandsj l::)c

,~

VOICE GRADE EQUIVALENTS
(miHiors)
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LONG DISTANCE CUSTOMERS
(rrdilonsl

o
o
o
N "oN

(billions]
OPERATING INCOME SUBSCRIBERS MONTHLY SUBSCRIBER CHURN RATE

NET INCOME
(m,llions;

INVESTMENT
Canada

TELUS
Latin America

CANTV
Campania de Telephonos

del Interior
Telecomunicaciones de

Puerto Rico, Inc. (1/02)
CODETEl
Grupo lusacell

Europe
Cable & Wireless
NTL Incorporated
Omnilel

OWNERSHIP

23.7%

28.5%

65.3%

52%
100%

39.4%

4.6%
8.9%

23.1 %

INVESTMENT
Gibraltar
Stet Hallas
EuroTel Praha
EuroTel Bratislava

Asia
Taiwan Cellular
Micronesian Telecom
Excelcomindo
PT Citra Sari Makrnur
TelecomAsia
BayanTel
Telecom Corp. of New Zealand

COnrf8Clivily
FLAG
Global Solutions

OWNERSHIP
50%

17.5%
24.5%
24.5%

13%
100%

23.1%
36.7%
12.5%
19.4%
21.5%

18,6%
100%

OPERATING CASH MARGIN NET INCOME
(b,lIiOrls)

5

Information Services provides sales. publishing
and other related services for nearly 2,300
directory titles in 48 states, the District of
Columbia and 14 countries.

Domestic circulation
International circulation
Monthly visits to SuperPages,com
Number of advertisers

106 million
44 million
12 million

1.8 million
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FELLOW SHAREOWNERS:
2001 was a year testDd the mettle of ever;
compary in America
Ten years' worth of economic expansion gave way to recession.
Stock values that seemed to float on helium suddenly fell to
earth. Questions about the sustainability of "new economy" busi-
ness models and the integrity of financial results undermined
investor confidence in even the most stable of corporate fran~
chisas. And, on September 11th, an unprecedented attack on
America caused extensive damage to our communications net-
work, to say nothing of the national psyche.

In these difficult market conditions, Verizon delivered solid finan-
cial performance. More than that, we demonstrated that, in
Verizon, we have created a company with the strength to sustain
good operating results and build for the future in an extraordi-
narily challenging environment.

Our financial results for 2001 reflect both the strength of our
operating units and the effects of a slow economy and an unset-
tled climate for investment. Revenues were $67.2 billion, up 4.1
percent, driven by increased sales in wireless, long distance,
data and high-speed Internet access. On an adjusted basis, net
income grew nearly 3.0 percent, to $8.2 billion, and earnings per
share were $3.00. Reported results, which include the effects of
non-recurring or non-operational items such as investment loss-
es, severance costs and asset sales, show net income of $389
million for the year, or 14 cents per share.

We are, of course, unhappy with the performance of our stock,
which lost 5.3 percent in value in 2001. Relative to the broader
market, however, we fared somewhat better; as you see from the
chart below, the S&P 500 Index declined 13 percent for the year
and the S&P Telecom Services Index, which averages the per-
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f

III
Charles R. Lee Ivan G. Seidenberg

formance of the companies in our peer group, declined 13.7 per-
cent. When dividends are factored in, Verizon's total return was
down 2.5 percent-certainly not where we want to be but a rel-
atively stable, high-quality investment in this difficult market.

Whatever the vagaries of the stock market, 2001 unambiguous-
ly demonstrated the wisdom of the merger that created Verizon
and the power of the company we have built. Our increased
scale and scope gave us the ability to absorb the pressures of a
weak economy by using industry-leading cost savings and merg-
er synergies to mitigate the effects of the economic downturn.
Since the merger dosed in June 2000, we have realized approx-
imately $1.4 billion in synergy savings, putting us well down the
path toward our goal of $2 billion within three years. Our core
businesses-wireline, wireless and print and on-line directories-
serve millions of customers across the country, giving us a stable
source of revenues and cash flow, and our international invest-
ments continue to contribute to revenue and net income grovvth.

30%,-----------------------------------,

20%

10%

0%

-10%

-20%

1101101 3131/01 6/30101 9/30/01 12/31/01
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clearly legible for satisfactory recordation.
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Together, they represent the most strategically powerful collec-
tion of assets in the communications industry, which - for all the
turmoil of 2001-remains a terrifically exciting growth market. No
one is better positioned than Verizon to deliver a full bundle of
communications s81\1icesto customers. As communications and
computing technologies converge, we have continued to invest
in high-speed wireless and wireline access technologies so that
our networks will remain a platform for growth in the Internet era.
And we are continually reinventing our products, services and
technology base around new opportunities-such as 8-com-
merce, wireless data, voice-over-IP and broadband-that will fuel
our growth for years to come.

Whatever the vagaries of the
stock market, 2001 unambiguously
demonstrated the wisdom of
the merger that created Verizon
and the power of the company
we have built.

2001 Results
In a year when good news was hard to come by, our performance
in the following growth areas was outstanding:

We ended the year with 7.4 million long distance customers,
a 59 percent increase over the prior year, which makes
Verizon the nation's fourth largest long distance carrier. We
now have the ability to offer long distance over two-thirds
of our footprint and expect to receive FCC approval for
long distance entry in all our remaining states by the end
of the year.

We also ended the year with 1.2 million customers for our
high-speed Internet access service, DSL-a 122 percent
increase over 2000-and dramatically improved customer
service and provisioning.

Data revenues were $7 billion. Transport revenues were up
21.2 percent despite the weak economy, And, even as the
number of traditional access lines declined due to competition
and technology substitution, voice-grade equivalents-a
better measure of the data-carrying capacity of our network-
grew by 13 percent.

Verizon Wireless added 2.6 million customers in 2001, for a
total of nearly 30 million. With its unrivalled subscriber base,
market coverage and network quality, Verizon Wireless is
the leading wireless company in the country, by a wide
margin. And with its expanding cash flow margins and out-
standing expense controls, Verizon Wireless also leads the
industry in profitability.
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IN JUNE 2002, CHUCK LEE WILL

RETIRE AS CO-CEO OF VERIZON.

HE WILL REMAIN NON-EXECUTIVE

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD UNTIL

JUNE 2004.

DELIVERING ON A LEGACY FOR THE FUTURE

When Chuck and I started down this path

together, we shared two important things: an

unshakable belief in the vision of the company we

were creating and a mutual respect that allowed

us to work together to make it succeed. As

much as anything, our success is a tribute to

Chuck's character. He came to this venture-just

as Idid-with his own legacy, his own loyalties,

and thousands of dedicated employees with a

tremendous sense of pride in what they'd built at

GTE. But along the way, he made a choice:

to put the interests of Verizon ahead of anything

else. He's been able to do it because, when it

comes right down to it, he knows who he is, what

he's accomplished, and what his own values ~

and those of his company - really are.

All the decisions to put us on the right side of

technology, innovation and competition in our

industry happened on Chuck Lee's watch. He has

led his companies-first GTE. then Verizon-to

strong positions in every important sector of

communications: local, long distance, wireless,

international and data. Everybody associated with

Verizon owes him a debt of thanks.

I'm grateful to him, and I'm proud to be part of

his legacy.

7
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Revenues from international operations were $2,3 billion for
the year, up 18.3 percent. Growth in equity income from
unconsolidated businesses was 37 percent. All toid, interna-
tional contributed nearly $1 billion in net income for the year.
In addition, our Global Solutions business turned up four
international gateway switches, which allows us to offer
global customers a core set of voice and data products.

And Verizon Information Services, our directory publishing
and electronic commerce unit, increased revenues by 4.1
percent, to $4.3 billion, and grew operating income by 11.2
percent. SuperPages.com, the industry's leading Internet
directory service, grew more than 70 percent for the year.

Underlying all the accomplishments of 2001 is our unrelenting
focus on the "blocking and tackling" of operational excellence
that is the hallmark of our company: reducing costs, managing
complex networks, introducing new products and-above al1-
delivering superior service to customers. We have succeeded
not just in assembling the assets we need to compete, but in
integrating them into strong national franchises and unifying our
organization around a new identity and a shared value system.
We made the tough decisions when we had to and took early,
aggressive action to adapt to changing economic conditions.

And, even in a challenging operating environment, we have con-
tinued to transform ourselves around new opportunities and
position our company for long-term market leadership.

Positioned for the Future: Service + Innovation
As in any competitive business, the bar for being the market
leader gets higher every year. Even if the economy recovers in
the second half of 2002, as we expect, technological change and
increasing competition from cable, Internet telephony and other
full-service carriers will continue to accelerate-challenging us to
execute our game plan faster, better and with a greater sense of
urgency. So, in 2002, we will focus on the basics to solidify our
position as the market leader-building on our world-class
networks, respected brand, valuable customer relationships and
the service ethic of our employees to earn our customers' confi-
dence and loyalty.

Ultimately, innovation is the pulse of any technology-driven indus-
try. Over time, Verizon's success will depend on our ability to bring
to our customers the next generation of broadband, wireless data
and many other products and services that technology innovation
makes possible. Our peeple manage complex technologies bet-
ter than just about anybody, and we are excited by the prospects
of using that wea~h of inteilectual capital and technical expertise
to make our customers' lives more convenient, more secure and
more productive.
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The Strength of Our People
Our ability to execute our plan for market leadership lies in the
strength of the Verizon management team, one of the most sea-
soned and capable in the business. We also owe our success to
the committed efforts of our Board of Directors, which continues
to oversee our progress with diligence and foresight.

Above all else, our continued strength as a company derives
from the efforts of nearly 250,000 dedicated employees,
who come to work every day with the work ethic and unparai-
leied skills required to make a difference for our customers and
our communities.

Perhaps that sounds trite. But on September 11th, these quaiities
were put to the test in the most excruciating circumstances imag-
inable. All three terrorist attacks-in Shanksville, Pennsylvania; at
the Pentagon; and, most disastrously, at the World Trade
Center-happened in Verizon territory. Our people worked
heroically, under devastating conditions, to restore service and
rebuild the communications network on which America depends.
This spirit of patriotism and duty extended beyond the workers
at Ground Zero to energize our entire employee body, which gen-
erously donated thousands of volunteer hours and millions of
dollars to aid the victims and rebuild our communities.

Tragically, three Verizon employees lost their lives in the attacks.
The actions of their fellow employees do honor to their memory.

Verizon employees showed America that, when it comes to
managing networks and integrating technology, we wrote the
book. And when it comes to quality of service and the ability to
come through in the clutch, nobody does it better.

We could not be more proud of the character of the people of
Verizon. We are confident that the steadiness, resourcefulness
and commitment they demonstrated in this moment of national
importance will see us through the more prosaic difficulties of a
slow economy and competitive challenges. Our aim -and our
continuing opportunity - is to use that excellence to set the
standard for performance in our industry as we deliver the next
generation of growth and innovation in this immensely valuable
and vital business.

~"t..<U.-
Charles R. Lee
Chairman
Co-Chief Executive Officer

\" ......<2 ~ ....
I~~~-G~-s~id~~b~~~-\
President
Co-Chief Executive Officer

8
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Page 244

r". (dollars in millions, except per share amounts)g.I.II 2000 1999 1998 1997

Results of Operations
Operating revenues $ 67,190 $ 64.707 $ 58,194 $ 57,075 $ 53,575
Operating income 11,532 16,758 15,953 11,756 10,881
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of

accounting change 590 10,810 8.296 5.326 5,181
Per common shar&-basic .22 3.98 3.03 1.94 1.90
Per common share-diluted .22 3.95 2.98 1.92 1.89

Net income 389 11,797 8.260 4,980 5,181
Net income available to common shareowners 389 11,787 8.260 4,948 5,181

Per common share-basic .14 4.34 3.02 1.81 1.90
Per common share-diluted .14 4.31 2.97 1.79 1.89

Cash dividends declared per common share 1.54 1.54 1.54 1.54 1.51

Financial Position
Total assets $ 170,795 $ 164,735 $ 112.830 $ 98,164 $ 95,742
long-term debt 45,657 42,491 32,419 33,064 27,759
Employee benefit obligations 11,898 12,543 13,744 14,788 14,760
Minority interest, including a portion

subject to redemption requirements 22,149 21,830 1,900 2,490 3.338
Shareowners' investment 32,539 34,578 26,376 21,435 20.632

Significant events affecting our historical earnings trends in 1999 through 2001 are described in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial
Condition.
1997 and 1998 data include retirement incentive costs, merger-related costs and other special Items.

/""'" MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

OVERVIEW

Verizon Communications Inc. is one of the world's leading
providers of communications services. Verizon companies are the
largest providers of wireline and wireless communications in the
United States, with 132.1 million access line equivalents and 29.4
million wireless customers. Verizon is also the largest directory
publisher in the world. A Fortune 10 company with more than $67
billion in annual revenues and approximately 247,000 employees,
Verizon's global presence extends to more than 40 countries in
the Americas, Europe, Asia and the Pacific.

We have four reportable segments, which we operate and
manage as strategic business units: Domestic Telecom,
Domestic Wireless, International and Information Services.
Domestic Telecom includes local, long distance and other
telecommunication services. Domestic Wireless products and
services include wireless voice and data services, paging
services and equipment sales. International operations include
wireline and wireless communications operations, investments
and management contracts in the Americas, Europe, Asia and
the Pacific. Information Services publishes domestic and interna-
tional print and electronic directories and Internet-based
shopping guides, as well as includes website creation and other

("", electronic commerce services,

Critical Accounting Policies: Significant accounting policies
are highlighted in the applicable sections of this Management's
Discussion and Analysis (see ·Special Items," "Severance/
Retirement Enhancement Costs and Settlement Gains,"

"Loss/(Gain) on Securities" and "Genuity Loss"), In addition, all
of our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In this section, we discuss our overall reported results and high-
light special and nonrecurring items. In the following section, we
review the performance of our segments on an adjusted basis. We
adjust the segments' reported results for the effects of these
items, which management does not consider in assessing
segment performance due primarily to their nonrecurring and/or
non-operational nature. We believe that this presentation will
assist readers in better understanding operating results and
trends from period to period.

Reported consolidated revenues were $67,190 million for the year
ended December 31.2001, compared to $64,707 million and
$58.194 million for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Reported consolidated revenues were not adjusted
for prior year sales of wireline operations and the deconsolidation
of Genuity Inc, (Genuity). In addition, prior year revenues included
the formation of the Verizon Wireless joint venture beginning in
April 2000 and included overlapping wireless properties through
June 30, 2000.

Adjusted for the items in the preceding paragraph, 2001 consoli-
dated adjusted revenues were $67,190 million, or 4.1% higher
than 2000 adjusted revenue of $64,550 million. In 1999, we
reported consolidated adjusted revenue of $59,181 million.

10
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION ",ntin"'"

We reported net income available to common shareowners of
$389 million, or $.14 diluted earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2001, compared to net income available to
common shareowners of $11,787 million, or $4.31 diluted earn-
ings per share for the year ended December 31, 2000. In 1999, we
reported net income available to common shareowners of $8,260
million, or $2.97 diluted earnings per share.

Included in our 2001 reported and adjusted net income is a pretax
charge of $285 miliion ($172 million after-tax, or $.06 per diiuted
share) related to losses, and service disruption and restoration
costs. associated with the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks
(also see "Segment Results of Operations - Domestic Telecom").
In 2002, we anticipate incurring similar costs of up to $.04 per
diluted share. The net income impact includes a reduction for a
preliminary assessment of insurance recovery. Varizon's insurance
policies are limited to losses of $1 billion for each oGcurrence and
include a deductible of $1 million. The cost and insurance recovery
were recorded in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue No. 01-10, "Accounting for the Impact of the Terrorist Attacks
of September 11, 2001." Additionally, governmental reimbursement
mechanisms are under consideration but have not been finalized at
this time and accordingly, we cannot determine the potential impact.

Our reported results for all three years were affected by special
items. After adjusting for these items, net income would have
been $8,190 million, or $3.00 diluted earnings per share in 2001,
$7,962 million, or $2.91 diluted earnings per share in 2000, and

r $7,895 million, or $2.84 diluted earnings per share in 1999.

The table below summarizes reported and adjusted results of
operations for each period.

(dollarsinmillions,exceptper shareamounts)
YearsEnded December 31. g.I", 2000 1999
Reportedoperatingrevenues $ 67,190 $ 64,707 $ 58,194
Reportedoperatingexpenses 55,_ 47,949 42,241
Reportedoperatingincome 11.532 16,758 15,953

Reported Net Income Available to
Common Shareowners 389 11,787 8,260

Merger-relatedcosts 749
Transitioncosts 578 316 126
Salesof assets.net 226 (1,987) (819)
Severance/retirementenhancement

costs andsettlementgains 1.001 (564) (410)
Loss/(gain)on securities 4,_ (1,941)
Mark-to-marketadjustment-

financialinstruments 179 (431) 432
Genuityloss 281 325
Internationalrestructuring 863 50
Wirelessjoint venture (173)
NorthPointinvestmentwrite-off 153
Otherchargesandspecial items 95 526 126
Extraordinaryitems 19 (1,027) 36
Cumulativeeffect of accountingchange 182 40 (8)
Redemptionof subsidiary

preferredstock 10
I'"' Adjusted Net Income $ 8,190 $ 7,962 $ 7,895

Diluted Earnings Per Shar&-floported $ .14 $ 4.31 $ 2.97
DIluted Earnings Per Share-Adjusted $ 3.00 $ 2.91 $ 2.84

Further explanation of the nature of these special items can be
found on pages 17 to 21.

SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We measure and evaluate our reportable segments based on
adjusted net income, which excludes unallocated corporate
expenses and other adjustments arising during each period. The
other adjustments include transactions that management
excludes in assessing business unit performance due primarily to
their nonrecurring andlor non-operational nature. Although such
transactions are excluded from business segment results, they
are included in reported consolidated earnings. We previously
highlighted the more significant of these transactions in the
"Consolidated Results of Operations" section. Gains and losses
that are not individually significant are included in all segment
results, since these items are included in management's assess-
ment of unit performance. These are mostly contained in
International and Information Services since they actively manage
investment portfolios.

Further information about our segments can be found in Note 21
to the consolidated financial statements.

Special items affected our segments as follows:

(dollarsinmillions)
Years Ended December 31, 2000 1999

Domestic Telecom
Reportednet income $ 3,364 $ 6,057 $ 5,664
Specialitems 1,546 (922) (644)
Adjustednet income $ 4,910 $ 5,135 $ 5,020
Domestic Wireless
Reportednet income $ 430 $ 854 $ 614
Specialitems 107 (410) 14
Adjustednet income $ 537 $ 444 $ 628
International
Reportednet income(loss) $ 11,995} $ 2,547 $ 60B
Specialitems 2,953 (1,814) 10
Adjustednet income $ 958 $ 733 $ 618
Infonnation Services
Reportednet income $ 1,271 $ 1,098 $ 1,197
Specialitems 81 140 14
Adjustednet income $ 1,352 $ 1.238 $ 1,211
Corporate and Other
Reportednet income(loss) $ 12,881) $ 1.241 $ 177
Specialitems 3,114 (829) 241
Adjustednet income $ 433 $ 412 $ 418

Corporate and Other includes intersegment eliminations.

I Domestic Telecom

Domestic Telecom provides local telephone services, including
voice and data transport, enhanced and custom calling features,
network access, directory assistance, private lines and public
telephones in 32 states and the District of Columbia. This
segment also prOVides long distance services, customer premises
equipment distribution, data solutions and systems integration,
billing and collections, Internet access services, research and
development and inventory management services.
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Highlights
Operating Revenues
Domestic Telecom ended the year 2001 with a slight decline in
operating revenues of 0.6%. compared to an increase of 3.9% in
2000. In 2001, Domestic Telecom's revenue growth rates were
pressured by several factors including the weakened U.S. econ-
omy, which has dampened demand for basic wire line and other
services, and rate reductions mandated by regulators. In addition,
Domestic Telecom continues to be affected by competition and
technology substitution, as more customers are choosing wireless
and Internet services in place of some basic wireline services.

Despite these challenges, our data transport and long distance
businesses continued to show solid demand and revenue growth.
Data transport revenues, which include our high-bandwidth,
packet-switched and special access services, as well as Digital
Subscriber Line (DSL) services, grew more than 21 % over 2000
and 32% over 1999. We ended 2001 with data circuits in service
equivalent to 71 million voice-grade access lines, up 31 % from
2000. Data circuits now account for more than half of Verizon's
132 million access line equivalents, as more customers chose
high-capacity, high-speed transport services. In 2000, data
circuits in service were equivalent to 54 million voice-grade
access lines, more than a 65% increase over 1999. Operating
revenues were also fueled by strong growth in our interLATA long
distance business. We ended the year 2001 with 7.4 million long
distance customers nationwide, an increase of 2.7 million
subscribers or 59% over 2000. We now offer long distance service
to more than two-thirds of all Verizon access lines. In 2000, we
entered the in-region long distance market in New York, and in
2001 we entered the Massachusetts, Connecticut and
Pennsylvania in-region long distance markets. At year-end 2000,
long distance subscribers totaled nearly 4.7 million nationwide, an
increase of nearly 50% from the prior year. Our revenues were
negatively affected by federal and state regulatory price reduc-
tions of approximately $660 million in 2001, $860 million in 2000
and $660 million in 1999, primarily affecting our network access
revenues.

Operating Expenses
Domestic Telecom's operating expenses were essentially flat in
2001 as a result of strong cost containment measures, merger-
related saVings and other cost reductions. Operating expenses in
2001 also included added costs related to the events of
September 11th and increased costs associated with our growth
businesses such as long distance and data services. These entry
costs include customer acquisition expenses associated with the
launch of long distance in several states and costs retated to
marketing, distribution and service installation of our DSL service.
In 2000, increased operating expenses were principally due to
higher costs associated with entering new businesses, partially
offset by the effect of cost containment measures.

Wireline Properly Sales
We have either sold or committed to sell wireline properties repre-
senting approximately 2.9 million access lines or 2.2% of the total
Domestic Telecom access line equivalents. The effect of these
dispositions largely depends on the timing of the sales and the
reinvestment of the proceeds. As of December 31, 2001, we have
sold all but apprOXimately 1.2 million access lines that we commit-

ted to sell. Those remaining access lines are under definitive sale
agreements. For comparability purposes, the adjusted results of
operations shown In the table below exclUde the operating
revenues and expenses contributed by the properties that have
been sold in 2000. No access lines were sold in 2001. These
operating revenues were approximately $766 million and $1,151
million for the years 2000 and 1999, respectively. Operating
expenses contributed by the sold properties were $253 million
and $378 million for the years 2000 and 1999, respectively. Net
income contributed by the sold properties was approximately
$314 million and $475 million for the years 2000 and 1999,
respectively. For additional information on wireline property sales,
see Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Additional financial information about Domestic Telecom's results
of operations for 2001, 2000 and 1999 follows:

(dollars in millions)
Years Ended December 31. g.I.II 2000 1999

Results of Operations-Adjusted Basis
Operating Revenues
Local services S 21,918 $ 22,033 $ 20,733
Network access services 13,379 13,142 12,827
Long distance services 3,107 3,152 3,183
Other services 4,874 5,016 4,980

43,078 43,343 41,723
Operating Expenses
Operations and support 23,928 24,537 23,691
Depreciation and amortization 9,332 8,752 8,200

33,260 33.289 31,891
Operating Income S 9,818 $ 10,054 $ 9,832

Adjusted Net Income $ 4,910 $ 5,135 $ 5,020

Operating Revenues
Local Services
Local service revenues are earned by our telephone operations
from the provision of local exchange, local private line, wire main-
tenance, voice messaging and value-added services. Value-added
services are a family of services that expand the utilization of the
network, including products such as Galler 10. Call Waiting and
Return Call. The provision of local exchange services not only
includes retail revenue but also includes local wholesale revenues
from unbundled network elements (UNEs), interconnection
revenues from competitive local exchange carriers (CLECs), wire-
less interconnection revenues and some data transport revenues.

In 2001, local service revenues declined $115 million, or 0.5% due
to the effects of lower demand and usage of our basic local wire-
line services and mandated intrastate price reductions. Our
switched access lines in service declined 2.1 % from December
31, 2000, primarily reflecting the impact of an economic slow-
down and competition for some local services. Technology
substitution also affected local service revenue growth, as indi-
cated by lower demand for additional residential access lines.
These factors were partially offset by higher payments received
from GLEGs for interconnection of their networks with our network
and by solid demand for our value-added services as a result of
new packaging of services.
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In 2000, growth in local service revenues of $1,300 million, or
6.3% was driven by higher interconnection revenues from CLEGs
and higher usage of our network facilities. Volume-related growth,
generated in part by an increase in switched access lines in
service of 1.4% from December 31,1999, reflected hi9her
customer demand and usage of our data transport and digital
services. Solid demand for our value-added services. as well as
growth in wireless interconnection, inside wire maintenance. and
national directory assistance services further contributed to higher
local service revenues in 2000. Revenue growth was also partially
attributable to the favorable resolution of various regulatory
matters and the impact of implementing Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) Stafl Accounting Bulletin (SAB) NO.1 01,
"Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.'" Revenue growth
associated with SAB No. 101 was entirely offset by corresponding
increases in operating expenses. Local service revenue growth in
2000 was partially offset by the effect of resold and UNE plat-
forms, as well as the effect of net regulatory price reductions and
customer rebates.

See "Other Factors That May Affect Future Results" for additional
information on the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (1996 Act)
and its impact on local services.

Network Access Services
Network access services revenues are earned from end-user
subscribers and long distance and other competing carriers who
use our local exchange facilities to provide usage services to their
customers. Switched access revenues are derived from fixed and
usage-based charges paid by carriers for access to our local
network. Special access revenues originate from carriers and end-
users that bUy dedicated local exchange capacity to support their
private networks. End-user access revenues are earned from our
customers and from resellers who purchase dial-tone services.

Our network access revenues grew $237 million, or 1.8%, in 2001
and $315 million, or 2.5%, in 2000. This growth was mainly attrib-
utable to higher customer demand, primarily for special access
services (including DSL) that grew approximately 24% in 2001
and 36% in 2000. Special access revenue growth in both years
reflects strong demand in the business market for high-capacity,
high-speed digital services. Revenue growth in 2001 was affected
by the slowing economy, as reflected by a 1.0% decline in
minutes of use from carriers and CLECs and a 2.1 % reduction in
switched access lines in service. In 2000, growth in minutes of
use from carriers and CLECs of 5.7% and higher revenues
received from customers for the recovery of local number portabil-
ity also contributed to network access revenue growth.

Volume-related growth in both years was substantially offset by
price reductions associated with federal and state price cap filings
and other regUlatory decisions. State public utility commissions
regulate our telephone operations with respect to some intrastate
rates and services and other matters. State rate reductions on
access services were approximately $165 million in 2001, $285
million in 2000 and $220 million in 1999.

The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulates the
rates that we charge long distance carriers and end-user
subscribers for interstate access services. We are required to file
new access rates with the FCC each year. In July 2000, we imple-

mented the Coalition for Affordable Local and Long Distance
Services (CALLS) plan. Rates included in the July 2000 CALLS
plan were in effeetthrou9h June 2001. Effeetive July 3, 2001, we
implemented further rate reductions in accordance with the plan.
Interstate price reductions on access services were apprOXimately
$300 million in 2001, $520 million in 2000 and $380 million in 1999.

See "Other Factors That May Affect Future Results" for additional
information on FCC rulemakings concerning federal access rates,
universal service and unbundling of network elements.

Long Distance Services
Long distance service revenues include both intraLATA toll
services and interLATA long distance voice and data services.

Long distance service revenues declined $45 million, or 1.4%, in
2001 and $31 million, or 1.0% in 2000 primarily due to competi-
tion and the effects of toll calling discount packages and product
bundling offers of our intraLATA toll services. These reductions
were largely offset by revenue growth from our interLATA long
distance services, including significant customer win-backs result-
ing from the introduction of interLATA long distance services in
New York in 2000 and in Massachusetts, Connecticut and
Pennsylvania in 2001.

See also ·Other Factors That May Affect Future Results· for a
discussion of our plans to enter the interLATA long distance
market in other states in our region.

Other Services
Our other services include such services as billing and collections
for long distance carriers, public (pay) telephone and customer
premises equipment services. Other services revenues also include
services provided by most of our non-regulated subsidiaries such
as inventory management and purchasing, Internet access and
data solutions and systems integration businesses.

Revenues from other services declined $342 million, or 6.8% in
2001 principally as a result of lower sales of customer premises
equipment, a decline in public telephone revenues as more
customers substituted wireless communications for pay telephone
services, and lower billing and collection revenues reflecting the
take-back of these services by interexchange carriers. Lower data
solutions and systems integration revenues due to the slowing
economy and the effect of closing our GLEC operation further
contributed to the revenue decline in 2001. These revenue reduc-
tions were partially offset by higher revenues from other
non-regulated services.

Revenues from other services grew $36 million, or 0.7%, in 2000
primarily due to higher demand for such services as systems inte-
gration and data solutions and inventory management and
purchasing services, principally due to new contracts with busi-
ness customers. These factors were partially offset by lower
demand for our billing and collection, public telephone and direc-
tory services.

Operating Expenses
Operations and Support
Operations and support expenses, which consist of employee
costs and other operating expenses, decreased by $609 million,
or 2.5% in 2001 principally due to lower costs at our domestic
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telephone operations. These reductions were attributable to lower
overtime for repair and maintenance activity principally as a result
of reduced volumes at our dispatch and call centers and lower
employee costs associated with declining workforce levels.
Operating costs have also decreased due to business integration
activities and achievement of merger synergies. Other effective
cost containment measures, including lower spending by non-
strategic businesses and closing our CLEe operation, also
contributed to cost reductions in 2001.

Cost reductions in 2001 were partially offset by additional charges
related to the terrorist attacks on September 11th (see
"Consolidated Results of Operations" section) and by higher costs
associated with our growth businesses such as long distance and
data services. Increased costs associated with uncollectible
accounts receivable and higher employee benefit costs further
offset cost reductions in 2001. The increase in employee benefit
costs in 2001 was largely due to increased health care costs
driven by inflation, higher saVings plan costs and changes in some
plan provisions. These factors were partially offset by favorable
pension plan income, including gain amortization.

In 2000, operations and support expenses increased by $846
million, or 3.6% principally as a result of higher costs associated
with entering new growth businesses and higher interconnection
payments to CLECs and other carriers to terminate calls on their
networks (reciprocal compensation). Higher costs at our tele-
phone operations, including salary and wage increases for
management and non-management employees and the effect of
higher work force levels also contributed to cost increases in
2000. Expense increases also reflect the implementation of SAB
No. 101. Expense increases associated with SAB No. 101 were
entirely offset by corresponding increases in operating revenues,
as described earlier.

Cost increases in 2000 were partially offset by lower employee
benefit costs. The decline in employee benefit costs in 2000 was
chiefly due to favorable pension plan income and changes in
actuarial assumptions. These factors were offset, in part, by
changes in some plan provisions, increased health care costs
caused by inflation, savings plan benefit improvements for some
management employees, as well as benefit improvements
provided for under new contracts with other employees. In 2000,
we executed contracts with unions representing our employees.
The new contracts provide for wage and pension increases and
other benefit improvements, including annual wage increases of
4%, 3% and 5%, beginning in August 2000. Customer service
representatives received an additional 4% wage increase. Pension
benefits for active employees increased by 5% on July 1, 2001,
and will increase by 5% on July 1, 2002 and 4% on July 1, 2003.
The contracts also include team-based incentive awards for meet-
ing higher service performance and other standards, increased
funding for work and family programs, improvements to health
and other benefits and provisions relating to overtime, access to
work and employment security. In addition, all union-represented
employees were granted options to purchase 100 shares of our
common stock.

For additional information on reciprocal compensation refer to
"Other Factors That May Affect Future Results - Compensation
for Internet Traffic."

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $580 million,
or 6.6%, in 2001 and $552 million, or 6.7%, in 2000. Expense
increases in both years were principally due to growth in deprecia-
ble telephone plant and increased software amortization costs.
These factors were partially offset by the effect of lower rates of
depreciation.

! Domestic Wireless

Our Domestic Wireless segment provides wireless voice and data
services, paging services and equipment sales. This segment
primarily represents the operations of the Verizon Wireless joint
venture. Verizon Wireless was formed in April 2000 through the
combination of our wireless properties with the U.S. properties
and paging assets of Vodafone Group pic (Vodafone), including
the consolidation of PrimeCo Communications (PrimeCo). Verizon
owns a 55% interest in the joint venture and Vodafone owns the
remaining 45%. The 2001 financial results included in the table
below reflect the combined resutts of Venzon Wireless. The period
prior to the formation of Verizon Wireless is reported on a histori-
cal basis, and therefore, does not reflect the contribution of the
Vodafone properties and the consolidation of PrimeCo. In addi-
tion, the financial results of several overlap properties, that were
subsequently sold, were included in Domestic Wireless's results
through June 30, 2000.

Highlights
Our Domestic Wireless segment ended the year 2001 with 29.4
million customers, an increase of 9.8% over year-end 2000. At
year-end 2000, customers totaled apprOXimately 26.8 million, an
increase of 83.4% over year-end 1999. At year-end 1999,
customers totaled apprOXimately 14.2 million. AU customer counts
have been restated for a first quarter 2001 customer base
adjustment. The 2000 growth in customers is primarily attributable
to the formation of Verizon Wireless in April 2000. Approximately
22 million, or almost 75%, of Verizon Wireless customers now
subscribe to COMA (Code Division Multiple Access) digital
services, and generate more than 93% of our busy-hour usage,
compared to 80% at year-end 2000. In addition, almost 850,000
customers subscribe to the company's wireless data services,
including Mobile Web Internet access.

In December 2001, Verizon Wireless and Price Communications
Corporation agreed to combine the business operations of Price
Communications Wireless, Inc. and a portion of Verizon Wireless,
in a transaction valued at $1.7 billion, including $550 million in net
debt that will be assumed or redeemed. Under the terms of the
transaction, which replaces, an agreement announced by the
companies in November 2000, Price Communications Wireless
and Verizon Wireless will form a limited partnership consisting of
substantially all of the assets of Price Communications' wireless
operations and some of Verizon Wireless's assets. Verizon
Wireless will control and manage the partnership. Price
Communications' partnership interest will be exchangeable into
Verizon Wireless or Verizon stock, subject to several conditions.
The transaction, which remains subject to the approval of Price
Communications' shareholders and other customary closing
conditions, will significantly expand the company's footprint in the
Southeastern U.S. and add approximately 560,000 customers.
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Additional financial information about Domestic Wireless results of
operations for 2001, 2000 and 1999 follows:

(dollars in millions)

Years Ended December 31, ,1.11 2000 1999

Results of Operations-Adjusted Basis
Operating Revenues
Wireless services $17,393 $ 14,236 $ 7,653
Operating Expenses
Operations and support 11,379 9,563 5,166
Depreciation and amortization 3,709 2,894 1,100

15,088 12,457 6,266
Operating Income $ 2.305 $ 1,779 $ 1,387

Minority Interest $ (788) $ (504) $ (76)
Adjusted Net Income $ 537 $ 444 $ 628

Operating Revenues
Revenues earned from our consolidated wireless businesses grew
by $3,157 million, or 22,2%, in 2001 and $6,583 million, or 86,0%,
in 2000. By including the revenues of the properties of the wire-
less joint venture and excluding the impact of wireless overlap
properties on a basis comparable with 2001, revenues were
$2,030 million, or 13.2%, higher than 2000. On this comparable
basis. revenue growth was largely attributable to customer addi-
tions and slightly higher revenue per customer per month. Our
domestic wireless customer base grew to 29.4 million customers
in 2001, compared to 26.8 million customers in 2000, an increase

"" of nearly 10%.,
Revenues for 2000 were $14,236 million, an increase of $6,583
million, or 86.0%, compared to 1999. By including the revenues of
the properties of the wireless joint venture on a basis comparable
with 2000, revenues were $2,300 million, or 19.3%, higher than
1999. The revenue growth was due to the growth in the customer
base and stable revenue per customer per month.

Operating Expenses
Operations and Support
Operations and support expenses, which represent employee
costs and other operating expenses, increased by $1,816 million,
or 19,0%, in 2001 and $4,397 million, or 85,1 %, in 2000, By
including the expenses of the properties of the wireless joint
venture on a basis comparable with 2001, operations and support
expenses were $1,186 million, or 11.6%, higher than 2000, Higher
costs were attributable to the growth in the subscriber base
described above, as well as the continuing migration of analog
customers to digital.

The increased costs in 2000 were principally the result of the
formation of the wireless joint venture in April 2000, as well as
costs associated with customer growth and digital migration.

Dep~~tionandAmomnnron
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $815 million,
or 28.2%, in 2001 and by $1,794 miliion, or 163,1%, in 2000. The
increase in 2001 over the prior year was primarily due to increased
capital expenditures to support the increasing demand for wire-
less services. Adjusting for the joint venture in a manner similar to
operations and support expenses above, depreciation and amorti-
zation was $336 million, or 10.0%, higher than 2000. Capital

expenditures for our cellular network have increased in 2001 and
2000 to support increased demand in all markets,

The 2000 increase was mainly attributable to the formation of the
wireless joint venture in April 2000, as well as increased capital
expenditures to support the increasing demand for wireless
services.

Minority Interest
The increases in minority interest in 2001 and 2000 were princi-
pally due to the increased income of the wireless joint venture and
the significant minority interest attributable to Vodafone beginning
in April 2000.

I International

Our International segment includes international wireline and wire-
less telecommunication operations, investments and management
contracts in the Americas, Europe, Asia and the Pacific. Our
consolidated international investments as of December 31, 2001
included Grupo lusacell (Iusaceli) (Mexico), CODETEL (Dominican
Republic), CTI Holdings, SA (CTI) (Argentina), Micronesian
Telecommunications Corporation (Northern Mariana Islands) and
Global Solutions Inc. Our international investments in which we
have a less than controlling interest are accounted for on either
the cost or equity method.

Highlights
International adjusted net income grew $225 million, or 30.7%, in
2001 and $115 million, or 18,6%, in 2000. This growth was aided
by the continued worldwide demand for wireless services. The
number of proportionate internationaf wireless customers served
by Verizon investments increased 1.8 million in 2001 to 9.6 million.

On January 25, 2002, Verizon exercised its option to purchase an
additional 12 % of Telecomunicaciones de Puerto Rico, Inc.
(TELPRI) common stock from the government of Puerto Rico.
Verizon obtained the option as part of the March 1999 TELPRI
privatization, Accordingly, we now hold 52% of TELPRI stock, up
from 40% and will begin consolidating TELPRI in 2002.

On June 6, 2001, we exercised an option to exchange 15 million
shares in FLAG Telecom Holdings ltd, (FLAG) for shares in TyCom
Ltd., which were subsequently exchanged for Tyeo International
Ltd. shares. As a result of this transaction, our interest in FLAG
declined from 29.8% to 18.6%, and the investment is now
accounted for on a cost basis.

In February 2001, Verizon launched an initiative designed to
expand our presence in the carrier-and large business market. The
new business unit, Global Solutions, will offer a primarily facilities
based network which connects commercial centers around the
world and provides an array of voice, data and Internet services.
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(', (dollars in mUlions)

Years Ended December 31, "I ... 2000 1999

Results of Operations-Adjusted Basis
Operating Revenues
Wireless services $ 1,358 $ 1.216 $ 974
Wireline and other services 979 758 740

2,337 1.976 1.714
Operatin9 Expenses
Operations and support 1,622 1.359 1.195
Depreciation and amortization 422 355 264

2,044 1.714 1.459
Operating Income $ 293 $ 262 $ 255
Equity in Income From

Unconsolidated Businesses $ 919 $ 872 $ 547
Adjusted Net Income $ 958 $ 733 $ 618

The revenues and operating expenses for the International
segment exclude QuebecTel, which was deconsolidated in the
second quarter of 2000. QuebecTel's net results for all periods are
included in Equity in Income From Unconsolidated Businesses.

Operating Revenues
Revenues earned from our international businesses grew by $361
million, or 18.3%, in 2001 and by $262 million. or 15.3%, in 2000.
The increase in wireless revenues was primarily due to the
increase in wireless subscribers of consolidated subsidiaries.
ell's Buenos Aires wireless operations, which commenced
commercial operations in the second quarter of 2000, contributed
$108 million to the 2001 year over year wireless revenue increase.
Revenues generated by Global Solutions, which began its opera-
tions in the first quarter of 2001, also contributed to the increase
in wireline and other services in 2001.

Operating Expenses
Operations and Support
Operations and support expenses, which represent employee
costs and other operating expenses, increased by $263 million, or
19.4%, in 2001 and by $164 million, or 13.7%, in 2000. The higher
costs in 2001 were primarily generated by the Global Solutions
start-up and its continued expansion throughout 2001. In addition,
C1I's Buenos Aires wireless operations contributed to higher costs
in both years.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization expense increased by $67 million,
or 18.9%, in 2001 and by $91 million, or 34.5%, in 2000. The
increase in both years was attributable to the capital expenditures
necessary to support the growth in cellular subscribers and
CODETEL's wireline customers. lhe build-out of Cll's Buenos
Aires wireless operations also contributed to the increased depre-
ciation for both years.

,-,.,

Equity in Income From Unconsolidated Businesses
Equity in income from unconsolidated businesses increased by
$247 million, or 36.8%, in 2001 and by $125 million, or 22.9%, in
2000. The increase in 2001 was primarily due to improved opera-
tional growth at Omnitel Pronto Italia S.p.A. (Omnitel) and
Compania An6nima Nacional lelefonos de Venezuela (CANTV).

Although CANTV's historical operational performance has
improved, economic and political instability in Venezuela has had
an adverse effect on CANTV's operations. This instability, along
with significant devaluation of the currency that occurred subse-
quent to the government's recent decision to allow the currency to
float freely, may impact our investment in CANTY if these condi-
tions continue.

The increase in 2000 was primarily due to strong subscriber
growth at Taiwan Cellular Corporation and Omnitel and a full
twelve months of operations at TELPRI in 2000, as well as the
cessation of recording equity losses from our investment in
BayanTel, a Philippines-based telecommunications company.
These increases in 2000 were partially offset by lower results at
CANTV driven by the weakened Venezuelan economy and
delayed tariff increases, as well as lower income from Telecom
Corporation of New Zealand Limited (TCNZ) driven by a change
from the equity to cost method of accounting and a reduction in
the TCNZ dividend payout ratio.

I Information Services

Our Information Services segment consists of our domestic and
international publishing businesses, including print and electronic
directories and Internet-based shopping gUides, as well as website
creation and other electronic commerce services. Our directory
business uses the publication date method for recognizing
revenues. Under that method, costs and advertising revenues
associated with the pUblication of a directory are recognized when
the directory is distributed. This segment has operations principally
in North America, Europe and Latin America.

Years Ended December 31. g.l... (dollars In millions)

2000 1999

Results of Operations-Adjusted Basis
Operating Revenues
Information S6IVices $ 4.313 $ 4,144 $ 4,066

Operating Expenses
Operations and support 1,961 2,026 2,007
Depreciation and amortization 79 74 76

2,040 2,100 2,063
Operating Income $ 2,273 $ 2,044 $ 2,003

Adjusted Net Income $ 1,352 $ 1,238 $ 1,211

Operating Revenues
Operating revenues from our Information Services segment
increased $169 million, or 4.1 %. in 2001. The 2001 revenue
increase was due primarily to growth in directory advertising
revenues and extension revenues, continued growth of our
Internet directory service, SuperPages.com®. and increased
revenue from the 2001 acquisition of TELUS Corporation's
(TELUS) advertising services business in Canada, offset by reduc-
tions in affiliated revenues from Domestic Telecom.

Operating revenues from our Information Services segment
Improved by $58 million, or 1.4%, in 2000. The 2000 revenue
increases were primarily generated by growth in print directory
advertising revenue and expansion of our Internet directory service,
SuperPages.com@, offset by reductions in affiliated revenues from
Domestic Telecom.
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Operating Expenses
In 2001, total operating expenses decreased $60 million. or 2.9%.
largely due to the execution of cost reduction initiatives and
merger synergies.

In 2000, total operating expenses increased $17 million, or 0.8%.
from the corresponding period in 1999. Cost control programs
related to directory publishing limited expense increases in 2000.

SPECIAL ITEMS

Special items generally represent revenues and gains as well as
expenses and losses that are nonrecurring and/or non-operational
in nature. Several of these special items include impairment
losses. These impairment losses were determined in accordance
with our policy of comparing the fair value of the asset with its
carrying value. The fair value is determined by quoted market
prices, if available, or by estimates of future cash flows.

These special items are not considered in assessing operational
performance, either at the segment level, or for the consolidated
company. However, they are included in our reported results. This
section provides a detailed description of these special items.

I Completion of Mergers

In June 2000, Bell Atlantic Corporation and GTE Corporation
completed a merger under a definitive merger agreement dated as
of July 27. 1998 and began doing business as Verizon
Communications.

The following table summarizes the pretax charges incurred for
the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger. Amounts for 2001 and 2000 pertain
to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger. Transition costs for 1999 perlain
to the Bell Atlantic-NYNEX merger, which was completed in
August 1997.

(dollars in mililoos)

Years Ended December 31, Stlti' 2000 1999
Direct Incremental Costs
Compensation arrangements $ $ 210 $
Professional services 161
Shareowner-related 35
Registration, regulatory and other 66
Total Direct Incremental Costs 472

Employee Severance Costs 584

Transition Costs
Systems modifications 401 99 186
Branding 112 240 1
Relocation. training and other 526 355 18
Total Transition Costs 1,039 694 205
Total Merger-Related Costs $ 1,039 $ 1,750 $ 205

Merger-Related Costs
Direct Incremental Costs
Direct incremental costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger of
$472 million ($378 million after-tax. or $.14 per diluted share)

r'- include compensation, professional services and other costs.
Compensation includes retention payments to employees that
were contingent on the close of the merger and payments to
employees to satisfy contractual obligations triggered by the

changes in control. Professional services include investment
banking, legal, accounting, consulting and other advisory fees
incurred to obtain federal and state regulatory approvals and take
other actions necessary to complete the merger. Other includes
costs incurred to obtain shareholder approval of the merger, regis-
ter securities and communicate with shareholders. employees and
regulatory authorities regarding merger issues.

Employee Severance Costs
Employee severance costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger
of $584 million ($371 million after-tax, or $.14 per diiuted share) as
recorded under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 112. "Employers' Accounting for Postemployment
Benefits, ~represent the benefit costs for the separation of approx-
imately 5,500 management employees who were entitled to
benefits under pre-existing separation plans, as well as an accrual
for ongoing SFAS No. 112 obligations for GTE employees. Of
these employees, approximately 5,200 were located in the United
States and approximately 300 were located at various interna-
tional locations. The separations either have or are expected to
occur as a result of consolidations and process enhancements
within our operating segments. The remaining severance liability
under this program as of December 31, 2001 is $220 minion.

Transition Costs
In addition to the direct incremental merger-related and severance
costs discussed above, we expect to incur a total of approxi-
mately $2 billion of transition costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE
merger and the formation of the wireless joint venture. These
costs will be incurred to integrate systems, consolidate real
estate, and relocate employees. They also include approximately
$500 million for advertising and other costs to establish the
Verizon brand. For 2001 and 2000, transition costs related to the
Bell Atlantic-GTE merger and the formation of the wireless joint
venture were $1,039 million ($578 million after taxes and minority
interest, or $.21 per diiuted share) and $694 million ($316 million
after taxes and minority interest, or $.12 per diluted share).
respectively.

In connection with the Bell Atlantic-NYNEX merger. we recorded
transition costs similar in nature to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger
transition costs of $205 million ($126 million after-tax. or $.05 per
diluted share) in 1999.

I Sales of Assets, Net

During 2001. we recognized net losses in operations related to
sales of assets, impairments of assets held for sale and other
charges. During 2000 and 1999. we recognized net gains related
to sales of assets and impairments of assets held for sale. These
net gains and losses are summarized as follows:

Years Ended
December 31. 2000

(dollars in millions)

19992001

Pretax After-tax Pretax After-tax Pretax After~tax
Wireline property

sales
Wireless overlap

sales
Other, net

$ - $ - $3,051 $1,856 $ - $

(92) (80) 1,922
(258) (166) 11,180)

1,156
11,025) 1,379 819

$ (350) $ (226) $ 3,793 $1,987 $1,379 $ 819
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As required, gains on sales of wireless overlap properties that
occurred prior to the closing of the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger are
included in operating income and in the table above. Gains on sales
of significant wireless overlap properties that occurred after the Bell
Atlantic-GTE merger are classified as extraordinary items. See
"Extraordinary Items" below for gains on sales of significant wire-
less overlap properlies subsequent to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger.

Wireline Property Sales
During 1998, GTE committed to sell approximately 1.6 million
nonstrategic domestic access lines. During 2000, access line
sales generated combined cash proceeds of approximately
$4,903 million and $125 million in convertible preferred stock. The
pretax gain on the sales was $3,051 million ($1,856 million after-
tax, or $.68 per diluted share).

Wireless Overlap Safes
A U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) consent decree issued on
December 6, 1999 required GTE Wireless, Bell Atlantic Mobile,
Vodafone and PrimaCo to resolve a number of wireless market
overlaps in order to complete the wireless joint venture and the
Bell Atlantic-GTE merger. As a result, during April 2000 we
completed a transaction with ALLTEL Corporation that provided
for the exchange of former Bell Atlantic Mobile and GTE Wireless
markets for several of ALLTEL's wireless markets. These
exchanges were accounted for as purchase business combina-
tions and resulted in combined pretax gains of $1,922 million
($1,156 million after-tax, or $.42 per diluted share).

During 2001, we recorded a pretax gain of $80 million ($48 million
after-tax, or $.02 per diluted share) on the sale of the Cincinnati
market and a pretax loss of $172 million ($108 million after-tax, or
$.04 per diluted share) related to the sale of the Chicago market.

Other Transactions
During 2001, we recorded charges totaling $258 million pretax
($166 million after-tax, or $.06 per diluted share) related to exiting
several businesses, including our video business and some leasing
activities.

During 2000, we recorded charges related to the write-down of
some impaired assets and other charges of $1,180 million pretax
($1,025 million after-tax, or $.37 per diluted share), as follows:

Year Ended December 31. 2000

(dollars In millions, except per share amounts)
Per diluted

After-tax sharePretax
Airfone and Video impairment
CLEC impairment
Real estate consolidation and other

merger-related charges
Deferred taxes on contribution to

the wireless joint venture
Other, net

$ $ 362 $ .13
218 .08

566
334

220 142

60
249
54

$ 1,180 $ 1,025 $

In connection with our decisions to exit the video business and
Airfone (a company involved in air-to-ground communications), in
the second quarter of 2000 we recorded an impairment charge to
reduce the carrying value of these investments to their estimated
net realizable value.

The GLEe impairment primarily relates to the revaluation of assets
and the accrual of costs pertaining to some long-term contracts
due to strategic changes in our approach to offering bundled
services both in and out of franchise areas. The revised approach
to providing such services resulted, in part, from post-merger inte-
gration activities and acquisitions.

The real estate consolidation and other merger-related charges
include the revaluation of assets and the accrual of costs to exit
leased facilities that are in excess of our needs as the result of
post-merger integration activities.

The deferred tax charge is non-cash and was recorded as the
result of the contribution in July 2000 of the GTE Wireless assets
to Verizon Wireless based on the differences between the book
and tax bases of assets contributed.

During 1999, we sold substantially all of GTE Government
Systems to General Dynamics Corporation for $1 billion in cash.
The pretax gain on the sale was $754 million ($445 million after-
tax, or $.16 per diluted share). In addition, during 1999, we
recorded a net pretax gain of $112 million ($66 million after-tax, or
$.02 per diluted share), primarily associated with the sale of the
remaining major division of GTE Government Systems to
DynGorp. The 1999 year-to-date net gains for asset sales also
include a pretax gain of $513 million ($308 million after-tax, or
$.11 per diluted share) associated with the merger of BC TELE-
COM Inc. and TELUS during the first quarter of 1999.

Severance/Retirement Enhancement Costs and
Settlement Gains

.05

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded a special charge of
$1,613 million ($1,001 million after-tax, or $.37 per diluted share)
primarily associated with employee severance costs and related
pension enhancements. The charge included severance and
reiated benefits of $765 million ($477 miilion after-tax, or $.18 per
diluted share), as recorded under SFAS No. 112, for the voiuntary
and involuntary separation of approximately 10,000 employees. We
also included a charge of $848 miilion ($524 million after-tax, or
$.19 per diluted share) recorded in accordance w~h SFAS No. 88,
"Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits," which
includes pension enhancements of $813 million ($504 million after-
tax, or $.18 per diluted share) and pension settlement losses of
$35 miilion ($20 million after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share), relating
to lump sum settlements of some existing pension obligations.

In 2000 and 1999, we recorded pension settlement gains of $911
million and $663 million pretax ($564 miilion and $410 million
after-tax, or $.21 and $.15 per diluted share), respectively, in
accordance with SFAS No. 88. They relate to some settlements of
pension obiigations for former GTE employees through direct
payment, the purchase of annuities or otherwise.

.09

.02

.37

Pretax pension income, net of postretirement benefit costs,
recorded by Verizon in 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $1,320 miilion,
$3,095 million and $1,440 million, respectively. Adjusting for the
special items above, pretax pension income, net of postretirement
benefit costs, was $2,168 million, $2,184 million and $777 million
in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 2000, after
adjusting for the special items, is primarily the result of higher
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returns on plan assets and actuarial gains. See Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements for additional information about
our pension plans, accounting for defined benefit pension plans
and significant actuarial assumptions. as well as changes in
those assumptions.

I Loss/IGain) on Securities

We continually evaluate our investments in securities for impair-
ment due to declines in market value considered to be other than
temporary. That evaluation includes, in addition to persistent,
declining stock prices, general economic and company-specific
evaluations. In the event of a determination that a decline in
market value is other than temporary, a charge to earnings is
recorded for the loss and a new cost basis in the investment is
established.

Prior to the second quarter of 2001, we considered the declines in
the market values of our investments in securities to be tempo-
rary, due principally to the overall weakness in the securities
markets as well as telecommunications sector share prices.
However, included in our results for 2001 is the recognition of
pretax losses recorded in June 2001 and December 2001 totaling
$4,686 million ($3,607 million after-tax, or $1.32 diluted loss per
share) primarily relating to our investments in Cable & Wireless pic
(C&W), NTL Incorporated (Nll.) and Metromedia Fiber Network,
Inc. (MFN). We determined, through the evaluation described
above, that market value declines in these investments were
considered other than temporary.

During 2001, we also recorded a pretax charge of $1,251 million
($1,251 million after-tax, or $.46 per diluted share) related to our
cost investment in Genuity. The charge was necessary because
we determined that the decline in the estimated fair value of
Genuity was other than temporary. Our investment in Genuity is
not considered a marketable security given its unique characteris-
tics and the associated contingent conversion right (see ·Other
Factors That May Affect Future Results· for additional informa-
tion). However, we estimated fair value based on the number of
shares of Genuity we would own, assuming the exercise of the
contingent conversion right, and the market value of Genuity
common stock.

In May 2000, C&W, NTL and Cable & Wireless Communications
pic (CWC) completed a restructuring of CWC. Under the tenns of
the restructuring, CWC's consumer cable telephone, television
and Internet operations were separated from its corporate, busi-
ness, Internet protocol and wholesale operations. After the
separation, the consumer operations were acquired by NTL and
the other operations were acquired by caw. In connection with
the restructuring, we, as a shareholder in CWC, received shares in
the two acquiring companies, representing approximately 9.1% of
the NTL shares outstanding at the time and approximately 4.6%
of the caw shares outstanding at the time. Our exchange of ewe
shares for caw and NTL shares resulted in the recognition of a
non-cash pretax gain of $3,088 million ($1,941 million after-tax, or
$.71 per diluted share) in Equity in Income (Loss) From
Unconsolidated Businesses in the consolidated statements of
income and a corresponding increase in the cost basis of the
shares received.

I Mark-ta-Market Adjustment - Financial Instruments

During 2001, we began recording mark-to-market adjustments in
earnings relating to some of our financial instruments in accor-
dance with newly effective accounting rules on derivative financial
instruments. Mark-to-market losses of $182 million ($179 million
after taxes and minority interest, or $.07 per diluted share) were
recorded in 2001 due primarily to the change in the fair value of
the MFN debt conversion option.

In 2000, we recorded a gain on a mark-to-market adjustment of
$664 million ($431 million after-tax, or $.16 per diluted share)
related to our $3,180 million of notes which are exchangeable into
shares of e&W and NTL. Prior to the reorganization of cwe in
May 2000, these notes were exchangeable into shares of ewc. In
1999, we recorded a loss on a mark-to-market adjustment of
$664 million ($432 million after-tax, or $.16 per diluted share)
related to these notes. These mark-to-market adjustments are
non-cash, non-operational transactions that result in either an
increase or decrease in the carrying value of the debt obligation
and a charge or credit to income. The mark-to-market adjust-
ments are required because the carrying value of the notes is
indexed to the fair market value of caw's and NTL's common
stock. If the combined fair value of the caw and NTL common
stock declines, our debt obligation is reduced (but not to less than
its amortized carrying value) and income is increased. If the
combined fair value of the caw and NTL common stock
increases, our debt obligation increases and income is decreased.
The ewe exchangeable notes may be exchanged beginning in
July 2002.

I Genulty Loss

In accordance with the provisions of an FCC order in June 2000,
Genuity, fonnerly a wholly owned subsidiary of GTE, sold in a
public offering 174 million of its Class A common shares, repre-
senting 100% of the issued and outstanding Class A common
stock and 90.5% of the overall voting eqUity in Genuity. GTE
retained 100% of Genuity's Class B common stock, which
currently represents 8.2% of the voting equity in Genuity and
contains a contingent conversion feature. A complete description
of the circumstances in which the conversion feature can
be exercised is included in ·Other Factors That May Affect
Future Results."

In accordance with provisions of the FCC order, the sale trans-
ferred ownership and control of Genuity to the Class A common
stockholders and, accordingly, we deconsolidated our investment
in Genuity on June 30, 2000 and are accounting for our invest-
ment in Genuity using the cost method. Our accounting policy
concerning the method of accounting applied to investments
(consolidation, equity or cost) involves an evaluation of all signifi-
cant terms of the investments that explicitly grant or suggest
evidence of control or influence over the operations of the entity in
which we have invested. Where control is determined, we consoli-
date the investment. If we determine that we have significant
influence over the operating and financial policies of an entity in
which we have invested, we apply the eqUity method. We apply
the cost method in situations where we determine that we do not
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have significant influence, such as our investment in Genuity. As a
result, Genuity's revenues and expenses. as well as changes in
balance sheet accounts and cash flows subsequent to June 30,
2000 are no longer included in our consolidated financial results.
For comparability, we have adjusted the reported results for all
periods prior to June 30, 2000 to exclude the results of Genuity.
The after-tax losses were $281 million (or $.10 per diluted share) in
2000 and $325 miilion (or $.12 per diluted share) in 1999.

I International Restructuring

In 2001, we recorded a pretax charge of $672 million ($663 million
after-tax. or $.24 per diluted share) primarily relating to our invest-
ment in CTI, our cellular subsidiary in Argentina. Given the current
status of the Argentinean economy, the recent devaluation of the
Argentinean peso as well as future economic prospects, including
a worsening of the recession, we recorded an estimated loss of
$637 million ($637 million after-tax, or $.23 per diluted share)
based on CTl's current financial position and revised expected
results of operations. This loss was an estimation since the
Argentinean economy deteriorated very rapidly at year-end and is
continuing to reflect instability. This estimated loss may not be
sufficient when our assessment of the economic impact on CTI,
as well as the structure and nature of our continuing involvement
in CTI, is completed. We also recorded a loss of $35 million ($26
million after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share) related to international
losses.

In 2000, we recorded a pretax charge of $50 million ($50 million
after-tax, or $.02 per diluted share) associated with our share of
costs incurred at two of our international equity investees to
complete employee separation programs.

I Wireless Joint Venture

On April 3, 2000, Verizon and Vodafone consummated the previ-
ously announced agreement to combine U.S. wireless and paging
operations. In July 2000, following the closing of the Bell Atlantic-
GTE merger, interests in GTE's U.S. wireless operations were
contributed to Verizon Wireless. As a result, Verizon owns an
economic interest of 55% and Vodafone owns an economic inter-
est of 45% in the wireless joint venture. Adjusted results of
operations for 1999 reflect the impact of the wireless joint venture
for the comparable period in 1999 so that the financial information
is presented on a comparable basis with 2000.

I Other Charges and Special Items

Other charges and special items recorded during 2001 include
asset impairments related to property sales and facility consolida-
tion of $151 million ($95 million after-tax, or $.03 per diluted share).

Other charges and special items recorded during 2000 included
the write-off of our investment in NorthPoint Communications
Corp. (NorthPoint) of $155 million ($153 million after-tax, or $.06
per diluted share) as a result of the deterioration in NorthPoint's
business, operations and financial condition.

Other charges and special items in 2000 also induded the cost of
disposing or abandoning redundant assets and discontinued

system development projects in connection with the Bell Atlantic-
GTE merger of $287 million ($175 million after-tax, or $.06 per
diluted share), regulatory settlements of $98 million ($61 million
after-tax, or $.02 per diluted share) and other asset write-downs of
$416 million ($290 million after-tax, or $.11 per diluted share).

During 1999, we recorded a special charge of $192 million ($119
million after-tax, or $.04 per diluted share) primarily associated
with employee separation programs. The charge included separa-
tion and related benefits such as outplacement and benefit
continuation costs for approximately 3,000 employees. The
programs were completed in early April 1999, as planned, consis-
tent with the original cost estimates.

I Extraordinary Items

During 2001, we retired $726 million of debt prior to the stated
maturity date, resulting in a pretax extraordinary charge of $29
million ($19 miliion after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share).

In June 2000, we entered into a series of definitive sale agree-
ments to resolve service area conflictS' prohibited by FCC
regulations as a result of the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger (see "Sales
of Assets, Net - Wireless Overlap Sales"). These agreements,
which were pursuant to the consent decree issued for the merger,
enabled both the formation of Verizon Wireless and the closing of
the merger. Since the sales were required by the consent decree
and occurred after the merger, the gains on sales were recorded
net of taxes as Extraordinary Items in the consolidated statements
of income.

During the second half of 2000, we completed the sale of the
Richmond (former PrimeCo) wireless market to CFW
Communications Company in exchange for two wireless rural
service areas in Virginia and cash. The sale resulted in a pretax
gain of $184 miliion ($112 million after-tax, or $.04 per diluted
share). In addition, we completed the sales of the consolidated
markets in Washington and Texas and unconsolidated interests in
Texas (former GTE) to SBC Communications. The sales resulted in
a pretax gain of $886 miilion ($532 million after-tax, or $.1g per
diluted share). Also, we completed the sale of the San Diego
(former GTE) market to AT&T Wireless. The sale resulted in a
pretax gain of $304 million ($182 miliion after-tax, or $.07 per
diluted share). In 2000, we also completed the sale of the Houston
(former PrimeCo) wireless overlap market to AT&T Wireless, result-
ing in a pretax gain of $350 million ($213 million after-tax, or $.08
per diluted share).

During 2000, we retired $190 million of debt prior to the stated
maturity date, resulting in a pretax extraordinary charge of $19
million ($12 million after-tax, or less than $.01 per diluted share).

During the first quarter of 1999, we repurchased $338 million of
high-coupon debt through a public tender offer prior to stated
maturity, resulting in a pretax extraordinary charge of $46 million
($30 million after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share). During the second
quarter of 1999, we recorded a pretax ex1raordinary charge of $10
million ($6 million after-tax, or less than $.01 per diluted share)
associated with the early extinguishment of debentures of our
telephone subsidiaries.
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r-- Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change
\

Impact of SFAS No. 133
We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," and SFAS No.
138. "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain
Hedging Activities" on January 1, 2001. The impact to Verizon
pertains to the recognition of changes in the fair value of deriva-
tive instruments. Results for the year ended December 31, 2001
include the initial impact of adoption recorded as a cumulative
effect ot an accounting change of $182 million atter-tax (or $.07
per diluted share) in the first quarter of 2001. This cumulative
effect charge primarily relates to the change in the fair value of the
MFN debt conversion option prior to January 1, 2001.

Impact of SAB No. 101
We adopted the provisions of SAB No. 101 in the fourth quarter of
2000, retroactive to January 1, 2000, as required by the SEC. The
impact on our resutts pertains to the deferral of some non-recur-
ring fees, such as service activation and installation fees, and
associated incremental direct costs, and the recognition of those
revenues and costs over the expected tenn of the customer rela-
tionship. Our 2000 results include the initial impact of adoption
recorded as a cumulative effect of an accounting change of $40
million atter-tax (or $.01 per diluted share). Our 1999 adjusted
results reflect the impact of the new rules on revenue recognition
as a gain of $8 million atter-tax (or less than $.01 per diluted
share), had the rules been effective January 1, 1999.

r

Special items are reflected in our consolidated statements of
income for each period as follows:

(dollarsIn millions)
Years Ended December 31, .1.11 2000 1999
Operating Revenues
Operations sold $ $ (874) $ (1,390)
Deconsolidation of Genuity (529) (807)
Wireless joint venture 4,282
Other special items 119 (1,098)

(1,284) 987
Operations and Support

Expense
Operations sold 325 522
Bell Atlantic-GTE merger-related

costs 1,058
Merger transition costs 1,lXl9 894 205
Severance/retirement

enhancement costs and
settlement gains 1,596 (911) (683)

Deconsotidation of Genuity 829 1,123
International restructuring 672
Wireless joint venture (2,695)
Other special items 219 639 1,278

Depreciation and Amortization
Operations sold 19 46
Deconsolidation of Genuity 112 166
Wireless joint venture (1,548)
Other special items 3

Sales of Assets, Net 350 (3,793) (1,379)
3,876 (2,311) (1,956)

Operating Income Impact of
Operations Sold 530 822

Equity in (Income) Loss From
Unconsolidated Businesses

Loss/(gain) on securities 5,889 (3,088)
Wireless joint venture 108
Other special items 12 205 (4)

Other (Income) and Expense, Net
Total special items (5) 18 (7)

Interest Expense
Wireless joint venture (100)
Other special items 35 2

Minority Interest
Merger transition costs (loe} (204)
Wireless joint venture (379)

Mark-to-Market Adjustment-
Financial Instruments 182 (664) 664

Total Specialltems-Pretax 9,_ (5,479) (850)
Tax effect of special items and

other tax-retated items (2,226) 2,831 449
Total Special ttems-After- Tax 7,eoo (2,848) (401)
Extraordinary Items, Net of Tax 19 (1,027) 36
Cumulative Effect of

Accounting Change, Net of Tax 182 40
Redemption of Subsidiary

Preferred Stock 10
Total Special Items $ 7,801 $ (3,825) $ (365)
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OTHER CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The following discussion of nonoperating items is based on the
amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements.

Other Income and (Expense), Net (dollars In millions)

Years Ended December 31, '-It" 2000 1999
Interest income $ 383 $ 281 $ 101
Foreign exchange gains

(losses), net 32 (11) 11
Other, net 34 41 31
Total $ 449 $ 311 $ 143

The changes in other income and expense in 2001, compared to
2000, were primarily due to changes in interest income and
foreign exchange gains and losses. We recorded additional inter-
est income in 2001 primarily as a result of interest on several
notes receivable, higher average cash balances and the settle-
ment of tax-related matters. The change in interest income in
2000, compared to 1999, was the resu~ of higher levels of short-
term investments, income from our investment in MFN's
subordinated debt securities and the favorable settlement of a
tax-related matter.

Foreign exchange gains in 2001 and 2000 were driven primarily by
lusacell, which uses the Mexican peso as its functional currency.
Foreign exchange gains or losses are largely associated with the
U.S. dollar denominated debt issued by lusaeel!.

t"""'. Interest Expense (dollars In millions)

Years Ended December 31, 3m" 2000 1999

Total interest expense $ 3,369 $ 3,490 $ 2,616
Capitalized interest costs 368 230 146
Total interest costs on debt balances $ 3,737 $ 3,720 $ 2,762
Average debt outstanding $ 62,622 $ 61,987 $ 40,821
Effective interest rate 6.0% 7.2% 6.8%

The rise in interest costs on debt balances in both 2001 and 2000
was principally due to higher average debt levels. The increase in
debt levels for both years was mainly the result of funding for
capital expenditures primarily in our Domestic Telecom and
Domestic Wireless segments and the debt assumed by Verizon
Wireless in connection with the formation of Verizon Wireless. The
rise in interest costs in 2001 was partially offset by lower average
interest rates.

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars In millions)

2000 1999

Minority interest $ (622) $ (216) $ (159)

The increase in minority interest during 2001 compared to 2000 is
due to higher earnings at Verizon Wireless and the significant
minority interest attributable to Vodafone.

The increase in minority interest in 2000 was primarily due to the
impact of the wireless joint venture with Vodafone. This increase
was partially offset by the redemption in October 1999 and March
2000 of preferred securities issued by our subsidiary GTE
Delaware, L.P. and higher operating losses at lusacell and CTI.

Years Ended December 31, 2000 1999

Effective income tax rates 78.7% 39.3% 37.0%

The effective income tax rate is the provision for income taxes as
a percentage of income before the provision for income taxes. Our
effective income tax rate for 2001 is not consistent with 2000
primarily because tax benefits were not available on many of the
losses resulting from the other than temporary decline in market
value of several of our investments during 2001.

Our reported effective tax rate for 2000 was higher than 1999
primarily due to some merger-related costs for which no tax bene-
fits were recorded, the write-down of some investments for which
no tax benefits were recorded, deferred taxes recorded in connec-
tion with the contribution of GTE Wireless assets to Verizon
Wireless and higher state income taxes.

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the
effective income tax rate for each period is included in Note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL CONDITION

Years Ended December 31,
(dollars In millions)

2000 1999
Cash Flows Provided By (Used In)
Operating activities

Investing activities
Financing activities
Increase (Decrease) In Cash and

Cash EquiValents

$ 19,n3
(21,6261

2,075

$ 15,827
(16,055)

(1,048)

$ 17,017
(17,420)

1,732

$ 222 $ (1,276) $ 1,329

We use the net cash generated from our operations and from
external financing to fund capital expenditures for network expan-
sion and modernization, pay dividends, and invest in new
businesses. While current liabilities exceeded current assets at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, our sources of funds, primarily from
operations and, to the extent necessary, from readily available
external financing arrangements, are sufficient to meet ongoing
operating and investing requirements. We expect that capital
spending requirements will continue to be financed primarily
through internally generated funds. Additional debt or eqUity
financing will be needed to fund additional development activities
or to maintain our capital structure to ensure our financial fleXibility.

I Cash Flows Provided By Operating Activities

Our primary source of funds continues to be cash generated from
operations. In 2001, the increase in cash from operations
compared to 2000 primarily reflects improved results of opera-
tions before gains and losses on asset sales and the
mark-to-market adjustments of financial instruments, which are
adjusted in cash from operating activities, partially offset by an
increase in working capital requirements.

Decreased cash flow from operations during 2000 resulted
primarily from the payment of income taxes on the disposition of
businesses and assets. See "Cash Flows Used In Investing
Activities" for additional information on sales of businesses and
assets. Improved cash flows from operations during 1999 resulted
from growth in operating income, partially offset by changes in
assets and liabilities.
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In 1999, the change in assets and liabilities largely reflects growth
in customer accounts receivable and a reduction in employee
benefit obligations primarily due to favorable investment returns
and changes in plan provisions and actuarial assumptions.

I Cash Flows Used In Investing Activities

Capital expenditures continue to be our primary use of capital
resources. We invested approximately $11,480 million in our
Domestic Telecom business in 2001, compared to $12,119 million
and $10,087 million in 2000 and 1999, respectively, to facilitate
the introduction of new products and services, enhance respon-
siveness to competitive challenges and increase the operating
efficiency and productivity of the network. We also invested
approximately $5,006 million in our Domestic Wireless business in
2001, compared to $4,322 million and $1,497 miliion, respectively,
in 2000 and 1999. The increase in 2001 and 2000 is primarily due
to the inclusion of both Vodafone and PrimeCo properties in
Verizon Wireless in April 2000, as well as increased capital spend-
ing in existing Bell Atlantic and GTE wireless properties.

Capital spending is expected to be approXimately $15 billion to
$16 billion in 2002.

We invested $3,142 million in acquisitions and investments in
businesses during 2001, including $1,691 million related to wire-
less licenses purchased in connection with an FCC auction (see
-Recent Developments - FCC Auction- for additional information),
$410 million for additional wireless spectrum purchased from
another telecommunications carrier and $194 million in wireless
properties. In addition, we invested $497 million to acquire the
directory business of TELUS. In 2000, we invested $2,247 miliion
in acquisitions and investments including apprOXimately $715
million in the equity of MFN and $1,028 million in wireless proper-
ties. In 1999, we invested $5,219 million in acquisitions and
investments including $3,250 million to acquire apprOXimately half
of the wireless properties of Ameritech Corporation, $635 million
to increase our ownership percentage in Omnitel from 19.7% to
23.1%, $374 miliion to fully acquire the cellular properties of
Frontier Cellular, $200 million in PrimeCo, $366 million for a 40%
interest in TELPRIand $120 million for the purchase of the wire-
less license in Buenos Aires, Argentina.

In 2001, we received cash proceeds on sales of businesses and
assets of $415 million, including cash proceeds of $200 million
and $215 million in connection with sales of our Cincinnati and
Chicago wireless overlap properties, respectively. In 2000, we
received cash proceeds on sales of businesses and assets of
$6,794 million, including gross cash proceeds of $4,903 million
from the sale of non-strategic access lines and $1,464 million
from overlap wireless properties, as well as $144 million from the
sale of CyberTrust. In 1999, we received cash proceeds on sales
of businesses and assets of $1,813 million, inciuding $1,196
million from the sale of a substantial portion of GTE Government
Systems and $612 million from the disposition of our remaining
investment in Viacom.

During 2000, we also invested $975 million in subordinated
convertible notes of MFN, in connection with our overall invest-
ment in MFN, as well as $45 million in OnePoint Communications
Corp. notes. The MFN notes were originally issued to be convert-

ible at our option, upon receipt of necessary government
approvals, into MFN common stock at a conversion price of $17
per share (after two-far-one stock split) or an additional 9.6% of
the equity of MFN. This investment completed a portion of our
preViously announced agreement, as amended, with MFN, which
included the acqUisition of apprOXimately $350 million of long-
term capacity in MFN's fiber optic networks, beginning in 1999
through 2002. Of the $350 million, $35 million was paid in
November 1999, $105 million was paid in October 2000 and $95
million was paid in 2001, and these amounts are included in net
cash provided by operating activities. However, in 2001 we rene-
gotiated several significant terms of our MFN investment and
commitments, in connection with a new financing arrangement.
We purchased an additional $50 million of subordinated convert-
ible notes, that are convertible into MFN common stock at a
conversion price of $.53 per share. This new financing arrange-
ment also repriced $500 million of the subordinated convertible
notes purchased in 2000 at a conversion price of $3 per share
(from $17 per share). Furthermore, the remaining obligations under
the long-term capacity agreement of $115 million will be satisfied
through purchases in the amount of $90 million in 2002, $10
million in 2003 and 2004, and $5 million in 2005.

Our short-term investments include principally cash equivalents
held in trust accounts for payment of employee benefits. In 2001,
2000 and 1999, we invested $2,002 million, $1,204 million and
$1,051 million, respectively, in short-term investments, primarily to
pre-fund health and welfare benefits. Proceeds from the sales of
all short-term investments, principally for the payment of these
benefits, were $1,595 million, $983 million and $954 million in the
years 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

In 2001, Other, net investing activities include loans to Genuity of
$1,150 million. In addition, we received a deposit of $191 million
related to a sale of telephone lines, $167 million in connection
with CANTV's share repurchase program and proceeds of $515
million related to prior year wireless asset sales. Also, Other, net
investing activities include capitalized non-network software of
$1,250 million, $1,044 million and $923 million in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectiveiy.

The loans to Genuity of $1,150 million are a part of an agreement
to provide up to $2.0 billion in financing to Genuity with a maturity
of 2005.

In addition, under the terms of an investment agreement,
Vodafone may require us or Verizon Wireless to purchase up to
$20 billion worth of its interest in Verizon Wireless between 2003
and 2007 at its then fair market value. The purchase of up to $10
biilion may be required during July 2003 or July 2004 and the
remainder during the following years.

I Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) financing Activities

The net cash proceeds from increases in our total debt during
2001 of $6,064 miilion was primarily due to the issuance of $7,002
million of long-term debt by Verizon Global Funding Corp.,
partially offset by repayments of $980 million of maturities of
corporate long-term debt. In addition, Verizon Wireless issued
$4,555 million of long-term debt and repaid $4,690 million of
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revolving loans, while Domestic Telecom incurred $2,303 million of
long-term debt, repaid $573 million of net short-term debt and
retired $1,430 million of long-term debt. In 2000, the net cash
proceeds from increases in our total debt of $5,058 million was
primarily due to the issuance of $5.500 million of long-term notes
issued by Verizon Global Funding. The increase in total debt was
also attributable to the issuance of $893 million of notes under a
medium-term note program, $657 million of financing transactions
of cellular assets, $398 million of long-term bank debt at Verizon
Wireless and an increase in other short-term borrowings, partially
offset by repayments of long-term debt. In 1999, we increased our
total debt (including capital lease obligations) by approximately
$6,592 million, primarily due to the issuance of $4,375 million of
long-term debt issued by GTE. Our debt balance at December 31,
1999 also included $456 million of additionai debt issued by
lusacell in 1999. These factors were partially offset by the use of
cash proceeds received from the disposition of our remaining
investment in Viacom. The pre-funding of employee benefit trusts
also contributed to the increase in debt levels in 2001, 2000 and
1999. Additionally, the purchases of shares to fund employee
stock option exercises contributed to the increase in debt levels in
2000 and 1999.

Our debt to equity ratio was 66.4% at December 31,2001,
compared to 62.4% at December 31, 2000.

As of December 31,2001, we had approximately $7.9 billion of
unused bank lines of credit and $449 million in bank borrowings
outstanding. As of December 31, 2001, our telephone and financ-
ing subsidiaries had shelf registrations for the issuance of up to
$11.9 billion of unsecured debt securities. The debt securities of
our telephone and financing subsidiaries continue to be accorded
high ratings by primary rating agencies. However, in April 2001,
Moody's Investors Service (Moody's) revised our credit rating
outlook from stable to negative. Moody's cited concern about our
ability to complete an initial public offering (IPO) of Verizon
Wireless in a timely fashion in order to pay for the anticipated FCC
spectrum auction purchases of $8.8 billion (see ·Other Factors
That May Affect Future Results - FCC Auction· for additional
information on the current status of the spectrum purchases). A
change in an outlook does not necessarily signal a rating down-
grade but rather highlights an issue whose final resolution may
result in placing a company on review for possible downgrade.

As in prior years, dividend payments were a significant use of
capital resources. We determine the appropriateness of the level
of our dividend payments on a periodic basis by considering such
factors as long-term growth opportunities, internal cash require-
ments, and the expectations of our shareowners. In 2001, we
declared quarteriy cash dividends of $.385 per share. In the first,
third and fourth quarters of 2000, we announced a quarterly cash
dividend of $.385 per share. In the second quarter of 2000, we
announced two separate pro rata dividends to ensure that the
respective shareowners of Bell Atlantic and GTE received divi-
dends at an appropriate rate. In 1999, we declared quarterly cash
dividends of $.385 per share.

In 2001 and 2000, common stock repurchases were primarily the
result of the two-year share buyback program approved by the
Board of Directors in March 2000 and repurchase of GTE common

stock. In 2001 and 2000, .4 million and 35.1 million Verizon
common shares were repurchased, respectively. In January 2002,
the Board of Directors approved an extension of the existing buy-
back program to February 2004. In August 1999, GTE announced
the initiation of a share repurchase program to offset shares
issued under its employee-benefit and dividend-reinvestment
programs. Under the program, we repurchased approximately
17.7 million shares of GTE common stock in 1999, and completed
the program with the purchase of an additional 8.4 million shares
valued at approximately $600 million through February 2000.

I Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2001 totaled $979
million, a $222 million increase over cash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2000 of $757 million. The December 31, 2000
balance decreased by $1,276 million compared to 1999. This
change is primarily attributable to the increase in cash at December
31, 1999 for the anticipated funding requirements in early 2000 for
our investment in MFN, which occurred in March 2000.

I Leasing Arrangements

We are the lessor in leveraged and direct financing lease agree-
ments under which commercial aircraft and power generating
facilities, which comprise the majority of the portfolio, along with
industrial equipment, real estate property, telecommunications
and other equipment are leased for remaining terms of 1 to 46
years as of December 31, 2001. Minimum lease payments receiv-
able represent unpaid rentals, less principal and interest on
third-party nonrecourse debt relating to leveraged lease transac-
tions. Since we have no general liability for this debt, which holds
a senior security interest in the leased equipment and rentals, the
related principal and interest have been offset against the mini-
mum lease payments receivable in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. All recourse debt is reflected in
our consolidated balance sheets.

I Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commibnents

The following table provides a summary of our contractual oblig-
ations and commercial commitments. Additional detail about
these items is included in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

(dollars In milHons)
Payments Due by Period

Contractual less than 1-3 4-5 After 5
Obfigations Total 1 year years years years

long·term debt $51,215 $5.787 $11.322 $10,028 $24.078
Capital lease

obligations 279 50 113 39 77
Operating leases 5,477 723 1,267 1,261 2,226
Other long-term

obligations 115 90 20 5
Total contractual

cash obligations $57,086 $6,650 $12,722 $11,333 $26,381
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MARKET RISK

We are exposed to various types of market risk in the normal
course of our business. including the impact of interest rate
changes, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, changes in
equity investment prices and changes in corporate tax rates. We
employ risk management strategies using a variety of derivatives,
including interest rate swap agreements, interest rate caps and
floors, foreign currency forwards and options. equity options and
basis swap agreements. We do not hold derivatives for trading
purposes.

It is our general policy to enter into interest rate, foreign currency
and other derivative transactions only to the extent necessary to
achieve our desired objectives in limiting our exposures to the
various market risks. Our objectives include maintaining a mix of
fixed and variable rate debt to lower borrowing costs within
reasonable risk parameters and to protect against earnings and
cash flow volatility resulting from changes in market conditions.
We do not hedge our market risk exposure in a manner that would
completely eliminate the effect of changes in interest rates, equity
prices and foreign exchange rates on our earnings. While we do
not expect that our liquidity and cash flows will be materially
affected by these risk management strategies, our net income
may be materially affected by market risks associated with the
exchangeable notes discussed below.

I Exchangeable Notes

In 1998, we issued exchangeable notes as described in Notes 10
and 14 to the consolidated financial statements and discussed
earlier under "Mark-to-Market Adjustment - Financial Instruments."
These financial instruments expose us to market risk, including:

Equity price risk, because the notes are exchangeable into
shares that are traded on the open market and routinely fluctu-
ate in value.

Foreign exchange rate risk, because the notes are exchange-
able into shares that are denominated in a foreign currency.

Interest rate risk, because the notes carry fixed interest rates.

Periodically, equity price or foreign exchange rate movements
may require us to mark-to-market the exchangeable note liability
to reflect the increase or decrease in the current share price
compared to the established exchange price, resutting in a charge
or credit to income. The following sensitivity analysis measures
the effect on earnings and financial condition due to changes in
the underlying share prices of the TCNZ, caw and NTL stock.

At December 31, 2001, the exchange price for the TCNZ
shares (expressed as American Depositary Receipts) was
$44.93. The caw and NTL notes in the amount of $3,180
million are exchangeable into 128.4 million shares of C&W
stock and 24.5 million shares of NTL stock.

For each $1 increase in the value of the TCNZ shares above
the exchange price, our pretax earnings would be reduced by

,... approximately $55 million. Assuming the aggregate value of
the caw and NTL stocks exceeds the value of the debt liabil-
ity, each $1 increase in the value of the C&W shares
(expressed as American Depositary Receipts) or NTL shares

would reduce our pretax earnings by approximately $43 million
or $24 million, respectively. A subsequent decrease in the
value of these shares would correspondingly increase earn-
ings, but not to exceed the amount of any previous reduction
in earnings.

Our cash flows would not be affected by mark-to-market activ-
ity relating to the exchangeable notes.

If we decide to deliver shares in exchange for the notes, the
exchangeable note liability (including any mark-to-market
adjustments) will be eliminated and the investment will be
reduced by the fair market value of the related number of
shares delivered. Upon settlement, the excess of the liability
over the book value of the related shares delivered will be
recorded as a gain. We also have the option to settle these
liabilities with cash upon exchange.

Interest Rate Risk

The table that follows summarizes the fair values of our long-tenn
debt, interest rate derivatives and exchangeable notes as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000. The table also provides a sensitiv-
ity analysis of the estimated fair values of these financial
instruments assuming 100-basis-point upward and downward
parallel shifts in the yield curve. Our sensitivity analysis did not
include the fair values of our commercial paper and bank loans
because they are not significantly affected by changes in market
interest rates.

At December 31, 2001

(dollars In millions)
Fair Value Fair Value
assuming assuming

+100 basis -100 basis
point shift point shjftFair Value

LongMtenn debt and
interest rate derivatives

Exchangeable notes
Total

$ 45,736
5,618

$ 43,667
5,538

$ 47,973
5,786

$ 49,205$ 51,414 $ 53,759

At December 31, 2000
Long-tenn debt and

interest rate derivatives
Exchangeable notes
Total

$38,117
5,694

$ 36,309
5,556

$ 39,990
5.830

$ 41.667$ 43,611 $ 45.820
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r'" I Equity Risk

The fair values of some of our investments. primarily in common
stock. expose us to eqUity price risk. These investments arB
subject to changes in the market prices of the securities. As noted
earlier, the fair values of our exchangeable notes are also affected
by changes in equity price movements. The table that follows
summarizes the fair values of our investments and exchangeable
notes and provides a sensitivity analysis of the estimated fair
values of these financial instruments assuming a 10% increase or
decrease in equity prices,

At Decem_ 31. 2001 Fair Value

(dollars In millions)
FairValue FairValue

assuming 10% assuming 10%
decrease in increase in
equityprice equityprice

Equity price sensitive cost
investments, at fair value
and derivatives

Exchangeable notes
Total

$ 2,189
(5,678)

$ 2.008
(5,677)

$ 2.369
(5.680}

$ (3.489) $ (3.669) $ (3.311)

At December 31, 2000
Equity price sensitive cost

investments, at fair value
and derivatives

Exchangeable notes
Total

$ 4.715
(5.694)

$ 4.239
(5,604)

$ 5,191
(5,799)

$ (979) $ (1,365) $ (606)

r-, ! Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency for nearly all of our foreign operations is
the local currency. The translation of income statement and
balance sheet amounts of these entities into U.S. dollars are
recorded as cumulative translation adjustments, which are
included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss in our
consolidated balance sheets. At December 31, 2001, our primary
translation exposure was to the Mexican peso, Canadian dollar,
Italian lira, and beginning January 1, 2002. the Euro. We have not
hedged our accounting translation exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations relative to the carrying value of these investments,
except for $167 million in hedges which protect a portion of U.S,
dollar debt at lusacell from foreign currency fluctuations. In 2001,
2000 and 1999, our earnings were affected by foreign currency
gains or losses associated with the unhedged portion of U.S.
dollar denominated debt at lusacell.

Equity income from our international investments is affected by
exchange rate fluctuations when an equity investee has assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the investee's
functional currency. Several of our equity investees have assets
and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the investee's
functional currency, such as our investments in Venezuela,
Canada. the Philippines and Siovakia.

I Foreign Exchange Risk

The fair values of our foreign currency derivatives and investments
accounted for under the cost method are subject to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates. We use forward foreign currency exchange
contracts to offset foreign exchange gains and losses on British
pound and Japanese yen denominated debt obligations.

The table that follows summarizes the fair values of our foreign
currency derivatives, cost investments, and the exchangeable
notes as of December 31. 2001 and 2000. The table also provides
a sensitivity analysis of the estimated fair values of these financial
instruments assuming a 10% decrease and increase in the value
of the U.S. dollar against the various currencies to which we are
exposed. Our sensitivity analys\s does not include potential
changes in the value of our international investments accounted
for under the equity method. As of December 31, 2001. the carry-
ing value of our equity method international investments totaled
approximately $5.7 billion,

At December 31, 2001 Fair Value

(dollars In millions)
Fair Value Fair Value

assuming 10% assuming 10%
decrease increase

in US$ in US$
Foreign exchange sensitive

cost investments and foreign
currency derivatives

Exchangeable notes
Total

$ 1.433
(5.678)

$ 1,581
(5,880)

$ 1.316
(5,877)

$ (4,Q99) $ (4,361)$ (4,245)

At December 31, 2000
Foreign exchange sensitive

cost investments and foreign
currency derivatives

Exchangeable notes
Total

$ 4.585
(5,799)

$$ 4.159
(5,694)

3.818
(5,604)

$ (1,214) $$ (1,535) (1,786)

OTHER FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Genuily and Bell Atlantic - GTE Merger

Genuity, formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of GTE, operates a
tier-one interLATA Internet backbone and related data businesses.
The transition of Genuity to a public company was part of a
comprehensive proposal filed with the FCC on January 27. 2000,
to permit the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger to close by addressing
regulatory restrictions associated with Verizon's ability to provide
long distance and Internet-related data service offerings that GTE
had previously provided to consumers and businesses.

In accordance with the provisions of an FCC order, in June 2000
Genuity sold 174 million of its Class A common shares, represent-
ing 100% of the issued and outstanding Class A common stock
and 90.5% of the overall voting eqUity in Genuity. in an IPO, GTE
retained 100% of Genuity's Class B common stock, which
currently represents 8.2% of the voting equity in Genuity, as
permitted by the 1996 Act. Our investment also inc\udes a contin-
gent conversion right.

Our contingent conversion right currently permits us to increase
our ownership interest to as much as 79.6% of the total equity of
Genuity, representing 95.1 % of Genuity's total voting rights
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(before giving effect to outstanding options granted to Genuity
employees), if we eliminate the applicable restrictions of Section
271 of the 1996 Act as to 100% of the total telephone access
lines owned by Bell Atlantic in 1999 in its region. This option
expires if we do not eliminate these restrictions within five years of
the merger, sUbject to possible extension. If we eliminate Section
271 restrictions as to 95% of the former Bell Atlantic in-region
lines, we may require Genuity to reconfigure its operations in one
or more former Bell Atlantic in-region states where we have not
eliminated those restrictions in order to bring those operations
into compliance with Section 271. The FCC order also allows us
to transfer our Class B common stock to a disposition trustee for
sale to one or more third parties once we eliminate Section 271
restrictions on at least 50% of the fonner Bell Atlantic in-region
access lines. As of December 31, 2001, we have eliminated
Section 271 restrictions as to more than 50% of the former Bell
Atlantic in-region access lines.

The IPO transferred the majority ownership and control of Genuity
to the public shareholders and, accordingly, we deconsolidated
our investment in Genuity on June 30, 2000. In addition to the
transfer, we are also required to adhere to safeguards in the FCC's
order that prohibit us from exercising influence over Genuity's
operations. Therefore, we are accounting for our investment in
Genuity using the cost method.

Federal and state regulatory conditions to the merger also
included commitments to. among other things. promote competi-
tion and the widespread deployment of advanced services while
helping to ensure that consumers continue to receive high-quality,
low-cost telephone services. In some cases, there are significant
penalties associated with not meeting these commitments. The
cost of satisfying these commitments could have a significant
impact on net income in future periods. The pretax cost to begin
compliance with these conditions was approximately $200 million
in 2000 and approximately $300 million in 2001. We expect an
impact of $200 million to $300 million in 2002.

I Recent Developments

Verizon Wireless
FCC Auction
On January 29, 2001, the bidding phase of the FCC reauction of
1.9 GHz C and F block broadband Personal Communications
Services spectrum licenses, which began December 12, 2000,
officially ended. Verizon Wireless was the Winning bidder for 113
licenses. The total price of these licenses was $8,781 million,
$1,822 million of which has already been paid. Most of the
licenses that were reauctioned relate to spectrum that was previ-
ously licensed to NextWave Personal Communications Inc. and
NextWave Power Partners Inc. (collectively NextWave), which
have appealed to the federal courts the FCC's action canceling
NextWave's licenses and reclaiming the spectrum.

In a decision on June 22, 2001, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
D.C. Circuit ruled that the FCC's cancellation and repossession of
NextWave's licenses was unlawful. The FCC sought a stay of the
court's decision which was denied. The FCC subsequently rein-
stated NextWave's licenses, but it has neither returned Verizon
Wireless's payment on the NextWave licenses nor has it acknowl-
edged that the court's decision extinguished Verizon Wireless's
obligation to purchase the iicenses. On Oelober 19, 2001 the FCC
filed a petition with the U.S. Supreme Court to reverse the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit's decision. On March 4,
2002, the U.S. Supreme Court granted the FCC's petition and
agreed to hear the appeal.

Timing of Initial Public Offering
In November 2001, Verizon Wireless Inc. filed an amended regis-
tration statement with the SEC in connection with the proposed
IPO of its common stock. Since August 2000, when the Verizon
Wireless Inc. registration statement was initially filed with the SEC,
we have periodically reiterated that the IPO would occur when
market conditions are favorable.

Acquisition of Several Dobson's Wireless Operations
In November and December 2001. we announced that Verizon
Wireless signed definitive agreements to acqUire several of
Dobson Communications Corporation's (Dobson) wireless opera-
tions in California, Georgia, Ohio, Tennessee and Arizona. The
transactions closed in February 2002. The acquired Dobson prop-
erties serve a popUlation of approximately 1.2 million.

Sale of Access Lines
In July 2001. we announced that we were exploring the sale of 1.2
million access lines in Alabama, Kentucky and Missouri.

In October 2001, we agreed to sell all 675,000 of our switched
access telephone lines in Alabama and Missouri to CenturyTellnc.
for $2.2 billion. The sale must be approved by the Missouri public
service commission. the FCC and the DOJ. The Alabama public
service commission approved the sale in December 2001. We
expect to close the sale and transfer our operations to CenturyTel
during the second half of 2002.

Also in October 2001, we agreed to sell approximately 600,000
access lines in Kentucky to ALLTEL for $1.9 billion. The sale has
been approved by the Kentucky pUblic service commission, and
remains subject to approval by the FCC and the DOJ. We expect
to close the sale and transfer our operations to ALLTEL during the
second half of 2002.

I Regulatory and Competitive Trends

Competition and the Telecommunications Act of 1996
We face increasing competition in all areas of our business. The
1996 Act, regulatory and judicial actions and the development of
new technologies. products and services have created opportuni-
ties for alternative telecommunication service providers, many of
which are subject to fewer regulatory constraints. Current and
potential competitors in telecommunication services include long
distance companies, other local telephone companies, cable
companies. wireless service providers, foreign telecommunica-
tions providers, electric utilities. Internet service providers and
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other companies that offer network services. Many of these
companies have a strong market presence, brand recognition and
existing customer relationships, all of which contribute to intensi-
fying competition and may affect our future revenue growth.

We are unable to predict definitively the impact that the ongoing
changes in the telecommunications industry will ultimately have
on our business, results of operations. or financial condition. The
financial impact will depend on several factors. including the
timing, extent and success of competition in our markets. the
timing and outcome of various regulatory proceedings and any
appeals, and the timing, extent and success of our pursuit of new
opportunities resulting from the 1996 Act and technological
advances.

In-Region Long Distance
We offer long distance service nationwide, except in those states
served by the former Bell Atlantic telephone operations where we
have not yet received authority to offer long distance service
under the 1996 Act. Under the 1996 Act, our ability to offer in_
region long distance services in the states where the former Bell
Atlantic telephone subsidiaries operate as local exchange carriers
is largely dependent on satisfying specified requirements. The
requirements include a 14-point "competitive checklist" of steps
which we must take to help competitors offer local services
through resale, through purchase of unbundled network elements,
or by interconnecting their own networks to ours. We must also
demonstrate to the FCC that our entry into the in-region long
distance market would be in the public interest.

We now have authority to offer in-region long distance service in
five states in the former Bell Atlantic territory, accounting for
more than half of the lines served by the former Bell Atlantic. In
addition to its New York order released in December 1999, the
FCC released orders on April 16, 2001, July 23, 2001, September
19, 2001 and February 22, 2002 approving our applications tor
permission to enter the in-region long distance market in
Massachusetts, Connecticut, Pennsylvania and Rhode Island,
respectively. Both the Massachusetts and Pennsylvania orders
are currently on appeal to the U.S. Court of Appeals.

We have tiled applications with the FCC to offer long distance
service in New Jersey and Vermont. We expect the FCC to rule on
those applications by March 20, 2002 and April 17, 2002, respec-
tively. We have also filed state applications for support of
anticipated applications with the FCC for permission to enter the
in-region long distance market in New Hampshire, Maine and
Delaware. Third-party testing of our operations support systems is
in its final stages in Virginia, West Virginia, Maryland and the
District of Columbia.

FCC Regulation and Interstate Rates
Our telephone operations are SUbject to the jurisdiction of the
FCC with respect to interstate services and related matters. In
2001, the FCC continued to implement reforms to the interstate
access charge system and to implement the "universal service"
and other reqUirements of the 1996 Act.

Access Charges and Universal Service
On May 31, 2000, the FCC adopted the CALLS plan as a compre-
hensive five-year plan for regulation of interstate access charges.
The CALLS plan has three main components. First, ft establishes a
portable interstate access unrversal service support of $650 million
for the industry. This explicit support replaces implicit support
embedded in interstate access charges. Second, the plan simpli-
fies the patchwork of cornmon line charges into one subscriber line
charge (SLC) and provides for de-averaging of the SLC by zones
and class of customers in a manner that will not undermine
comparable and affordable universal service. Third, the plan sets
into place a mechanism to transition to a set target of $.0055 per
minute for switched access services. Once that target rate is
reached, local exchange carriers are no longer required to make
further annual price cap reductions to their switched access prices.
The annual reductions leading to the target rate, as well as annual
reductions for the subset of special access services that remain
subject to price cap regulation was set at 6.5% per year.

On September 10, 2001, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth
Circuit ruled on an appeal of the FCC order adopting the plan. The
court upheld the FCC on several challenges to the order, but
remanded two aspects of the decision back to the FCC on the
grounds that they lacked sufficient justification. The court
remanded back to the FCC for further consideration its decision
setting the annual reduction factor at 6.5% and the size of the
new universal service fund at $650 million. The entire plan (includ-
ing these elements) will continue in effect pending the FCC's
further consideration of its justification of these components.

As a result of tariff adjustments which became effective in
July 2001, approximately 80% of our access lines reached the
$0.0055 benchmark.

The FCC has adopted rules for special access services that
provide for pricing flexibility and Ultimately the removal of services
from price regulation when prescribed competitive thresholds are
met. In order to use these rules, carriers must forego the ability to
take advantage of provisions in the current rules that provide relief
in the event earnings fall below prescribed thresholds. In 2001 we
were authorized to remove special access and dedicated trans-
port services from price caps in 35 of the 57 Metropolitan
Stalistical Areas (MSAs) in the former Sell Atlantic terr~ory and in
three additional MSAs in the former GTE territory. In addition, the
FCC found that in 10 MSAs we have met the stricter standards to
remove special access connections to end-user customers from
price caps. We have an application pending that, if granted, would
remove special access services from price cap regulation in 16
additional MSAs.

In November 1999, the FCC adopted a new mechanism for
prOViding universal service support to high cost areas served by
large local telephone companies. This funding mechanism
provides additional support for local telephone services in several
states served by our telephone operations. This system has been
supplemented by the new FCC access charge plan described
above. On Juiy 31, 2001, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Tenth
Circuit reversed and remanded to the FCC for further proceed-
ings. The court concluded that the FCC had failed to adequalely
explain some aspects of its decision and had failed to address
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any need for a state universal service mechanism. The current
universal service mechanism remains in place pending the
outcome of any FCC review as a resutt of these appeals.

Unbundling of Network Elements
In November 1999, the FCC announced its decision selling forth
new unbundling requirements, eliminating elements that it had
previously required to be unbundled, limiting the obligation to
provide others and adding new elements. Appeals from this deci-
sion are pending.

In addition to the unbundling requirements released in November
1999, the FCC released an order in a separate proceeding in
December 1999, requiring incumbent local exchange companies
also to unbundle and provide to competitors the higher frequency
portion of their local loop. This provides competitors with the abil-
ity to provision data services on top of incumbent carriers' voice
services. Appeals from this order are also pending.

In July 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit
found that some aspects of the FCC's requirements for pricing
UNEs were inconsistent with the 1996 Act. In particular, it found
that the FCC was wrong to require incumbent carriers to base
these prices not on their real costs but on the imaginary costs of
the most efficient equipment and the most efficient network
configuration. This portion of the court's decision has been stayed
pending review by the U.S. Supreme Court. In addition, the court
upheld the FCC's decision that UNEs Should be priced based on a
forward-looking cost model rather than historical costs. The U.S.
Supreme Court currently has this case under review.

In December 2001, the FCC opened its triennial review of unbun-
dled network elements. This rulemaking reopens the question of
what network elements must be made available on an unbundled
basis under the 1996 Act and will revisit the unbundling decisions
described above. In this rulemaking, the FCC also will address
other pending issues relating to unbundled elements, including
the question of whether competing carriers may substitute combi-
nations of unbundled loops and transport for already competitive
special access services.

Compensation for Internet Traffic
On April 27, 2001, the FCC released an order addressing intercar-
rier compensation for dial-Up connections for Internet-bound
traffic. The FCC found that Internet-bound traffic is interstate and
SUbject to the FCC's jurisdiction. Moreover, the FCC again found
that Internet-bound traffic is not subject to reciprocal compensa-
tion under Section 251 (b)(5) of the 1996 Act. Instead, the FCC
established federal rates for this traffic that decline from $0.0015
to $0.0007 over a three-year period. The FCC order also sets caps
on the total minutes of this traffic that may be subject to any inter-
carrier compensation and requires that incumbent local exchange
carriers must offer to pay reciprocal compensation for local traffic
at the same rate as they are required to pay on Internet-bound
traffic. Several competing carriers and state regulators appealed
this order to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit. The
court denied a motion to stay the FCC order, and the order went
into effect. The appeal remains pending.

State Regulation
On January 28, 2002, the New York Public Service Commission
issued an order mandating reductions in the rates that Verizon
New York Inc. may charge its local exchange competitors for
access to unbundled network elements. Assuming current
volumes, the revenue impact of the reductions is estimated to be
$200 million per year, although this amount may change if
volumes change.

Verizon New York has separately been involved in proceedings
before the New York Public Service Commission relating to an
alternative regulation plan to replace and succeed the current
Perfonnance Regulation Plan, put in place in 1995. Under the new
two year plan, Verizon New York would be pennitted to exercise
rate fleXibility up to 3% of its total intrastate revenues annually, or
approximately $160 million.

OTHER MATTERS

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Business Combinations
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations," which applies to
business combinations occurring after June 30, 2001. SFAS No.
141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used and
includes guidance on the initiaJ recognition and measurement of
goodwill and other intangible assets acquired in the combination.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
In June 2001, the FASB also issued SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets," SFAS No. 142 no longer permits the
amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets.
Instead, these assets must be reviewed annually (or more
frequently under prescribed conditions) for impairment in accor-
dance with this statement. This impainnent test uses a fair value
approach rather than the undiscounted cash flows approach
previously required by SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-liVed Assets to Be
Disposed Of." The goodwill impairment test under SFAS No. 142
reqUires a two-step approach, which is performed at the reporting
unit level, as defined in SFAS No. 142. Step one identifies poten-
tial impairments by comparing the fair vaJue of the reporting unit
to its carrying amount. Step two, which is only performed if there
is a potential impairment, compares the carrying amount of the
reporting unit's goodwill to its implied value, as defined in SFAS
No. 142. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill
exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss
is recogniZed for an amount equal to that excess. The amortiza-
tion of goodwill included in our investments in eqUity investees will
also no longer be recorded upon adoption of the new rules.
Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives will continue to
be amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 144, -Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.·

We will adopt SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002. In accor-
dance with the standard, we are currently in the process of
performing the transitional goodwill impairment tests and evaluat-
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ing the impact of these tests on our results of operations and
financial position. Any impairment resulting from our initial appli-
cation of the standard will be recorded as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2002. We have
estimated the impact of no longer amortizing goodwill and intangi-
ble assets with indefinite lives. including wireless licenses, under
the new rules of SFAS No. 142 to be between approximately $.07
per share and $.14 per share. The range represents our continuing
analysis of intangible assets with indefinite lives and intangible
assets that do not have indefinite lives.

Asset Retirement Obligations
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations." This standard provides the
accounting for the cost of legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143 requires that
companies recognize the fair value of a liability for asset retire-
ment obligations in the period in which the obligations are
incurred and capitalize that amount as a part of the book value of
the long-lived asset. That cost is then depreciated over the
remaining life of the underlying long-lived asset We are required
to adopt SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003. We are currently
evaluating the impact this new standard will have on our future
results of operations or financial position.

r-.,

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Uved Assets
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144. This standard
supersedes SFAS No. 121 and the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 30, "Reporting the Results of
Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions" with regard to reporting the effects of a
disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS No. 144 establishes a
single accounting model for assets to be disposed of by sale and
addresses several SFAS No. 121 implementation issues. We are
required to adopt SFAS No. 144 effective January 1, 2002. We do
not expect the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 144 to have a
material effect on our results of operations or financial position.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-
LOOKING STATEMENTS

In this Management's Discussion and Analysis, and elsewhere in
this Annual Report, we have made forward-looking statements.
These statements are based on our estimates and assumptions
and are SUbject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking state-
ments include the information concerning our possible or
assumed Mure results of operations. Forward-looking statements
also include those preceded or followed by the words "antici-
pates," "believes," "estimates," "hopes" or similar expressions.
For those statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor
for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

The following important factors, along with those discussed else-
where in this Annual Report, could affect future results and could
cause those results to differ materially from those expressed in the
forward-looking statements:

the duration and extent of the current economic downturn;

materially adverse changes in economic conditions in the
markets served by us or by companies in which we have
substantial investments;

material changes in available technology;

an adverse change in the ratings afforded our debt securities
by nationally accredited ratings organizations;

the final outcome of federal, state and local regulatory initia-
tives and proceedings, inclUding arbitration proceedings, and
judicial review of those initiatives and proceedings, pertaining
to, among other matters, the terms of interconnection, access
charges, and unbundled network element and resale rates;

the extent, timing, success, and overall effects of competition
from others in the local telephone and toll service markets;

the timing and profitability of our entry and expansion in the
national long distance market;

our ability to satisfy regulatory merger conditions and obtain
combined company revenue enhancements and cost savings;

the profitability of our broadband operations;

the ability of Verizon Wireless to achieve revenue enhance-
ments and cost saVings, and obtain sufficient spectrum
resources;

the continuing financial needs of Genuity, our ability to convert
our ownership interest in Genuity into a controlling interest
consistent with regUlatory conditions, and Genuity's ensuing
profitability;

our ability to recover insurance proceeds relating to eqUipment
losses and other adverse financial impacts resutting from the
terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001; and

changes in our accounting assumptions that regUlatory agen-
cies, including the SEC, may require or that result from
changes in the accounting rules or their application, which
could result in an impact on earnings.
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We, the management of Verizon Communications Inc., are respon-
sible for the consolidated financial statements and the information
and representations contained in this report. The financial state-
ments have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles and include amounts based on manage-
ment's best estimates and judgments. Financial information
elsewhere in this report is consistent with that in the financial
statements.

Management has established and maintained a system of internal
control which is designed to provide reasonable assurance that
errors or irregularities that could be material to the financial state-
ments are prevented or would be detected within a timely period.
The system of internal control includes widely communicated
statements of policies and business practices, which are designed
to require all employees to maintain high ethical standards in the
conduct of our business. The internal controls are augmented by
organizational arrangements that provide for appropriate delega-
tion of authority and division of responsibility and by a program of
internal audits.

The 2001 and 2000 financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young LLp, independent accountants, and the 1999 finan-
cial statements have been audited by other auditors. Their audits
were conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and included an evaluation of our internal control struc-
ture and selective tests of transactions. The Report of
Independent Accountants follows this report.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is
composed solely of outside directors, meets periodically with the
independent accountants. management and internal auditors to
review accounting, auditing, internal controls, litigation and finan-
cial reporting matters. Both the internal auditors and the
independent accountants have free access to the Audit
Committee without management present.

Charles R. Lee
Chainnan of the Board and Co-Chief Executive Officer

\............ ~
IvanG.Seidenberg \
President and Co-Chief Executive Officer

~~~r+~
;-;rede~c: Salerno

Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

Lawrence R. Whitman
Senior Vice President and Controller
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To the Board of Directors and Shareowners of Verizon
Communications inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Verizon Communications Inc. and subsidiaries (Verizon) as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated state-
ments of income, cash flows and changes in shareowners'
investment for the years then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of Verizon's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. The financial statements of Verizon for the year ended
December 31, 1999 were audited by other audrtors whose reports
dated February 14, 2000 (except as to the pooling-of-interests with
GTE Corporation, which is as of June 30,2000) and June 30,2000,
expressed unqualified opinions and included explanatory para-
graphs that disclosed a change in the method of accounting for the
costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use
as required by AICPA Statement of Pos~ion No. 98-1, "Accounting
for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for
Internal Use."

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin-
ciples used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2001 and 2000 financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Verizon at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and
the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows
for the years then ended, in conformity wjth accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
Verizon changed its method of accounting for derivative instru-
ments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities· and SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities"
effective January 1, 2001.

Ernst & Young LLP
New York, New York

January 31, 2002
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("'. (doNars in millions, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31, g.I,II 2000 1999

Operating Revenues $ 67,190 $ 64,707 $ 58,194

Operations and support expense 41,651 39,481 33,730
Depreciation and amortization 13,657 12,261 9,890
Sales of assets, net 350 (3,793) (1,379)

Operating Income 11,532 16,758 15,953
Equity in income Qoss) from unconsolidated businesses (5,042) 3,792 511
Other income and (expense), net 449 311 143
Interest expense (3,369) (3,490) (2,616)
Minority interest (622) (216) (159)
Mark-to-market adjustment - financial instruments (182) 664 (664)
Income before provision for income taxes. extraordinary items

and cumulative effect of accounting change 2,766 17,819 13,168
Provision for income taxes 2,176 7,009 4,872
Income Before Extraordinary Items and Cumulative

Effect of Accounting Change 590 10,810 8,296
Extraordinary items, net of tax (19) 1,027 (36)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (182) (40)
Net Income 389 11,797 8,260
Redemption of subsidiary preferred stock (10)
Net Income Available to Common Shareowners $ 389 $ 11,787 $ 8,260

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share:
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative

effect of accounting change $ .22 $ 3.98 $ 3.03
Extraordinary items, net 01 tax (.01) .37 (.01)
Cumulative effect 01 accounting change, net of tax (,07) (.01)

r Net Income $ .14 $ 4.34 $ 3.02
Weighted-average shares outstanding (in millions) 2,710 2,713 2,739

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share:
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative

effect of accounting change $ .22 $ 3,95 $ 2.98
Extraordinary items, net of tax (,01) .37 (.01)
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (.07) (.01)
Net Income $ .14 $ 4.31 $ 2.97
Weighted-average shares outstanding (in millions) 2,730 2,737 2,777

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

32



06/04/2002 VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Page 267

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

r". (dollars In millions, except per share amounts)
, g.I.,.At December 31, 2000

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 979 $ 757
Short-term investments 1,991 1,613
Accounts receivable. net of allowances of $2,153 and $1,562 14,254 14,010
Inventories 1,968 1,910
Net assets held for sale 1,199 518
Prepaid expenses and other 2,796 3,313

Total current assets 23,187 22,121

Plant, property and equipment 169,586 158,957
Less accumulated depreciation 95,167 89,453

74,419 69,504
Investments in unconsolidated businesses 10,202 13,115
Intangible assets. net 44,262 41,990
Other assets 18,725 18,005
Total assets $ 170,795 $ 164,735

Uabllities and Shareowners' Investment
Current liabilities

Debt maturing within one year $ 18,669 $ 14,838
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 13,947 13,965
Other 5,404 5,433

Total current liabilities 38,020 34,236

Long-term debt 45,657 42,491
Employee benefit obligations 11,898 12,543
Deferred income taxes 16,543 15,260

1""- Other liabilities 3,989 3,797

Minority interest 22,149 21,830

Shareowners' investment
Series preferred stock ($.10 par value; none issued)
Common stock ($.10 par value; 2,751,650,484 shares issued in both periods) 275 275
Contributed capital 24,676 24,555
Reinvested earnings 10,704 14,667
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,187) (2,176)

34,468 37,321
Less common stock in treasury, at cost 1,182 1,861
Less deferred compensation-employee stock ownership plans and other 747 882

Total shareowners' investment 32,539 34,578
Total liabilities and shareowners' investment $ 170,795 $ 164,735

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

,-.... (dollars In millions)
f Y_I.,I 2000Years Ended December 31. 1999

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of

accounting change $ 590 $ 10,810 $ 8,296
Adjustments to reconcile income before extraordinary

items and cumulative effect of accounting change
to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 13,657 12,261 9,890
Sales of assets, net 350 (3,793) (1,379)
Mark-to-market adjustment - financial instruments 182 (664) 664
Employee retirement benefits (1,327) (3,340) (1,707)
Deferred income taxes 1,065 3.434 2,148
Provision for uncollectible accounts 1,952 1.409 1,133
Equity in unconsolidated businesses 5,042 (3,792) (511)
Changes in current assets and liabilities, net of effects from

acquisition/disposition of businesses:
Accounts receivable (2,379) (2,440) (1,865)
Inventories (47) (530) (146)
Other assets (396) (264) (334)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 420 1,973 780

Other, net 664 763 48
Net cash provided by operating activities 19,773 15,827 17,017

Cash Rows from Investing Activities
Capital expenditures (17,371) (17,633) (13,013)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and investments (3,142) (2,247) (5,219)
Proceeds from disposition of businesses 415 6,794 1,813
Investments in notes receivable (SO) (1,024) (1)
Purchases of short-term investments (2,002) (1,204) (1,051)r\ Proceeds from sale of short-term investments 1,595 983 954
Other, net (l,071) (1,724) (903)
Net cash used in investing activities (21,626) (16,055) (17,420)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term borroWings 14,199 8,781 5,299
Repayments of long-term borrowings and capital lease obligations (7,589) (7,238) (2,873)
Increase (decrease) in short-term obligations, excluding current maturities (546) 3,515 4,166
Dividends paid (4,168) (4,421) (4,227)
Proceeds from sale of common stock SOl 576 1,168
Purchase of common stock for treasury (18) (2,294) (2,037)
Minority interest 53 3 122
Other, net (357) 30 116
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,075 (1,048) 1,732

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 222 (1,276) 1,329
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 757 2,033 704
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 979 $ 757 $ 2,033

See Notes to Consolidated Flnan<::lalStatements.

r·
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREOWNERS' INVESTMENT

Years Ended December 31,

Common Stock
Balance at beginning of year
Shares issued-employee plans
Shares retired
Balance at end of year

Contributed Capitel
Balance at beginning of year
Shares issued-employee plans
Shares retired
Issuance of stock by subsidiaries
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Gain on formation of wireless joint venture
Other
Balance at end of year

Reinvested Earnings
Balance at beginning of year
Net income
Dividends declared ($1.54, $1.54, and

$1.54 per share)
Shares issued-employee plans
Other
Balance at end of year

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Balance at beginning of year
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized gains ~osses)on marketable securities
Unrealized derivative losses on cash flow hedges
Minimum pension liabilityadjustment
Other comprehensive income Ooss)
Balance at end of year

Treasury Stock
Balance at beginning of year
Shares purchased
Shares distributed

Employee plans
Shareowner plans

Balance at end of year

Deferred Compensation-ESOPs and Other
Balance at beginning of year
Amortization
Other
Balance at end of year
Total Shareowners' Investment

Comprehensive Income
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss)per above
Total Comprehensive Income

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2001

(dollars In millions, except per share amounts. and shares in thousands)

2000 1999

Shares Amount Shares Amount

2,756,485 $ 276 2,757,203 $ 276
5,533 20,918 2

(10,368) (1) (21,636) (2)
2,751,650 275 2,756,485 276

20,134 20,160
473 989
(577) (1,314)
171 44
66 256

4,271
17 (1)

24,555 20,134

7,428 3,754
11,797 8,260

(4,416) (4,219)
(160) (359)

18 (8)
14.667 7,428

75 (1,088)
(262) (41)

(1,965) 1,197

(24) 7
(2,251) 1,163
(2,176) 75

23,569 640 22,887 593
35,110 1,717 12,142 723

(9,444) (495) (11,446) (675)
(20) (1) (14) (1)

49,215 1,861 23,569 640

897 1.074
(155) (177)
140
882 897

$ 34,578 $ 26,376

$ 11,797 $ 8,260
(2.251) 1,163

$ 9,546 $ 9,423

Shares Amount

2,751,650 $ 275

2,751,650 275

24,555

49,215
395

101

20
24,676

14,667
389

(4,176)
(188)

12
10,704

(2,176)
(40)

1,061
(45)
13

889
(1,187)

1,861
18

(694)
(3)

1,182

882
(155)

20
747

$ 32,539

$ 389
989

$ 1,378

(14,376)
(61)

35,173
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business
Verizon Communications Inc. (Verizon) is one of the world's lead-
ing providers of communications services. Our company is the
largest provider of wireline and wireless communications in the
United States. Our global presence extends to over 40 countries
in the Americas, Europe, Asia and the Pacific. We have four
reportable segments, which we operate and manage as strategic
business units: Domestic Telecom, Domestic Wireless,
International and Information Services. For further information
concerning our business segments, see Note 21.

Consolidation
The method of accounting applied to investments, whether
consolidated, equity or cost, involves an evaluation of all signifi-
cant terms of the investments that explicitly grant or suggest
evidence of control or influence over the operations of the
investee. The consolidated financial statements include our
controlled subsidiaries. Investments in businesses which we do
not control, but have the ability to exercise significant influence
over operating and financial policies, are accounted for using the
equity method. Investments in which we do not have the ability to
exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies
are accounted for under the cost method. Equity and cost method
investments are included in Investments in Unconsolidated
Business in our consolidated balance sheets. Certain of our cost
method investments are classified as available-for-sale securities
and adjusted to fair value pursuant to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, "Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities."

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated.

Use of Estimates
We prepare our financial statements using generally accepted
accounting principles which reqUire management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and
disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Examples of significant estimates include the allowance for
doubtful accounts and the recoverability of intangibles and other
long-lived assets.

Revenue Recognition
We recognize wireline and wireless service revenues based upon
usage of our network and facilities and contract fees. We recog-
nize product and other service revenues when the products are
delivered and accepted by the customers and when services are
provided in accordance with contract terms. We recognize
directory revenues, and associated costs, when the directories
are published and distributed.

We adopted the provisions of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101,
"Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements" effective January
1, 2000, as required by the SEC. The impact to Verizon pertains to

the deferral of some non-recurring fees, such as service activation
and installation fees, and associated incremental direct costs, and
the recognition of those revenues and costs over the expected
term of the customer relationship. The total cumulative effect of
adopting SAB No.1 01 was a non-cash, after-tax charge of $40
million.

Maintenance and Repairs
We charge the cost of maintenance and repairs, including the cost
of replacing minor items not constituting substantial betterments,
to Operations and Support Expense as these costs are incurred.

Earnings Per Common Share
Basic earnings per common share are based on the weighted-
average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per common share include the dilutive effect of shares
issuable under our stock-based compensation plans, which repre-
sent the only potentially dilutive common shares.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of 90
days or less when purchased to be cash equivalents, except cash
equivalents held as short -term investments. Cash equivalents are
stated at cost, which apprOXimates market value.

Short-Term Investments
Our short-term investments consist primarily of cash eqUivalents
held in trust to pay for certain employee benefits. Short-term
investments are stated at cost, which approximates market value.

Marketable Securities
We continually evaluate our investments in marketable securities
for impairment due to declines in market value considered to be
other than temporary. That evaluation includes, in addition to
persistent, declining stock prices, general economic and
company-specific evaluations. In the event of a determination that
a decline in market value is other than temporary, a charge to
earnings is recorded for the loss, and a new cost basis in the
investment is established. These investments are included in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets in Investments in
Unconsolidated Businesses or Other Assets.

Inventories
We include in inventory new and reusable supplies and network
equipment of our telephone operations, which are stated princi-
pally at average original cost, except that specific costs are used
in the case of large individual items. Inventories of our other
subsidiaries are stated at the lower of cost (determined principally
on either an average cost or first-in, first-out basis) or market.

Plant and Depreciation
We record plant, property and equipment at cost. Our telephone
operations' depreciation expense is principally based on the
composite group remaining life method and straight-line compos-
ite rates. This method provides for the recognition of the cost of
the remaining net investment in telephone plant, less anticipated
net salvage value, over the remaining asset lives. This method
requires the periodic revision of depreciation rates.
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The asset lives used by our telephone operations are presented in
the following table:

Average LIves Pn years)

Buildings
Central office equipment
Outside communications plant
Furniture, vehicles and other

35
5-10

14-50
3-15

When we replace or retire depreciable plant used in our wireline
network. we deduct the carrying amount of such plant from the
respective accounts and charge jf: to accumulated depreciation.

Plant, property and equipment of our other subsidiaries is depre-
ciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives: buildings, 20 to 40 years; wireless plant equipment, 3 to 15
years; and other equipment, 1 to 20 years.

When the depreciable assets of our other subsidiaries are retired
or otherwise disposed of, the related cost and accumulated
depreciation are deducted from the plant accounts, and any gains
or losses on disposition are recognized in income.

We capitalize interest associated with the acquisition or construc-
tion of plant assets. Capitalized interest is reported as a cost of
plant and a reduction in interest cost.

Computer Software Costs
We capitalize the cost of internal-use software which has a useful
life in excess of one year in accordance with Statement of
Pos~ion (SOP) No. 98-1, "Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use." Subsequent
additions, modifications or upgrades to internal-use software are
capitalized only to the extent that they allow the software to
perform a task it previously did not perform. Software mainte-
nance and training costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Also, we capitalize interest associated with the
development of internal-use software. Capitalized computer soft-
ware costs are amortized using the straight-line method over a
period of 3 to 7 years.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles
Goodwill is the excess of the acquisition cost of businesses over
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. For acquisi-
tions prior to July 1, 2001, we generally amortized goodwill,
wireless licenses and other identifiable intangibles on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful life, not exceeding 40 years.
For acquisitions after June 30, 2001, we applied newly issued
accounting rules on business combinations, goodwill and intangi-
ble assets, which no longer permit amortization of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets. Most of our acquired customer
bases are amortized in a manner consistent with historical attrition
patterns. Through December 31, 2001 we assessed the impair-
ment of other identifiable intangibles and goodwill related to our
consolidated subsidiaries under SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of" whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicated that the carrying value may not have been recoverable.
A determination of impairment (if any) was made based on esti-
mates of future cash flows. In instances where goodwill was
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recorded for assets that were subject to an impairment loss, the
carrying amount of the goodwill was eliminated before any reduc-
tion was made to the carrying amounts of impaired long-lived
assets and identifiable intangibles. On a quarterly basis, we
assessed the impairment of enterprise level goodwill under
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 17, "Intangible
Assets." A determination of impairment (if any) was made based
primarily on estimates of market value.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued new pronouncements which change our accounting poli-
cies for goodwill and other intangible assets and for impairments
or disposals of long-lived assets (see "Recent Accounting
Pronouncements" below).

Sale of Stock by Subsidiary
We recognize in consolidation changes in our ownership percent-
age in a subsidiary caused by issuances of the SUbsidiary's stock
as adjustments to Contributed Capital.

Income Taxes
Venzon and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated federal
income tax return. For periods prior to the Bell Atlantic-GTE
merger (see Note 3), GTE filed a separate consolidated federal
income tax return.

Our telephone operations use the deferral method of accounting
for investment tax credits earned prior to the repeal of investment
tax credits by the Tax Refonn Act of 1986. We also defer certain
transitional credits earned after the repeal. We amortize these
credits over the estimated service lives of the related assets as a
reduction to the Provision for Income Taxes.

Stock-Based Compensation
We account for stock-based employee compensation plans under
APB Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees," and related interpretations, and follow the disclo-
sure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation.·

Foreign Currency Translation
The functional currency for nearly all of our foreign operations is
the local currency. For these foreign entities, we translate income
statement amounts at average exchange rates for the period, and
we translate assets and liabilities at end-of-period exchange rates.
We record these translation adjustments in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss, a separate component of Shareowners'
Investment, in our consolidated balance sheets. We report
exchange gains and losses on intercompany foreign currency
transactions of a long-term nature in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss. Other exchange gains and losses are
reported in income.

When a foreign entity operates in a highly inflationary economy,
we use the U.S. dollar as the functional currency rather than the
local currency. We translate nonmonetary assets and liabilities and
related expenses into U.S. dollars at historical exchange rates. We
translate all other income statement amounts using average
exchange rates for the period. Monetary assets and liabilities are
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translated at end-at-period exchange rates, and any gains or
losses are reported in income.

Employee Benefit Plans
Pension and postretirement health care and life insurance benefits
earned during the year as well as interest on projected benefit
obligations are accrued currently. Prior service costs and credits
resulting from changes in plan benefits are amortized over the
average remaining service period of the employees expected to
receive benefits.

Derivative Instruments
We have entered into derivative transactions to manage our expo,,:
sure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, interest
rates. equity prices and corporate tax rates. We employ risk
management strategies using a variety of derivatives including
foreign currency forwards and options, equity options, interest rate
swap agreements, interest rate caps and floors, and basis swap
agreements. We do not hold derivatives for trading purposes.

Effective January 1, 2001, we adopted SFAS No. 133, "Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" and SFAS No.
138, II Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain
Hedging Activities." SFAS No. 133 requires that all derivatives,
including derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, be
measured at fair value and recognized as either assets or liabilities
on our balance sheet. Changes in the fair values of derivative
instruments not qualifying as hedges under SFAS No. 133 or any
ineffective portion of hedges are recognized in earnings in the
current period. Changes in the fair values of derivative instruments
used effectively as fair value hedges are recognized in earnings,
along with changes in the fair value of the hedged item. Changes in
the fair value of the effective portions of cash flow hedges are
reported in other comprehensive loss, and recognized in earnings
when the hedged item is recognized in earnings.

Prior to January 1, 2001, foreign currency derivatives and basis
swap agreements were accounted for under the fair value method
which required us to record these derivatives at fair value in our
consolidated balance sheets, with any changes in value recorded
in income or Shareowners' Investment. Gains. losses and related
discounts or premiums related to foreign currency derivatives that
hedged our investments in consolidated foreign subsidiaries or
foreign eqUity method investments were included in Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Loss and reflected in income upon sale or
substantial liquidation of the investment. Gains or losses from
foreign currency derivatives that hedged our short-term transac-
tions and cost method investments were included in Other
Income and (Expense), Net, and discounts or premiums on these
contracts were included in income over the lives of the contracts.
Gains or losses from identifiable foreign currency commitments
were deferred and recognized in income when the future transac-
tion occurred or at the time the transaction was no longer likely to
occur. Interest rate swap agreements and interest rate caps and
floors that qualified as hedges were accounted for under the
accrual method. Under the accrual method, no amounts were
recognized in our consolidated balance sheets related to the prin-
cipal balances. The interest differential that was paid or received
and the premiums related to caps and floors were recognized as
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adjustments to Interest Expense over the life of the agreements.
Gains or losses on terminated agreements were recorded as an
adjustment to the basis of the underlying liability and amortized
over the original life of the agreement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Business Combinations
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, "Business
Combinations," which applies to business combinations occurring
alter June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 141 requires that the purchase
method of accounting be used and includes guidance on the
initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangi-
ble assets acquired in the combination.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
In June 2oo1,the FASB also iSSUedSFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets." SFAS No. 142 no longer permits the
amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets.
Instead, these assets must be reviewed annually (or more
frequently under certain conditions) for impairment in accordance
with this statement. This impairment test uses a fair value
approach rather than the undiscounted cash flows approach previ-
ously required by SFAS No. 121. The goodwiil impairment test
under SFAS No. 142 requires a two-step approach, which is
performed at the reporting unit level, as defined in SFAS No. 142.
Step one identifies potential impairments by comparing the fair
value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount. Step two, which
is only performed if there is a potential impairment, compares the
carrying amount of the reporting unit's goodwill to its implied value,
as detined in SFAS No. 142. If the carrying amount of the reporting
unit's goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an
impairment loss is recognized for an amount equal to that excess.
The amortization of goodwill included in our investments in equity
investees will also no longer be recorded upon adoption of the new
rules. Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives will
continue to be amortized over their useful lives and reviewed for
impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144. "Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."

We will adopt SFAS No. 142 effective January 1, 2002. In accor-
dance with the standard, we are currently in the process of
performing the transitional goodWill impairment tests and evaluat-
ing the impact of these tests on our results of operations and
financial position. Any impairment resulting from our initial appli-
cation of the standard will be recorded as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2002. We have
estimated the impact of no longer amortizing goodwill and intangi-
ble assets with indefinite lives, including wireless licenses, under
the new rules of SFAS No. 142 to be between approXimately $.07
per share and $.14 per share. The range represents our continuing
analysis of intangible assets with indefinite lives and intangible
assets that do not have indefinite lives.

Asset Retirement Obligations
In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations." This standard provides the
accounting for the cost of legal obligations associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 143 requires that
companies recognize the fair value of a liability for asset retire-
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ment obligations in the period in which the obligations are
incurred and capitalize that amount as a part of the book value of
the long-lived asset. That cost is then depreciated over the
remaining life of the underlying long-lived asset. We are required
to adopt SFAS No. 143 effective January 1, 2003. We are currently
evaluating the impact this new standard will have on our future
results of operations or financial position.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Uved Assets
In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144. This standard
supersedes SFAS No. 121 and the provisions of APB Opinion No.
30, "Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of
Disposal of a Segment of a Business. and Extraordinary. Unusual
and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions" with regard
to reporting the effects of a disposal of a segment of a business.
SFAS No. 144 establishes a single accounting model for assets to
be disposed of by sale and addresses several SFAS No. 121
implementation issues. We are required to adopt SFAS No. 144
effective January 1, 2002. We do not expect the impact of the
adoption of SFAS No. 144 to have a material effect on our results
of operations or financial position.

ACCOUNTING FOR THE IMPACT OF THE
SEPTEMBER 11, 2001 TERRORiST ATIACKS

The terrorist attacks on September 11th resulted in considerable
1"'",- loss of life and property, as well as exacerbate weakening

economic conditions. Verizon was not spared any of these effects,
given our significant operations in New York and Washington, D.C.

The primary financial statement impact of the September 11th
terrorist attacks pertains to Verizon's plant, equipment and admin-
istrative office space located either in, or adjacent to the World
Trade Center complex, and the associated service restoration
efforts. During the period following September 11th, we focused
primarily on service restoration in the World Trade Center area and
incurred costs, net of estimated insurance recoveries, totaling
$285 million pretax ($172 million after-tax, or $.06 per diluted
share) as a result of the terrorist attacks.

Verizon's insurance policies are limited to losses of $1 billion for
each occurrence and include a deductible of $1 million. As a
result, we accrued an estimated insurance recovery of approxi-
mately $400 million in 2001, of which approximately $130 million
has been received. The costs and estimated insurance recovery
were recorded in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue No. 01-10, "Accounting for the Impact of the Terrorist
Attacks of September 11, 2001."

COMPLETION OF MERGERS

On June 30, 2000, Bell Atlantic Corporation (Bell Atlantic) and
GTE Corporation (GTE) completed a merger under a definitive
merger agreement dated as of July 27, 1998. Upon closing of the
merger, the combined company began doing business as Verizon.
GTE shareowners received 1.22 shares of Bell Atlantic common
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stock for each share of GTE common stock that they owned. The
merger qualified as a tax-free reorganization and has been
accounted for as a pooling-of-interests business combination.
Under this method of accounting, Bell Atlantic and GTE are
treated as if they had always been combined for accounting and
financial reporting purposes. As a result, we have restated our
consolidated financial statements for all dates and periods prior to
the merger to reflect the combined results of Bell Atlantic and GTE
as of the beginning of the earliest period presented.

In addition to combining the separate historical results of Bell
Atlantic and GTE, the restated combined financial statements
include the adjustments necessary to conform accounting meth-
ods and presentation, to the extent that they were different, and to
eliminate significant intercompany transactions. The separate Bell
Atlantic and GTE results of operations for periods prior to the
merger were as follows:

(dollars in miWons)

Three Months Ended Year Ended
March 31, December 31.

2000 1999

Operating Revenues (Unaudited)
Bell Atlantic $ 8,534 $ 33,174
GTE 6,100 25,336
Conforming adjustments,

reclassifications and eliminations (85) (316)
Accounting change (17)
Combined $ 14,532 $ 58,194

Net Income
Belt Atlantic $ 731 $ 4,202
GTE 807 4,033
Conforming adjustments,

reclassifications and eliminations 19 25
Accounting change (42)
Combined $ 1,515 $ 8,280

The following table summarizes the pretax charges incurred for
the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger. Amounts for 2001 and 2000 pertain
to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger. Transition costs for 1999 pertain
to the Bell Atlantic-NYNEX Corporation (NYNEX) merger, which
was completed in August 1997.

(dollars In mllUons)

Years Ended December 31, 'i'" 2000 1999

Direct Incrementaf Costs
Compensation arrangements $ - $ 210 $
Professional services 181
Shareowner-related 35
Registration, regulatory and other 86
Total Direct Incremental Costs 472

Employee Severance Costs 584

Transition Costs
Systems modifications 401 99 186
Branding 112 240 1
Relocation, training and other 526 355 18
Total Transition Costs 1,_ 894 205
Total Merger-Related Costs $ 1,_ $ 1,750 $ 205
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r"'. The following table provides a reconciliation of the liabilities associated with Bell Atlantic-GTE merger-related costs, Bell Atlantic-NYNEX
merger-related costs and other charges and special items described below:

(dollars in millions)

1999 2000

Asset Asset Asset
Beginning Write-offs Charged to Write-offs Write-offs

of Year Payments and Other End of Year Expense Payments and Other End of Year Payments and Othe< End of Year

Merg.-Related
Direct incremental costs $ 4 $ (1) $ (3) $ - $ 472 $ (469) $ - $ 3 $ (3) $ - $ -
Employee severance costs 316 (35) (15) 266 584 (120) (68) 662 (310) 71 423
Other Initiatives
Video-related costs 6 (2) (4) - - - - - - - -
Write-down of fixed assets

and real estate
consolidation 23 (3) (18) 2 - - (2) - - - -

Regulatory, tax and legal
contingencies, and
other special items 249 (4) (40) 205 - (14) (73) 118 - (10) 108

$ 598 $ 145) $ (801 $ 473 $1,056 $ 16031 $ (143) $ 783 $ 13131 $ 61 $ 531

Merger-Related Costs
Direct Incremental Costs
Direct incremental costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger of
$472 million ($378 million after-tax, or $.14 per diluted share)
include compensation, professional services and other costs.
Compensation includes retention payments to employees that
were contingent on the close of the merger and payments to
employees to satisfy contractual obligations triggered by the
change in control. Professional services include investment bank-
ing, legal, accounting, consulting and other advisory fees incurred
to obtain federal and state regulatory approvals and take other
actions necessary to complete the merger. Other includes costs
incurred to obtain shareholder approval of the merger, register
securities and communicate with shareholders, employees and
regulatory authorities regarding merger issues. All of the Bell
Atlantic-GTE merger direct incremental costs had been paid as of
December 31, 2001.

-

Employee Severance Costs
Employee severance costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger
of $584 million ($371 million after-tax, or $.14 per diluted share), as
recorded under SFAS No. 112, "Employers' Accounting for
Postemployment Benefits," represent the benefit costs for the
separation of apprOXimately 5,500 management employees who
were entitled to benefits under pre-eXisting separation plans, as
well as an accrual for ongoing SFAS No. 112 obligations for GTE
employees. Of these employees, approximately 5,200 were located
in the United States and approximately 300 were located at various
international locations. The separations either have or are expected
to occur as a result of consolidations and process enhancements
within our operating segments. Accrued postemployrnent benefit
liabilities for those employees are included in our consolidated
balance sheets as components of Other Current Liabilities and
Employee Benefit Obligations. As of December 31, 2001, a total of
approximately 5,400 employees have been separated with sever-
ance benefits in connection with the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger
severance program and ongoing severance plans.

Employee severance costs related to the Bell Atlantic-NYNEX
merger represented the benefit costs for the separation of approx-
imately 3,100 management employees who were entitled to
benefits under pre-eXisting separation pay plans. During 1999,
231 management employees were separated with severance
benefits. There were no Bell Atlantic-NYNEX merger-related sepa-
rations in 2000 and 2001. There was no remaining severance
liability under this program as of December 31, 2000.

Transition Costs
In addition to the direct incremental merger-related and severance
costs discussed above, we expect to incur a total of approxi-
mately $2 billion of transition costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE
merger and the formation of the wireless joint venture. These
costs will be incurred to integrate systems, consolidate real
estate, and relocate employees. They also include approximately
$500 million for advertising and other costs to establish the
Verizon brand. Transition costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE
merger and the formation of the wireless joint venture were $1,039
million ($578 million after taxes and minority interest, or $.21 per
diluted share) in 2001 and $694 million ($316 million after taxes
and minority interest, or $.12 per diluted share) in 2000.

In connection with the Bell Atlantic-NYNEX merger, we recorded
transition costs simitar in nature to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger
transition costs of $205 million ($126 million after-tax, or $.05 per
diluted share) in 1999.

Genuity
In accordance with the provisions of a Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) order approving the merger of Bell Atlantic and
GTE, in June 2000 Genuity Inc. (Genuity), formerly a wholly owned
subsidiary of GTE, sold in a public offering 174 million of its Class
A common shares, representing 100% of Genuity's issued and
outstanding Class A common stock and 90.5% of its overall
voting eqUity. The issuance resulted in cash proceeds to Genuity
of $1.9 billion. GTE retained 100% of Genuity's Class B common
stock, which currently represents 8.2% of the voting eqUity in
Genuity and contains a contingent conversion feature.
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--, In accordance with provisions of the FCC order, the sale trans-
ferred the majority ownership and control of Genuity to the Class
A common stockholders and, accordingly, we deconsolidated our
investment in Genuity effective June 30, 2000. In addition to the
sale, we are also required to adhere to safeguards in the FCC's
order that prohibit us from exercising influence over Genuity's
operations. Therefore, we are accounting for our investment in
Genuity using the cost method.

The Class B common stock's conversion rights are dependent on
the percentage of certain of Verizon's access lines that are
compliant with Section 271 of the Telecommunications Act of
1996 (Section 271). Under the FCC order, once we eliminate the
applicable Section 271 restrictions as to at least 50% of the
former 8ell Atlantic in-region access lines, we can transfer our
Class B common stock to a disposition trustee for sale to one or
more third parties. If we eliminate the applicable Section 271
restrictions as to 100% of the former Bell Atlantic in-region access
lines, we can convert our Class 8 common stock into 800 million
shares of Genuity's Class A common stock or Class C common
stock, subject to the terms of the FCC order. This conversion
feature expires if we do not eliminate the applicable Section 271
restrictions as to 100% of the former Bell Atlantic in-region access
lines by the fifth anniversary of the 8ell Atlantic-GTE merger,
SUbject to extension under certain circumstances. In addition, if
we eliminate section 271 restrictions as to 95% of the former Bell
Atlantic in-region lines, we may require Genuity to reconfigure its
operations in one or more former Bell Atlantic in-region states
where we have not eliminated those restrictions in order to bring
those operations into compliance with Section 271 under certain
circumstances. As of December 31, 2001, we have eliminated
Section 271 restrictions as to more than 50% of the former 8ell
Atlantic in-region access lines.

For further information related to our investment in Genuity, see
Note 10.

NET ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

-,

In December 2001, we agreed to sell Telecommunication Services
Inc. (TSI), for approximately $800 million. The transaction closed
on February 14, 2002.

During the third quarter of 2001, we announced that we were
exploring the sale of approximately 1.2 million switched telephone
access lines in Alabama, Kentucky and Missouri, and during the
quarter we committed to sell those access lines. In October 2001,
we agreed to sell all 675,000 of our access lines in Alabama and
Missouri to CenturyTel Inc. (CenturyTel) for $2.2 billion. The sale
must be approved by the Missouri public service commission, the
FCC and the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ). The Alabama
public service commission approved the sale in December 2001.
We expect to close the sale and transfer our operations to
CenturyTel during the second half of 2002. Aiso In October 2001,
we agreed to sell approximately 600,000 access lines in Kentucky
to ALLTEL Corporation (ALLTEL) for $1.9 billion. The saie has
been approved by the Kentucky public service commission, and
remains subject to approval by the FCC and the DOJ. We expect
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to close the sale and transfer our operations to ALLTEL during the
second half of 2002. The net assets pertaining to those access
lines, principally plant, property and equipment of approximately
$1.2 billion, are classified in the consolidated balance sheets as
Net Assets Held for Sale as of December 31, 2001. At December
31,2001, these access lines represent less than 2% of Verizon's
total switched access lines in service.

SALES OF ASSETS, NET

During 2001, we recognized net losses in operations related to
sales of assets, impairments of assets held for sale and other
charges. During 2000 and 1999, we recognized net gains related
to sales of assets and impairments of assets held for sale. These
net gains and losses are summarized as follows:

(dollars In millions)

Years Ended
December 31, 2001 2000 1999

Pretax After-tax Pretax After-tax Pretax After-tax
Wireline property

sales
Wireless overlap

sales
Other, net

$ - $ - $3,051 $1,856 $ - $

(92) (60) 1,922 1,156
(258) (166) (1,180) (1,025) 1,379 819

$ (350) $ (226) $3,793 $1,987 $1,379 $ 819

As required, gains on sales of wireless overlap properties that
occurred prior to the closing of the 8ell Atlantic-GTE merger are
included in operating income and in the table above. Gains on
sales of significant wireless overlap properties that occurred after
the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger are classified as extraordinary items.
See Note 7 for gains on sales of significant wireless overlap prop-
erties SUbsequent to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger.

Wireline Property Saies
During 1998, GTE committed to sell approXimately 1.6 million
nonstrategic domestic access lines. During 2000, access line
sales generated combined cash proceeds of approximately
$4,903 million and $125 million in convertible preferred stock. The
pretax gain on the sales was $3,051 million ($1,856 million after-
tax, or $.68 per diluted share).

Wireless Overlap Sales
A DOJ consent decree issued on December 6, 1999 required GTE
Wireless, Bell Atlantic Mobile, Vodafone Group pic (Vodafone) and
PrimeCo Communications (PrimeCo) to resolve a number of wire-
less market overlaps in order to complete the wireless joint
venture and the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger. As a result, during April
2000 we completed a transaction with ALLTEL that provided for
the exchange of former Bell Atlantic Mobile and GTE Wireless
markets for several of ALLTEL's wireless markets. These
exchanges were accounted for as purchase business combina-
tions and resulted in combined pretax gains of $1,922 million
($1,156 million after-tax, or $.42 per diluted share).

During 2001, we recorded a pretax gain of $80 million ($48 million
after-tax, or $.02 per diluted share) on the sale of the Cincinnati
market and a pretax loss of $172 million ($108 million after-tax, or
$.04 per diluted share) related to the sale of the Chicago market.
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Other Transactions
During 2001, we recorded charges totaling $258 million pretax
($166 million after-tax, or $.06 per diluted share) related to exiting
several businesses, including our video business and some leasing
activities.

During 2000, we recorded charges related to the write-down of
certain impaired assets and other charges of $1,180 million pretax
($1,025 million after-tax, or $.37 per diluted share), as follows:

(dollars In millions, except per share amounts)
Per diluted

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Pretax After·tax share

Airlone and Video impairment $ 566 $ 362 $ .13
CLEe impairment 334 218 .08
Real estate consolidation and

other mergeNelated charges 220 142 .05
Deferred taxes on contribution to

the wireless joint venture 249 .09
Other, net 60 54 .02

$ 1.180 $ 1,025 $ .37

In connection with our decisions to exit the video business and
Airfone (a company involved in air-ta-ground communications), in
the second quarter of 2000 we recorded an impairment charge to
reduce the carrying value of these investments to their estimated
net realizable value.

The competitive local exchange carrier (CLEe) impairment primar-
ily relates to the revaluation of assets and the accrual of costs
pertaining to certain long-term contracts due to strategic changes
in our approach to offering bundled services both in and out of
franchise areas. The revised approach to providing such services
resulted, in part, from post-merger integration activities and acqui-
sitions.

The real estate consolidation and other merger-related charges
include the revaluation of assets and the accrual of costs to exit
leased facilities that are in excess of our needs as the result of
post-merger integration activities.

The deferred tax charge is non-cash and was recorded as the
result of the contribution in July 2000 of the GTE Wireless assets
to Verizon Wireless based on the differences between the book
and tax bases of assets contributed.

During 1999, we soid substantially all of GTE Government
Systems to General Dynamics Corporation for $1 billion in cash.
The pretax gain on the sale was $754 million ($445 million after-
tax, or $.16 per diluted share). In addition, during 1999, we
recorded a net pretax gain 01$112 million ($66 million after-tax, or
$.02 per diluted share), primarily associated with the sale of the
remaining major division of GTE Government Systems to
DynCorp. The 1999 year-to-date net gains for asset sales also
include a pretax gain of $513 million ($308 million after-tax, or
$.11 per diluted share) associated with the merger of BC TELE-
COM Inc. (BC TELECOM) and TELUS Corporation during the first
quarter of 1999.
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OTHER STRATEGIC ACTIONS

During the fourth quarter of 2001, we recorded a special charge of
$1,613 million ($1,001 million after-tax, or $.37 per diluted share)
primarily associated with employee severance costs and related
pension enhancements. The charge included severance and
related benetits of $765 million ($477 million after-tax, or $.18 per
diluted share), as recorded under SFAS No. 112, for the voluntary
and involuntary separation of approXimately 10,000 employees. We
also included a charge of $848 million ($524 million after-tax, or
$.19 per diluted share) recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 88,
"Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits," which
includes pension enhancements of $813 million ($504 million after-
tax, or $.18 per diluted share) and pension settlement losses of
$35 million ($20 million after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share), relating
to lump sum settlements of some existing pension obligations.

In 2001, we recorded a pretax charge ot $672 million ($663 million
after-tax, or $.24 per diluted share) primarily relating to our invest-
ment in CTI Holdings, SA (CTI), our cellular subsidiary in
Argentina. Given the current status of the Argentinean economy,
the recent devaluation of the Argentinean peso as well as future
economic prospects, including a worsening of the recession, we
recorded an estimated loss of $637 million ($637 million after-tax,
or $.23 per diluted share) based on CTl's current financial position
and revised expected results of operations. This loss was an esti-
mation since the Argentinean economy deteriorated very rapidly
at year-end and is continuing to reflect instability. This estimated
loss may not be sufficient when our assessment of the economic
impact on CTI, as well as the structure and nature of our continu-
ing involvement in CTI, is completed. We also recorded a loss of
$35 million ($26 million after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share) related
to international losses.

In 2000, we recorded a pretax charge of $50 million ($50 million
after-tax, or $.02 per diluted share) associated with our share of
costs incurred at two of our international equity investees to
complete employee separation programs.

Other charges and special items recorded during 2001 include
asset impairments related to property sales and facility consolida-
tion of $151 million ($95 million after-tax, or $.03 per diluted share).

Other charges and special items recorded during 2000 included
the write-off of our investment in NorthPoint Communications
Corp. (NorthPoint) of $155 million ($153 million after-tax, or $.06
per diluted share) as a result of the deterioration in NorthPoint's
business, operations and financial condition.

Other charges and special items in 2000 also included the cost of
disposing or abandoning redundant assets and discontinued
system development projects in connection with the Bell Atlantic-
GTE merger of $287 million ($175 million after-tax, or $.06 per
diluted share), regulatory settlements of $98 million ($61 million
after-tax, or $.02 per diluted share) and other asset write-downs of
$416 million ($290 million after-tax, or $.11 per diluted share).

During 1999, we recorded a special charge of $192 million ($119
million after-tax, or $.04 per diluted share) associated with
employee separation programs. The charge included separation
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and related benefits such as outplacement and benefit continua-
tion costs for approximately 3.000 employees. The programs were
completed in early April 1999, as planned. consistent with the
original cost estimates.

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

During 2001, we retired $726 million of debt prior to the stated
maturity date, resulting in a pretax extraordinary charge of $29
million ($1g million after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share).

In June 2000. we entered into a series of definitive sale agree-
ments to resolve service area conflicts prohibited by FCC
regulations as a result of the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger (see Note
5). These agreements, which were pursuant to the consent decree
issued for the merger, enabled both the formation of Verizon
Wireless and the closing of the merger. Since the sales were
required pursuant to the consent decree and occurred after the
merger, the gains on sales were recorded net of taxes as
Extraordinary Items in the consolidated statements of income.

During the second half of 2000, we completed the sale of the
Richmond (former PrimeCo) wireless market to CFW
Communications Company in exchange for two wireless rural
service areas in Virginia and cash. The sale resulted in a pretax
gain of $184 million ($112 million after-tax, or $.04 per diluted
share). In addition, we completed the sales of the consolidated
markets in Washington and Texas and unconsolidated interests in
Texas (former GTE) to SBC Communications. The sales resulted in
a pretax gain of $886 million ($532 million after-tax, or $.19 per
diluted share). Also, we completed the sale of the San Diego
(former GTE) market to AT&T Wireless. The sale resulted in a
pretax gain of $304 million ($182 million after-tax, or $.07 per
diluted share). In 2000, we also completed the sale of the Houston
(former PrimeCo) wireless overlap market to AT&T Wireless, result-
ing in a pretax gain of $350 million ($213 million after-tax, or $.08
per diluted share).

During 2000, we retired $190 million of debt prior to the stated
maturity date, resulting in a pretax extraordinary charge of $19
million ($12 million after-tax, or less than $.01 per diluted share).

During the first quarter of 1999, we repurchased $338 million of
high-coupon debt through a public tender offer prior to stated
maturity, resulting in a pretax extraordinary charge of $46 million
($30 million after-tax, or $.01 per diluted share). During the second
quarter of 1999, we recorded a pretax extraordinary charge of $10
million ($6 million after-tax, or less than $.01 per diluted share)
associated with the early extinguishment of debentures of our
telephone subsidiaries.
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".
WIRELESS JOINT VENTURE

On April 3, 2000, Verizon and Vodafone consummated the previ-
ously announced agreement to combine U.S. wireless and paging
operations. Vodafone contributed its U.S. wireless operations,
including its interest in PrimeCo, to an existing Bell Atlantic part-
nership in exchange for a 65.1 % economic interest in the
partnership. Bell Atlantic retained a 34.9% economic interest and
control pursuant to the terms of the partnership agreement. We
accounted for this transaction as a purchase business combina-
tion. The total consideration for the U.S. wireless operations of
Vodafone was approximately $34 billion, resulting in increases in
intangible assets of approximately $31 billion, minority interest of
approximately $21 billion and debt of approximately $4 billion
included in the consolidated balance sheets. Since the acquisition
was effected through the issuance of partnership interests, the
$4,271 million after-tax gain on the transaction was reported as an
adjustment to contributed capital in accordance with our account-
ing policy for recording gains on the issuance of subsidiary stock.
The appraisal and the allocation of the purchase price to the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets were completed in the
fourth quarter of 2000. A substantial portion of the excess
purchase price over the tangible assets acquired was identified
with wireless licenses, which will be amortized over a period up to
40 years since they are renewable on an indefinite basis, and
therefore, have an indefinite life. We are currently evaluating the
appropriate accounting for our wireless licenses in connection
with our adoption of SFAS No. 142.

In July 2000, following the closing of the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger,
interests in GTE's U.S. wireless operations were contributed to
Verizon Wireless in exchange for an increase in our economic
ownership interest to 55%. This transaction was accounted for as
a transfer of assets between entities under common control and,
accordingly, was recorded at the net book value of the assets
contributed.

The following represents Verizon's historical results for 1999
adjusted to include the wireless joint venture on a pro forma basis
comparable with 2000 results. No other pro forma adjustments
were made to the historical results.

(dollarsin mUlions,except per share amount)
$ 62,504
$ 8,101
$ 2.92

Revenues
Net income
Diluted earnings per common share

Under the terms of an investment agreement, Vodafone may
require us or Verizon Wireless to purchase up to $20 billion worth
of its interest in Verizon Wireless between 2003 and 2007 at its
then fair market value. The purchase of up to $10 billion may be
required during July 2003 or July 2004 and the remainder during
the following years.
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MARKETABLE SECURiTiES

We have investments in marketable securities, primarily common
stocks, which are considered Kavailable-far-sale" under SFAS No.
115. These investments have been included in our consolidated
balance sheets in Investments in Unconsolidated Businesses and
Other Assets.

Under SFAS No. 115. available-for-sale securities are required to
be carried at their fair value, with unrealized gains and losses (net
of income taxes) that are considered temporary in nature recorded
in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss. The fair values of our
investments in marketable securities are determined based on
market quotations.

The following table shows certain summarized information related
to our investments in marketable securities:

(dollars in millions)
Gross Gross

lJnrea)lzed lJnrea)lzed

Cost GIDns losses Fairvalue

At December 31. 2001
Investments in unconsolidated

businesses $ 1,337 $ 578 $ (80) $1,835
Other assets 243 26 288

$ 1,580 $ 604 $ (80) $2,104
At December 31, 2000

r". Investments in unconsolidated
businesses $ 4.529 $ 559 $(1.542) $ 3,546

Other assets 1.326 29 (241) 1,114
$ 5,855 $ 588 $(1.783) $ 4.660

Prior to 2001, we considered the declines in the market values of
our marketable securities investments to be temporary, due prin-
cipally to the overall weakness in the securities markets as well as
telecommunications sector share prices. However, during 2001,
we recognized a pretax loss of $4,686 million ($3,607 million after-
tax, or $1.32 diluted loss per share) in Equity in Income (Loss)
From Unconsolidated Businesses in the consolidated statements
of income primarily relating to our investments in Cable & Wireless
pic (C&W), NTL Incorporated (NTl) and Metramedia Fiber
Network, Inc. (MFN). We determined, through the evaluations
described in Note 1, that market value declines in these invest-
ments during 2001 were considered other than temporary. (See
Note 10 for more information on these and other of our invest-
ments in unconsolidated businesses.)

During 2000, we recognized a pretax gain of $3,088 million
($1,941 million after-tax, or $.71 per diluted share) related to the
restructuring of our equity investment in Cable & Wireless
Communications pic (CWC). In exchange for our equity invest-
ment in CWC, we received shares of caw and NTL. In 2000, half
of our shares in MFN were restricted and carried at cost. In 2001,
those shares became unrestricted and all of our MFN shares were
recorded at fair value. (See Note 10.)..-..

i The unrealized gains on marketable securities at December 31,
2001 and 2000 relate primarily to our investment in Telecom
Corporation of New Zealand Limited [TCNZ).
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Certain other investments in securities that we hold are not
adjusted to market values because those values are not readily
determinable and/or the securities are not marketable. We have,
however, adjusted the carrying values of these securities in situa-
tions where we believe declines in value below cost were other
than temporary. During 2001, we recognized a pretax loss of
$1,251 million ($1,251 million after-tax, or $.46 loss per diluted
share) in Equity in Income (Loss) From Unconsolidated
Businesses in the consolidated statements of income relating to
our investment in Genuity (see Note 10). The carrying values for
investments not adjusted to market value were $1,558 million at
December 31, 2001 and $3,071 million at December 31, 2000.

iNVESTMENTS iN UNCONSOLIDATED BUSINESSES

Our investments in unconsolidated businesses are comprised of
the following:

2001
(dollars in millions)

2000
Ownership InvestmentAt December 31, OWnership Investment

Equity Investees
CANlV
Omnitel
TELUS
TELPRI
Other

Total eqUity investees
Cost Investees
Genuity
C&W
NTL
TCNZ
MFN
Other

Total cost investees
Total

28.5%$ 1,868
23.1 1,574
23.7 1,_
40.0 446

Various 1,560
6,812

28.5% $ 1,901
23.1 1.300
22.0 1.258
40.0 427

Various 1,622
6.508

ll.2
4.6
8.9

21.5
6.6

Various

1,264
834

9.5
4.6
9.1

24.9
9.9

Various _~~_

2,515
1,706

586
912
622
266

6.607

840
230
422

3,390
$10,202 $13,115

Dividends received from investees amounted to $244 million in
2001, $215 miliion in 2000 and $336 million in 1999.

Equity Investees
CANTV
Campania An6nima Nacional Telefonos de Venezuela (CANTY) is
the primary provider of local telephone service and national and
international long-distance service in Venezuela. CANTV also
provides wireless, Internet-access and directory advertising
services. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, our investment in
CANTV included unamortized goodwill, which is being amortized
on a straight-line basis over a period of 40 years, of $673 million
and $715 million, respectively.

In October 2001, shareholders of CANTV approved an extraordi-
nary dividend of approximately $550 million, to be paid in two
installments in December 2001 and March 2002, and a share
repurchase program of up to 15% of CANTV's shares. During
December 2001, we received approximately $167 million from the
repurchase program and $85 million in dividends.
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Omnite!
Omnitel Pronto Italia S.pA (Omnitel) operates a cellular mobile
telephone network in Italy. Goodwill related to this investment
totals $995 million which is being amortized on a straight-line
basis over a period of 25 years. At December 31, 2001 and 2000,
remaining goodwill was approximately $703 million and $779
million, respectively.

TELUS
Prior to 1999, we had a 50.8% ownership interest in BC TELE-
COM, a full-service telecommunications provider in the province
of British Columbia, Canada. On January 31, 1999, BC TELE-
COM and TELUS Corporation merged to form TELUS
Corporation (TELUS). Our ownership interest in TELUS at the
time of the merger was approximately 26.7%. Accordingly, we
changed the accounting for our investment from consolidation to
the equity method effective January 1, 1999.

On October 20, 2000, TELUS acquired 98.5% of Cleamet
Communications Inc., a leading Canadian wireless company
through the issuance of non-voting TELUS shares, creating
Canada's largest wireless company in terms of annual revenue.
The issuance of additional TELUS shares diluted Verizon's inter-
est in TELUS from 26.7% to approximately 22.0%.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, our investment in TELUS
included unamortized goodwill of $55 million and $345 million,
respectively, which we are amortizing on a straight -line basis over
a period of 20 years.

TELPRI
In March 1999, we completed our 40% investment in
Telecomunicaciones de Puerto Rico, Inc. (TELPRI), which provides
local, wireless, long-distance, paging, and Internet-access
services in Puerto Rico. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, our
investment in TElPRI included unamortized goodWill, which is
being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 25 years,
of $206 million and $211 million, respectively.

On January 25, 2002, Verizon exercised its option to purchase an
additional 12% of TELPRI common stock, from PRTA Holdings
Corporation, an entity of the government of Puerto Rico. Verizon
obtained the option as part of the March 1999 TELPRI privatiza-
tion. We now hold 52% of TELPRI stock, up from 40%. As a result,
Verizon changed the accounting for its investment in Puerto Rico
from equity method to full consolidation, effective January 1, 2002.

Other Equity Investees
We also have international wireless investments in the Czech
Republic, Slovakia, Greece, Taiwan and Indonesia. These invest-
ments are in joint ventures to build and operate cellular networks
in these countries. We also have an investment in a company in
the Philippines which provides telecommunications services in
some regions of that country. The remaining investments include
wireless partnerships in the U.S., real estate partnerships, pUblish-
ing joint ventures, and several other domestic and international
joint ventures.
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Cost Investees
Some of our cost investments are carried at their current market
value, principally our investment in TCNZ, as described below.
Other cost investments are carried at their original cost, except in
cases where we have determined that a decline in the estimated
market value of an investment is other than temporary as
described in Note 9.

Genuity
In June 2000, Genuity, which had formerly been a wholly-owned
subsidiary, issued common stock through an initial public offering.
As a result, our common stock voting interest was reduced, and is
at a current level of 8.2%. As we no longer have the ability to
exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies
of Genuity, we changed the accounting for our investment from
full consolidation of its financial results to the cost method. The
FCC required the sale as a condition of the Bell Atlantic-GTE
merger (see Note 3).

Genuity's revenues for the first six months of 2000, the period
prior to deconsolidation, were $529 million and its net loss was
$281 million. Genuity's revenues and net loss for the period from
July 1, 2000 to December 31, 2000 were $621 million and $513
million, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2001,
Genuity's revenues and net loss were $1,221 million and $3,960
million respectively. Genuity's results of operations after June 30,
2000 are not included in our results, consistent with the cost
method of accounting.

If, in the future, we meet the criteria necessary to exercise our
conversion right and regain control of Genuity, we would be
required by generally accepted accounting principles to restate
our financial results to include our share of Genuity's losses.

During 2001, we recorded a pretax charge of $1,251 million
($1,251 million after-tax, or $.46 per diluted share) related to our
cost investment in Genuity. The charge was necessary because
we determined that the decline in the estimated fair value of
Genuity was other than temporary. Our investment in Genuity is
not considered a marketable security given its unique characteris-
tics and the associated contingent conversion right (see Note 3
for additional information). However, we estimated fair value
based on the number of shares of Genuity we would own, assum-
ing the exercise of the contingent conversion right, and the market
value of Genuity common stock.

C&WINTL
Prior to 2000, we transferred our interests in cable television and
telecommunications operations in the United Kingdom to CWC in
exchange for an 18.5% ownership interest in CWC, an interna-
tional telecommunications service provider. In May 2000, caw,
NTL and CWC completed a restructuring of CWC. Under the
terms of the restructuring, CWC's consumer cable telephone, tele-
vision and Internet operations were separated from its corporate,
business, Internet protocol and Wholesale operations. Once sepa-
rated, the consumer operations were acquired by NTL and the
other operations were acquired by caw. In connection with the
restructuring, we, as a shareholder in ewc, received shares in the
two acquiring companies, representing approximately 9.1 % of the
NTl shares outstanding at the time and approximately 4.6% of
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the C&W shares outstanding at the time. Based on this level of
ownership, our investments in NTL and C&W are accounted for
under the cost method. See Note 9 for information regarding a
gain on the restructuring of ewe and declines in market value
considered other than temporary.

TCNZ
TCNZ is the principal provider of telecommunications services in
New Zealand. In 1998, we issued $2,455 million of 5.75% senior
exchangeable notes due on April 1, 2003. The notes were
exchangeable into 437.1 million ordinary shares of TCNZ stock at
the option of the holder, beginning September 1, 1999. As of
December 31, 2001, $8,000 in principal amount of notes has
been delivered for exchange. See Note 14 for additional informa-
tion on the TCNZ exchangeable notes.

Agreement with MFN
On March 6, 2000, we invested approximately $1.7 billion in MFN,
a domestic and international provider of dedicated fiber optic
networks in major metropolitan markets. This investment included
$715 million to acquire approximately 9.5% of the equity of MFN
through the purchase of newly issued shares at $14 per share
(after two-far-one stock split). We also purchased apprOXimately
$975 million in subordinated debt securities convertible at our
option, upon receipt of necessary government approvals, into
MFN common stock at a conversion price of $17 per share (after
two-for-one stock split) or an additional 9.6% of the equity of
MFN. This investment completed a portion of our previously
announced agreement, as amended, with MFN, which included
the acquisition of approximately $350 million of long-term
capacity on MFN's fiber optic networks, beginning in 1999
through 2002. Of the $350 million, $35 million was paid in
November 1999, $105 million was paid in October 2000 and $95
million was paid in 2001. However, in 2001 we renegotiated
several significant terms of our MFN investment and commit-
ments, in connection with a new financing arrangement. We
purchased an additional $50 million of subordinated convertible
notes, that are convertible into MFN common stock at a conver-
sion price of $.53 per share. This new financing arrangement also
repriced $500 million of the subordinated convertible notes
purchased in 2000 at a conversion price of $3 per share (from
$17 per share). Furthermore, the remaining obligations under the
long-term capacity agreement of $115 million will be satisfied
through purchases in the amount of $90 million in 2002, $10
million in 2003 and 2004, and $5 million in 2005. See Note 9 for
information regarding declines in market value considered other
than temporary.

Other Cost Investees
Other cost investments include a variety of domestic and interna-
tional investments primarily involved in providing
telecommunication services.
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MINORITY INTEREST

Minority interests in eqUity of subsidiaries were as follows:

(dollars in millions)

JIlIli 2000At December 31,

Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries:
Wireless joint venture (see Note 8)
Cellular partnerships and other
lusacell (39.4% and 37.2%)
CTI Holdin9s.SA (65.3%and 59.5%)

Preferred securities issued by subsidiaries

$ 21,243
329
234
124
219

$ 20.894
489
132
103
212

$22,149 $ 21,830

lusacell
lusacell is a wireless telecommunications company in Mexico.
Since we control its board of directors, we consolidate lusacell.
Through March 2001, Peralta Group was another large shareholder
of lusacel!. Under an agreement dated February 22, 1999, the
Peralta Group could have required us to purchase from it approxi-
mately 517 million lusacell shares for $.75 per share, or
approximately $388 million in the aggregate, by giving notice of
exercise between November 15 and December 15, 2001. However,
in April 2001, Peralta Group sold its 34.5% interest in lusacell to
Vodafone and is no longer a principal shareholder, which invali-
dated the share agreements we had with the Peralta Group.

In November 2001, lusacell completed a $100 million rights offer-
ing to holders of outstanding stock. We purchased a prorata
interest for $37.2 million, Vodafone purchased a prorata interest
for $34.5 million and the public purchased $18.9 million. Verizon
purchased the additional shares the public elected not to
purchase for $9.4 million. As a result of this transaction, our
ownership percentage in lusacell increased to 39.4% in 2001.

CTI
Cli provides wireless services in Argentina. During 2001, we
purchased additional equity in CTI through equity contributions,
which increased our ownership percentage to 65.3%. see Note 6
for additional information pertaining to a charge recorded in 2001
relating to our interest in CTI.

PLANT, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table displays the details of plant, property and
eqUipment, which is stated at cost:

At December 31,

Land
Buildings and equipment
Network equipment
Furniture, office and data processing equipment
Work. in progress
Leasehold improvements
Other

$ 850
13,285

132,035
15,568

1,910
1,516
4,362

$ 805
12.258

124.779
12.720
2,480
1,563
4.352

Accumulated depreciation
Total

169,588
(95,167)

158.957
(89,453)

$ 74,419 $ 69.504
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LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

As Lessor
We are the lessor in leveraged and direct financing lease agree-
ments under which commercial aircraft and power generating
facilities, which comprise the majority of the portfolio, along with
industrial equipment, real estate property, telecommunications
and other equipment are leased for remaining terms of 1 to 46
years as of December 31, 2001. Minimum lease payments receiv-
able represent unpaid rentals. less principal and interest on
third-party nonrecourse debt relating to leveraged lease transac-
tions. Since we have no general liability for this debt, which holds
a senior security interest in the leased equipment and rentals. the
related principal and interest have been offset against the mini-
mum lease payments receivable in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. All recourse debt is reflected in
our consolidated balance sheets.

Finance lease receivables. which are included in Prepaid Expenses and Other and Other Assets in our consolidated balance sheets are
comprised of the following:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Finance lease receivables. net
Current
Noncurrent

(dollars In millions)J,l,ii 2000

Direct Direct
leveraged Finance leveraged Finance

Leases Leases Total leases leases Total

$ 3,645 $ 321 $ 3,_ $ 3,625 $ 437 $ 4,062
2,499 42 2,541 2,459 53 2,512
(2,355) (47) (2,402) (2,374) (66) (2,440)

$ 3,789 $ 316 4,105 $ 3,710 $ 424 4,134
(53) (46)

$ 4.052 $ 4,068
$ 71 $ 126
$ 3.981 $ 3,962

At Deeember 31.

Minimum lease payments receivable
Estimated residual value
Uneamed income

Accumulated deferred taxes arising from leveraged leases. which are included in Deferred Income Taxes, amounted to $3,079 million at
December 31,2001 and $2,942 million at December 31,2000.

As Lessor
The following table is a summary of the components of income
from leveraged leases:

(dollars in millions)
Years Ended December 31, dl'" 2000 1999

Pretax lease income $ 64 $ 135 $ 138
Income tax expense /(benefit) (32) 46 49
Investment tax credits 3 3 2

The future minimum lease payments to be received from noncance-
lable leases, net of nonrecourse loan payments related to leveraged
and direct financing leases in excess of debt service requirements.
for the periods shown at December 31, 2001, are as follows:

(dollars in millions)
Years Capitalleases Ope<atinB Leases

2002 $ 192 $ 44
r'" 2003 155 31

2004 123 27
2005 145 23
2006 97 20
Thereafter 3,254 62
Total $ 3,966 $ 207
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As Lessee
We lease certain facilities and equipment for use in our operations
under both capital and operating leases. Total rent expense under
operating leases amounted to $1,282 million in 2001, $1,052
million in 2000 and $1,008 million in 1999.

Capital lease amounts included in plant, property and equipment
are as follows:

At December 31.

Capital leases
Accumulated amortization
Total

$ 482
(263)

$ 283
(165)

$ 219 $ 118

The aggregate minimum rental commitments under noncancelable
leases for the periods shown at December 31, 2001, are as follows:

v....
(dollars in millions)

Capital Leases Operating Leases

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
Thereafter
Total minimum rental commitments
Less interest and executory costs
Present value of minimum lease payments
Less current installments
long-tenn obligation at December 31, 2001

$ 71
67
54
29
23
99

$ 723
655
612
566
695

2,226
373
(94)

$ 5,477

279
(50)

$ 229

As of December 31, 2001, the total minimum sublease rentals to
be received in the future under noncancelable operating and capi-
tal subleases were $187 million and $6 million, respectively.
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DEBT

Debt Maturing Within One Year
Debt maturing within one year is as follows:

At December 31,
(dollars In millions)

,i'II 2000

Notes payable
Commercial paper
Bank loans
ShorHenn notes

Long~tenn debt maturing within one year
Total debt maturing within one year
Weighted·average interest rates for

notes payable outstanding at year-end

$ 12,781
39
12

5,837

$ 12,659
151
209

1,819
$18,669 $ 14,838

2.1% 6.5%

Capital expenditures (primarily construction of telephone plant)
are partially financed, pending long-term financing, through bank
loans and the issuance of commercial paper payable within 12
months.

At December 31, 2001, we had approximately $7.9 billion of
unused bank lines of credit. Certain of these lines of credit contain
requirements for the payment of commitment fees.

Assets of lusacell and CTI, totaling approximately $1,427 million
and $747 million, respectiveiy, at December 31, 2001, are SUbject
to lien under credit facilities with certain bank lenders, equipment
suppliers and other financial institutions.
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r Long- Term Debt
Outstanding long-tenn debt obligations are as follows:

(dollars In millions)
At December 31, Interest Rates % Maturities ,1'1' 2000

Notes payable 1.93 - 18.75 2002-2030 $ 18,3n $ 10,667

Telephone subsidiaries - debentures and firsVrefunding mortgage bonds 2.00 - 7.00 2002-2041 11.408 9,574
7.13 - 7.75 2002-2033 3,590 3,990
7.85 - 9.67 2009-2031 2,383 2,817

Other subsidiaries - debentures and other 6.36 - 14.00 2002-2028 5,062 5,558

Zero-coupon convertible notes, net of unamortized discount of $2,386 3.0% yield 2021 3,056

Employee stock ownership plan loans:
GTE guaranteed obligations 9.73 2005 311 388
NYNEX debentures 9.55 2010 230 256

Capital lease obligations (average rate 9.4% and 9.4%)
and other lease-related debt (average rate 4.8% and 4.8%) 1,392 1,337

Exchangeable notes, net of unamortized discount of $146 and $180 4.25 - 5.75 2003-2005 5,744 5,710

Revolving loans expected to be refinanced on a long-term basis 6,86 4,120

Property sate holdbacks held in escrow and other 4.86 - 6.00 2002-2003 39 13

Unamortized discount, net of premium (98) (120)
Total long-term debt, including current maturities 51,494 44,310

r", Less maturing within one year (5,837) (1,819)
Total long-term debt $ 45,657 $ 42,491

Telephone Subsidiaries' Debt
The telephone subsidiaries' debentures outstanding at December
31, 2001 include $1,542 million that are callable. The call prices
range from 100% to 106% of face value, depending upon the
remaining term to maturity of the issue. All o(our refunding mort-
gage bonds of $305 million are also callable as of December 31,
2001. Our first mortgage bonds also include $18 million that are
callable as of December 31, 2001. Also, our notes payable
includes a senior note of $11 million that is callable as of
December 31, 2001, The call price for this security is 101.4% of
face value, Of this total callable amount of $1,876 million,
$1,536 million was called sUbsequent to December 31, 2001. In
addition, our telephone subsidiaries' long-term debt includes
$350 million that will become redeemable in 2002 at the option
of the holders. The redemption prices will be 100,0% of face
value plus accrued interest. Refunding mortgage bonds and
first mortgage bonds of $636 million are secured by certain
telephone operations assets.

Zero-Coupon Convertible Notes
In May 2001, Verizon Global Funding Corp, (Verizon Global
Funding) issued apprOXimately $5.4 billion in principal amount at
maturity of zero-coupon convertible notes due 2021, resulting in
gross proceeds of approximately $3 billion. The notes are convert-
ible into shares of our common stock at an initial price of $69.50
per share if the closing price of Verizon common stock on the
New York Stock Exchange exceeds specified levels or in other
specified circumstances. The conversion price increases by at
least 3% a year. The initial conversion price represents a 25%
premium over the May 8, 2001 closing price of $55.60 per share.
There are no scheduled cash interest payments associated with

the notes. The zero-coupon convertible notes are callable by
Verizon Global Funding on or after May 15, 2006, In addition, the
notes are redeemable at the option of the holders on May 15th in
each of the years 2004, 2006, 2011 and 2016,

Exchangeable Notes
In 1998, Verizon Global Funding issued $2,455 million of 5.75%
senior exchangeable notes due on Aprii 1, 2003 (TCNZ exchange-
able notes). The TCNZ exchangeable notes are exchangeable into
437.1 million ordinary shares of TCNZ stock at the option of the
holder, beginning on September 1, 1999, The exchange price was
established at a 20% premium to the TCNZ share price at the
pricing date of the offering. Upon exchange by investors, we
retain the option to settle in cash or by delivery of TCNZ shares.
During the period from April 1, 2001 to March 31, 2002,the TCNZ
exchangeable notes are callable at our option at 102.3% of the
principal amount and, thereafter and prior to maturity at 101.15%.
As of December 31, 2001, $8,000 in principal amount of notes has
been delivered for exchange.

Also in 1998, Verizon Global Funding issued $3,180 million of
4.25% senior exchangeable notes due on September 15, 2005
(CWC exchangeable notes). When issued, the CWC exchangeable
notes were exchangeable into 277.6 million ordinary shares of
CWC stock at the option of the holder beginning on July 1, 2002,
The exchange price was established at a 28% premium to the
CWC share price at the pricing date of the offering. The CWC
exchangeable notes were issued at a discount, and as of
December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, the notes had a
carrying value of $3,289 million and $3,255 million, respectively. In
connection with a restructuring of CWC described in Note 10, the
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ewe exchangeable notes are now exchangeable into 128.4
million shares of C&W and 24.5 million shares of NTL. The CWC
exchangeable notes are redeemable at our option, beginning
September 15, 2002, at escalating prices from 104.2% to 108.0%
of the principal amount. If the CWC exchangeable notes are not
called or exchanged prior to maturity, they will be redeemable at
108.0% of the principal amount at that time.

The TCNZ exchangeable notes are indexed to the fair market
value of the TCNZ common stock and the ewe exchangeable
notes are indexed to the fair market value of the C&W and NTL
common stock. If the price of the shares exceeds the exchange
price established at the offering date, a mark-ta-market adjust-
ment is recorded, recognizing an increase in the carrying value of
the debt obligation and a charge to income. If the price of the
shares subsequently declines, the debt obligation is reduced (but
not to less than the amortized carrying value of the notes).

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the exchange price exceeded
the combined value of the C&W and NTL share prices, resulting in
the notes recorded at their amortized carrying value with no mark-
to-market adjustments. The decrease in the debt obligation since
December 31, 1999 of $664 million was recorded as an increase
to income in 2000 ($431 million aller-tax, or $.16 per diluted
share). For 1999, the CWC share price exceeded the exchange
price and we recorded an increase in the carrying value of the
CWC exchangeable notes of $664 million and a corresponding
charge to income ($432 million after-tax, or $.16 per diluted
share). As of December 31, 2001, we have recorded no mark-to-
market adjustments for the TCNZ exchangeable notes.

Support Agreements
All of Verizon Global Funding's debt has the benefit of Support
Agreements between us and Verizon Global Funding, which guar-
antee payment of interest, premium (if any) and principal
outstanding should Verizon Global Funding fail to pay. The holders
of Verizon Global Funding debt do not have recourse to the stock
or assets of most of our telephone operations or TCNZ; however,
they do have recourse to dividends paid to us by any of our
consolidated subsidiaries as well as assets not covered by the
exclusion. Verizon Global Funding's long-term debt, including
current portion, aggregated $19,591 million at December 31,
2001. The carrying value of the available assets reflected in our
consolidated financial statements was approximately $66.0 billion
at December 31, 2001.

Refinancing of Short-Term Debt
As of December 31, 2000, Verizon had the ability and intent to
extend $4,120 million of short-term revolving loans beyond one
year. Consequently, this debt was reclassified to Long-Term Debt
in the consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2001,
these revolving loans have been replaced with other floating and
fixed rate long-term debt.

Maturities of Long- Term Debt
Maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2001
are $5.8 billion in 2002. $6.0 billion in 2003, $5.4 billion in 2004,
$5.8 billion in 2005, $4.3 billion in 2006 and $24.2 billion there-
after. These amounts include the redeemable debt at the earliest
redemption dates.
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FiNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives - Effective January 1, 2001
We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133 effective January 1,
2001. The initial impact of adoption of SFAS No. 133 on our
consolidated financial statements was recorded as a cumulative
effect of an accounting change resulting in a charge of $182
million to current earnings and income of $110 million to other
comprehensive income (loss). The recognition of assets and liabili-
ties was immaterial to our financial position. The ongoing effect of
SFAS No. 133 on our consolidated financial statements will be
determined each quarter by several factors, including the specific
hedging instruments in place and their relationships to hedged
items, as well as market conditions at the end of each period. For
the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded a charge to
current earnings of $182 million and a loss of $43 million to other
comprehensive income (loss).

Interest Rate Risk Management
We have entered into domestic interest rate swaps, to achieve a
targeted mix of fixed and variable rate debt, where we principally
receive fixed rates and pay variable rates based on USDA. These
swaps hedge against changes in the fair value of our debt portfo-
lio. We record the interest rate swaps at fair value in our balance
sheet as assets and liabilities and adjust debt for the change in its
fair value due to changes in interest rates. The ineffective portions
of these hedges at January 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 were
immaterial to our operating results.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management
Our foreign exchange risk management includes the use of
foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency interest
rate swaps with foreign currency forwards. These contracts are
typically used to hedge short-term foreign currency transactions
and commitments, or to offset foreign exchange gains or losses
on the foreign currency obligations and are designated as cash
flow hedges. The contracts have maturities ranging from approxi-
mately one month to four years. We record these contracts at fair
value as assets or liabilities and the related gains or losses are
deferred in shareowners' investment as a component of other
comprehensive income (loss). We have recorded $43 million in
other comprehensive losses at December 31,2001.

Other Derivatives
Conversion Option
In 2001 and 2000, we invested a total of approximately $1.7 billion
in MFN (see Note 10 for additional information). including $1,025
million in convertible debt securities. The conversion options on
the MFN debt securities have, as their underlying risk, changes in
the MFN stock price. This risk is not cleariy and closely related to
the change in interest rate risk underlying the debt securities.
Under SFAS No. 133 we are required to separate the conversion
options, considered embedded derivatives, from the debt securi-
ties in order to account for changes in the fair value of the
conversion options separately from changes in the fair value of the
debt securities. The debt securities will retain their classification
as available-far-sale with any temporary changes to fair value
being recorded to other comprehensive income (loss). The fair
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r value of the conversion options are recognized as assets in our
balance sheet and we record the mark-ta-market adjustment in
current earnings. The fair value of the debt securities and the
conversion options are recorded in Investments in Unconsolidated
Businesses in the consolidated balance sheets.

A net charge of $186 million related to the conversion options was
included as part of the cumulative effect of the accounting change
recorded on January 1, 2001. A net charge of $163 million was
recorded as a mark-ta-market adjustment for the year ended
December 31,2001. As of December 31,2001, the value of the
conversion options on our consolidated balance sheet is approxi-
mately $48 million.

r

Warrants
On October 10. 2000. we received warrants giving us the right to
obtain 3.1 million shares of Interland, Inc. common stock for an
exercise price of $18 per share in association with an agreement
to purchase an ownership interest in a business. SFAS No. 133
requires that these warrants be recorded at fair value in the
balance sheet with mark-to-market adjustments recorded in
current earnings. A gain of $3 million was recorded as the cumula-
tive effect of an accounting change on January 1, 2001 and a $2
million charge was recorded for the year ended December 31,
2001 as a mark-to-market adjustment.

Call Options
We previously entered into several long-term call options on our
common stock to hedge our exposure to compensation expense
related to stock-based compensation. Prior to the adoption of
SFAS No. 133, we recognized gains and losses in current earn-
ings based on changes in the intrinsic values of the options
caused by changes in the underlying stock price. SFAS No. 133
requires that we record the fair value of the options as assets and
recognize the mark-to-market adjustments as gains or losses in
current earnings. As such, we included income of $3 million as
part of the cumulative effect of an accounting change on January
1, 2001 and recorded a charge of $13 million as a mark-to-market
adjustment for the year ended December 31,2001.

Japanese Leveraged Leases
We previously entered into several long-term foreign currency
forward contracts to offset foreign exchange gains or losses asso-
ciated with Japanese yen denominated capitalized lease
payments. In accordance with SFAS No. 133, these contracts
were designated as effective cash flow hedges; however, late in
2000, we sold a location which held some of the capital leased
assets. The assets and corresponding capital lease obligations
were transferred to the purchaser as part of the sale. The forward
contracts associated with the sold assets no longer quality for
hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133, and are recorded at fair
value with mark-to-market adjustments recognized in current
earnings. We recorded a charge of $4 million as part of the cumu-
lative effect of an accounting change on January 1, 2001 and
recorded a charge of $4 million in mark-to-market adjustment for
the year ended December 31, 2001. We have recorded $2 million
in other comprehensive losses at December 31, 2001 for the
contracts designated as effective cash flow hedges.
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Derivatives - Prior to January 1, 2001
Prior to January 1, 2001, we applied several accounting principles
pertaining to our investments in derivatives, which have been
superseded by SFAS No. 133. The table that follows provides
additional information about our risk management in accordance
with those principles. The notional amounts shown were used to
calculate interest payments, foreign currencies and stock to be
exchanged. These amounts were not actually paid or received,
nor were they a measure of our potential gains or losses from
market risks. They did not represent our exposure in the event of
nonperformance by a counterparty or our future cash require-
ments. Our financial instruments were grouped based on the
nature of the hedging activity.

Notional
At December 31, 2000 Amount Maturities

(dollars In mUlions)
Weighted-Average Rate
Receive Pay

Interest Rate Swap
Agreements

Pay fixed
Pay variable

$ 270 2001 - 2005 Various
$ 901 2001 - 2007 7.0%

6.3%
Various

Foreign Currency
Contracts $ 613 2001-2005

Interest Rate Cap/Floor
Agreements $ 147 2001-2002

Basis Swap Agreements $ 1,001 2003 - 2004

Call Options on
Common Stock $ 80 2001 - 2006

Interest Rate Risk Management
Interest rate swap agreements, which sometimes incorporated
options and interest rate caps and floors were all used to adjust
the interest rate profile of our debt portfolio and allowed us to
achieve a targeted mix of fixed and variable rate debt. We entered
into domestic interest rate swaps, where we principally paid float-
ing rates and received fixed rates, as indicated in the previous
table, primarily based on six-month L1S0R. At December 31,
2000, the six-month USOR was 6.2%.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management
Our foreign exchange risk management included the use of
foreign currency forward contracts, options and foreign currency
swaps. Forward contracts and options called for the sale or
purchase, or the option to sell or purchase, certain foreign curren-
cies on a specified future date. These contracts were typically
used to hedge short-term foreign currency transactions and
commitments, or to offset foreign exchange gains or losses on the
foreign currency obligations. The contracts outstanding at
December 31, 2000 had maturities ranging from apprOXimately
one month to four years.

Our net equity position in unconsolidated foreign businesses as
reported in our consolidated balance sheets totaled $5,386 million
at December 31, 2000. Our most significant investments at
December 31, 2000 had operations in Italy, Venezuela and Canada.
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Our equity income is sUbject to exchange rate fluctuations when
our equity investees have balances denominated in currencies
other than the investees' functional currency. We recognized
losses of $2 million in 2000 and $9 million in 1999 related to such
fluctuations in Equity in Income (Loss) from Unconsolidated
Businesses. In 2000. our consolidated subsidiaries recognized a
net loss of $23 million related to balances denominated in curren-
cies other than their functional currencies. Our consolidated
subsidiaries recognized a net gain of $14 million in 1999, primarily
due to a $15 million gain recognized by lusacell related to
balances denominated in a currency other than its functional
currency, the Mexican peso.

We continually monitor the relationship between gains and losses
recognized on all of our foreign currency contracts and on the
underlying transactions being hedged to mitigate market risk.

Concentrations of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that subject us to concentrations of credit
risk consist primarily of temporary cash investments, short-term
and long-term investments, trade receivables, certain notes
receivable, preferred stock, and derivative contracts. Our policy
is to place our temporary cash investments with major financial
institutions. Counterparties to our derivative contracts are also
major financial institutions and organized exchanges. The finan-
cial institutions have all been accorded high ratings by primary
rating agencies. We limit the dollar amount of contracts entered
into with anyone financial institution and monitor our counter-
parties' credit ratings. We generally do not give or receive
collateral on swap agreements due to our credit rating and those
of our counterparties. While we may be exposed to credit losses
due to the nonperformance of our counterparties, we consider
the risk remote and do not expect the settlement of these trans-
actions to have a material effect on our results of operations or
financial condition.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The tables that follow provide additional information about our
material financial instruments:

Financial Instrument Valuation Method

Cash and cash equivalents and
short·term investments

Carrying amounts

Short- and long-term debt
(excluding capital teases and
exchangeable notes)

Exchangeable notes

Cost investments in unconsolidated
businesses and notes receivable

Market Quotes for similar terms and
maturities or future cash flows
discounted at current rates

Market Quotes

Future cash flows discounted at
current rates. market Quotes for
similar instruments or other
valuation models
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2001
(dollars in millions)

2000
Canylng Fair Carrying Fair

At December 31, Amount Value Amount Value

Short- and long-term debt $58,303 $58,613 $51,475 $51,180
Exchangeable notes 5,744 S.678 5,710 5,694
Cost investments in

unconsolidated businesses 3,390 3,390 6,607 6,607
Notes receivable, net 1,299 1,299 1,395 1,393

The decrease in our cost investments in unconsolidated busi-
nesses resulted primarily from declines in the market values of
our investments in Genuity, caw, NTl and MFN, as previously
discussed.

SHAREOWNERS' INVESTMENT

Our certificate of incorporation provides authority for the issuance
of up to 250 million shares of Series Preferred Stock, $.10 par
value, in one or more series, with such designations, preferences,
rights, qualifications, limitations and restrictions as the Board of
Directors may determine.

We are authorized to issue up to 4.25 billion shares of common
stock,

Common Stock Buyback Program
On March 1, 2000, our Board of Directors authorized a new two-
year share buyback program through which we may repurchase
up to 80 million shares of common stock in the open market. As
of December 31, 2001, we had repurchased 35.5 million shares
principally under this program. The Board of Directors also
rescinded a previous authorization to repurchase up to $1.4 billion
in Verizon shares. On January 24, 2002, our Board of Directors
approved the extension of the stock repurchase program to the
earlier of the date on which the aggregate number of shares
purchased under the program after March 1, 2000 reaches 80
million shares, or the close of business on February 29, 2004. All
other terms of the prior resolutions dated March 1, 2000 remain in
full force and effect.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

The following table is a reconciliation of the numerators and We have stock-based compensation plans, which permit the
denominators used in computing earnings per share: issuance of stock-based instruments, including fixed stock

(dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounts) options, performance-based shares. restricted stock and phan-

Years Ended December 31, .1.11 2000 1999 tom shares. We recognize no compensation expense for our fixed
stock option plans. Compensation expense charged to income for

Net Income Available To our performance-based share plans was $66 million in 2001, $101
Common Shareowners

million in 2000, and $61 million in 1999. If we had eiected to
Income before extraordinary items and

cumulative effect of accounting change $ 590 $ 10,810 $ 8,296 recognize compensation expense based on the fair value at the
Redemption of subsidiary date of grant for the fixed and performance-based plan awards

preferred stock (10) consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, net income and
Income available to common earnings per share would have been changed to the pro forma

shareowners* 590 10,800 8,296 amounts below:
Extraordinary items, net (19) 1,027 (36)
Cumulative effect of accounting (dollars in miHions,except per share amounts)

change, net (182) (40) Years Ended December 31, Ii.Ii 2000 1999

Net income available to
Net Income (loss) available

common shareowners* $ 389 $ 11,787 $ 8,260
to common shareowners As reported $ 389 $ 11,787 $ 8,260

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per
Proforma (109) 11,445 8,075

Common Share
DUuted earnings

weighted·average shares outstanding 2,110 2,713 2,739
Income before extraordinary items and

(loss) per share As reported $ .14 $ 4.31 $ 2.97

cumulative effect of accounting change $ .22 $ 3.98 $ 3.03
Pro forma (.04) 4.19 2.91

Extraordinary items, net (.01) .37 (.01)
Cumulative effect of accounting We determined the pro forma amounts using the Black-Scholes

change, net (.07) (.01) option-pricing model based on the following weighted-averager, Net income $ .14 $ 4.34 $ 3.02 assumptions:

Diluted Eamlngs (Loss) Per 'ii' 2000 1999

Common Share Dividend yield 2.7% 3.3% 3.4%
weighted·average shares outstanding 2,110 2.713 2.739 Expected volatility 29.1% 27.5% 20.0%
Effect of dilutive securities 20 24 38 Risk-free interest rate 4.8% 6.2% 5.3%
Weighted-average shares - diluted 2,130 2,737 2,777 Expected lives On years) 6 6 6
Income before extraordinary items and

cumulative effect of accounting change $ .22 $ 3.95 $ 2.98 The weighted-average value of options granted during 2001, 2000
Extraordinary items, net (.01) .37 (.01) and 1999 was $15.24, $13.09 and $11.58, respectively.
Cumulative effect of accounting

change, net (.07) (.01)
Net income $ .14 $ 4.31 $ 2.97

Income and Net Income available to common shareowners Is the same for
purposes of calculating basic and diluted earnings per share.

Certain outstanding options to purchase shares were not included
in the computation of diluted earnings per common share
because to do so would have been anti-dilutive for the period,
including approximately 115.7 million shares during 2001, 85.3
million shares during 2000 and .3 million shares during 1999.

63



06/0412002
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ,onlio"",,

~ Our stock incentive plans are described below:,
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Fixed Stock Option Plans
We have fixed stock option plans for substantially all employees.
Options to purchase common stock were granted at a price
equal to the market price of the stock at the date of grant. The
options generally vest over three years and have a maximum
term of ten years.

This table summarizes our fixed stock option plans:

Stock Options Weighted-Average
(In thousands) Exercise Price

Outstanding, January 1. 1999
Granted
Exercised
Canceled/forleited

Outstanding, December 31, 1999
Granted
Exercised
Canceledlforfeited

Outstanding, December 31, 2000
Granted
Exercised
Canceledlforleited

Outstanding, December 31,2001

Options exercisable, December 31.
1999
2000

t'"' 2001

135,053
55,423

(30,189)
(4,123)

156,164
98,022

(14,663)
(6,955)

232,568
34,217

(15,358)
(6,219)

245,208

94,719
111,021
131,924

$ 36.01
55.21
34.05
43.19
42.76
48.93
35.57
51.39
45.58
55.93
35,64
47.82
47.60

35.79
40.97
45.29

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2001:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable
Rangeot Sh..... Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Sha,.. weighted-Average

Exercise Prices (in thousands) Remaining ute Exercise Price (In thousands) Exercise Price

$ 20.00 - 29.99 13,905 2.1 years $ 25.41 13,905 $ 25.41
30.00 - 39.99 32,073 4.7 34.76 32,073 34.76
40,00 - 49.99 82,409 7.9 44.08 29,066 45.35
50.00 - 59.99 114,784 8.0 56.13 55,243 55.86
60.00 - 69.99 2,037 7.8 62.44 1,637 62.69

Total 245,208 7.2 47.60 131,924 45.29

Performance-Based Shares
Performance-based share programs provided for the granting of
awards to certain key employees of the former Bell Atlantic, which
are now fully vested. Certain key employees of the former GTE
participated in the Equity Participation Program (EPP), Under EPP,
a portion of their cash bonuses were deferred and held in
restricted stock units for a minimum of three years. In 2000,
certain key Verizon employees were granted restricted stock units
that vest over a three to five year period.

The number of shares outstanding in the performance-based
share programs were 4,507,000, 4,387,000 and 2,133,000 at
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively,

54



06/04/2002
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ''''''immd

Page 289

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

We maintain noncontributory defined benefit pension plans for
substantially all employees. The postretirement healthcare and life
insurance plans for our retirees and their dependents are both
contributory and noncontributory and include a limit on the
company's share of cost for certain recent and future retirees. We
also sponsor defined contribution savings plans to provide oppor-
tunities for eligible employees to save for retirement on a
tax-deferred basis.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits
Pension and other postretirement benefits for the majority of our
employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements.
Modifications in benefits have been bargained from time to time,
and we may also periodically amend the benefits in the manage-
ment plans. At December 31, 2001, shares of our common stock
accounted for less than 1% of the assets held in the pension and
postretirement benefit trusts.

The following tables summarize benefit costs, as well as the benefit obligations, plan assets, funded status and rate assumptions associ-
ated with pension and postretirement healthcare and life insurance benefit plans.

Benefit Cost
(dollars in millions)

Pension Heatthcare and Ute
Years Ended December 31, i,!'" 2000 1999 .1.1_ 2000 1999

Service cost $ 685 $ 612 $ 675 $ 128 $ 121 $ 149
Interest cost 2,490 2,562 2,485 965 909 822
Expected return on plan assets (4,811) (4,686) (4,089) (461) (441) (373)
Amortization of transition asset (112) (127) (150)
Amortization of prior service cost (44) (66) (94) (26) (28) (22)
Actuarial gain, net (878) (623) (241) (78) (124) (83)
Net periodic benefit (income) cost (2,690) (2,328) (1,414) 528 437 493
Termination benefits, curtailments and other, net 007 (250) 152

1"". Settlement loss (gain) 35 (911) (663) (43) (8)
Subtotal 842 (1,161) (511) (43) (8)
Total (income) cost $ (1,848) $ (3,489) $ (1,925) $ 528 $ 394 $ 485

Assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used are based on market interest rates, past experience, and management's best estimate of future
economic conditions. Changes in these assumptions may impact future benefit costs and obligations. The weighted-average assump-
tions used in determining expense and benefit obligations are as follows:

2000

Pension
1999 .1.. -

Healthcare and U1e
2000 1999

Discount rate at end of year
LongMterm rate of return on plan assets for the year

Rate of future increases in compensation at end of year
Medical cost trend rate at end of year

Ultimate (year 2005)

7.25%
9.25
5,00

7.75%
9.25
5.00

8.00%
9.00
4.80

7.25%
9.10
4.00

10.00
5.00

7.75%
9.10
4.00
5.00
5.00

8.00%
8.90
4.20
5.75
5.15

The medical cost trend rate significantly affects the reported postretirement benefit costs and obligations. A one-percentage-point
change in the assumed healthcare cost trend rate would have the following effects:

One·Percentage-Point Increase

(dollars in millions)

Decrease

Effect on 2001 total service and interest cost
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31,2001

$ 85
957

$ (57)
(794)
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rc (dollars in millions)
Pension Healthcare and ute

At December 31, ,I••' 2000 .1.. - 2000

Benefit Obfigation
Beginning of year $ 33,136 $ 32,996 $ 12,397 $ 11,168
Service cost 665 612 128 121
Interest cost 2.490 2,562 965 909
Plan amendments 721 564 (601) 33
Actuarial loss. net 1,888 1,275 2,394 1,067
Benefits paid (3,851) (3,371) (988) (828)
Tennination benefits 813
Acquisitions (divestitures) 70 (215) 15 (43)
Settlements and curtailments 15 (1,407) (30)
Other 444 120
End of year 36.391 33,136 14,310 12,397
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Beginning of year 55,225 59,141 5,236 5,590
Actual return on plan assets (3,063) 1,294 (252) (128)
Company contributions 81 138 253 243
Benefits paid (3,851) (3,371) (517) (457)
Settlements (1,764) (2)
Acquisitions (divestitures) 167 (216)
Other (1) 3
End of year 48,558 55,225 4,720 5,236
Funded Status
End alyear 12,167 22,089 19,580) (7,161)

Unrecognized
Actuarial (gain) loss, net (4,547) (15,153) 1,121 (2,019)
Prior service (benefit) cost 817 54 (960) (407)
Transition asset (160) (272)

(---
Net amount recognized $ 8,2n $ 6,718 $ 19,449) $ (9,587)

Amounts recognized on the balance sheet
Prepaidpensioncost $ 9,738 $ 8,626 $ $
Employeebenefitobligation (1,601) (1,981) (9,449) (9,587)
Otherassets 108 21
Accumulatedother comprehensiveloss 32 52

Net amountrecognized $ 8,277 $ 6,718 $ (9,449) $ (9,587)

Changes in benefit obligations were caused by factors including Savings Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plans
changes in actuarial assumptions (see "Assumptions"), plan We maintain four leveraged employee stock ownership plans
amendments and special termination benefits. In 2000 and 1999, (ESOP); two were established by Sell Atlantic and one each by
the former GTE's lump-sum pension distributions surpassed the GTE and NYNEX. Under these plans, we match a certain percent-
settlement threshold equal to the sum of service cost and interest age of eligible employee contributions to the saVings plans with
cost requiring settlement gain recognition for all cash settlements shares of our common stock from these ESOPs. At the date of the
for each year. In 2001, Verizon announced an employee severance respective mergers, NYNEX and GTE common stock outstanding
plan (see Note 6). As a result, we recorded pension termination was converted to Bell Atlantic shares using an exchange ratio of
benefits of $813 million for related pension enhancements. 0.768 and 1.22 per share of Bell Atlantic common stock to one

share of NYNEX and GTE common stock, respectively. Common
stock is allocated from all leveraged ESOP trusts based on the
proportion of principal and interest paid on ESOP debt in a year to
the remaining principal and interest due over the term of the debt.
At December 31, 2001, the number of unallocated and allocated
shares of common stock was 21 million and 60 million, respec-
tively. All leveraged ESOP shares are included in earnings per
share computations.

{'
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f"", We recognize leveraged ESOP cost based on the modified shares,
allocated method for the Bell Atlantic and GTE leveraged ESOP
trusts which purchased securities before December 15, 1989 and
the shares allocated method for the NYNEX leveraged ESOP trust
which purchased securities after December 15, 1989.

ESOP cost and trust activity consist of the following:

(dollars In mUlions)

Years Ended December 31, i,!n. 2000 1999

Compensation $ 121 $ 161 $ 176
Interest incurred 61 69 66
Dividends (36) (43) (50)
Net leveraged ESOP cost 146 187 212
Additional (reduced) ESOP cost 90 (19) (74)
Total ESOP cost $ 236 $ 168 $ 139

Dividends received for debt service $ 87 $ 87 $ 134

Total company contributions to

leveraged ESOP trusts $ 259 $ 151 $ 265

In addition to the ESOPs described above, we maintain savings
plans for non-management employees and employees of certain
subsidiaries. Compensation expense associated with these
savings plans was $252 million in 2001, $219 million in 2000, and
$161 million in 1999.

i.. •

(',
INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense from continuing opera-
tions are as follows:

(dollars in millions)

YearsEndedDecember31, .i';' 2000 1999

Current
Federal $ 759 $ 3,165 $ 2,612
Foreign 94 105 83
Stateand local 258 657 379

1,111 3,927 3,074
Deferred

Federal 898 2,969 1,708
Foreign (16) (50) 148
Stateand local 232 553 338

1,114 3,462 2,194
Investmenttax credits (49) (28) (46)
Othercredits (352) (350)
Totalincometax expense $ 2,176 $ 7,009 $ 4,872
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The following table shows the principal reasons for the difference
between the effective income tax rate and the statutory federal
income tax rate:

YearsEndedDecember31, ,"" 2000 1999

Statutoryfederalincometax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Stateand local incometax.

net of federaltax benefits 11.5 4.3 3.5
Losson investments 40.2 .3
Equityin income(loss)from

unconsolidatedbusinesses (11.1) (1.2) (.3)
Other,net 3.1 .9 (1.2)
Effectiveincometax rate 78.7% 39.3% 37.0%

The increase in our effective income tax rate in 2001 is primarily
because tax benefits are not currently and may never be available
on many of the losses resulting from the other than temporary
decline in market value of our investments during 2001 (see Note 9).

Deferred taxes arise because of differences in the book and tax
bases of certain assets and liabilities. Significant components of
deferred tax liabilities (assets) are shown in the following table:

At December31,
(dollars in millions)

.i." 2000

Depreciation
Employeebenefits
Leasingactivity
Net unrealizedlosseson

marketablesecurities
Wirelessjoint venture
Exchangeof ewe stock
Other-net

$ 6,171
(533)

3,060

$ 5,360
(1,623)
2,953

(1,124)
7,287

(515)
5,925
1,147

589(459)

Valuationallowance
Net deferredtax liability

14,402
1,574

13,836
441

$15,978 $ 14,277

At December 31, 2001, undistributed earnings of our foreign
subsidiaries amounted to approximately $4 billion. Deferred
income taxes are not provided on these earnings as it is intended
that the earnings are indefinitely invested outside of the U.S. It is
not practical to estimate the amount of taxes that might be
payable upon the remittance of such earnings.

The valuation allowance primarily represents the tax benefits of
certain state net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred
tax assets which may expire without being utilized. During 2001.
the valuation allowance increased $1,133 million. This increase
primarily relates to the write-down of investments for which tax
benefits may never be realized.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

We have four reportable segments, which we operate and manage
as strategic business units and organize by products and
services. We measure and evaluate our reportable segments
based on adjusted net income, which excludes unallocated
corporate expenses and other adjustments arising during each
period. The other adjustments include transactions that manage-
ment excludes in assessing business unit performance due
primarily to their nonrecurring and/or non-operational nature.
Although such transactions are excluded from the business
segment results, they are included in reported consolidated earn-
ings. Gains and losses that are not individually significant are
included in all segment results, since these items are included in
management's assessment of unit performance. These are mostly
contained in International and Information Services since they
actively manage investment portfolios.

Our segments and their principal activities consist of the following:

Segment Description

Domestic Telecom Domestic wireline communications services, princi-
pally representing our telephone operations that
provide local telephone services in 32 states and
the District of Columbia. These services include
voice and data transport, enhanced and custom
calling features, network access, directory assis-
tance, private lines and public telephones. This
segment also provides long distance services,
customer premises equipment distribution, data
solutions and systems integration, billing and
collections, Internet access services, research and
development and Inventory management services.

Domestic Wireless Domestic wireless products and services include
wireless voice and data services, paging services and
equipmentsales.

International International wireline and wireless communications
operations, investmentsand managementcontracts in
the Americas,Europe,Asia and the Pacific.

Information
ServIces

Domestic and international publishing businesses,
including print and electronic directories and Intemet·
based shopping guides, as well as website creation
and other electronic commerceservices.This segment
has operations principally in North America, Europe
and LatinAmerica.
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Geographic Areas
Our foreign investments are located principally in Europe, the
Americas and Asia. Domestic and foreign operating revenues are
based on the location of customers. Long-lived assets consist of
plant, property and equipment (net of accumulated depreciation)
and investments in unconsolidated businesses. The table below
presents financial information by major geographic area:

(dollarsin mUllons)
Years Ended December 31, 2000 1999

Domestic
Operating revenues $ 64,649 $ 62,066 $ 55,802
Long-lived assets 74,462 71,180 61,944

Foreign
Operating revenues 2,541 2,641 2,392
Long-lived assets 10,159 11,439 10,406

Consolidated
Operating revenues 67,190 64,707 58,194
Long-lived assets 84,621 82,619 72,350
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r"\ Reportable Segments
• The following table provides adjusted operating financial information for our four reportable segments:

(dollars in millions)
Domestic Domestic Information Total Segments.. Telecom Wireless International Services Ad usted

External revenues $ 42,600 $ 17,352 $ 2,281 $ 4,267 $ 66,500
Intersegment revenues 478 41 58 48 821

Total operating revenues 43,078 17,393 2,337 4,313 67,121
Depreciation & amortization 9,332 3,709 422 79 13,542
EqUity in income from unconsolidated businesses 4 5 919 928
Interest income 133 12 93 22 260
Interest expense (1,787) (577) (439) (39) (2,842)
Income tax expense (3,262) (413) (31) (892) (4,598)
Net income 4,910 537 958 1,352 7,757
Assets 82,835 60,262 14,324 4,160 181,381
Investments in unconsolidated businesses 69 285 7,317 10 7,681
Capital expenditures 11,480 5,006 704 93 17,283

2000

External revenues $ 42,597 $ 14,194 $ 1,976 $ 4,031 $ 62,798
Intersegment revenues 746 42 113 901

Total operating revenues 43,343 14,236 1,976 4,144 63,699
Depreciation & amortization 8,752 2,894 355 74 12,075
Equity in income from unconsolidated businesses 35 55 672 5 767
Interest income 116 66 28 13 223
Interest expense (1,767) (617) (396) (25) (2,807)
Income tax (expense) benefit (3,311) (345) 53 (788) (4,391)
Net income 5,135 444 733 1,238 7,550
Assets 76,112 56,029 14,466 3,146 151,755
Investments in unconsolidated businesses 24 133 8,919 28 9,104

r" Capital expenditures 12,119 4,322 586 48 17,075

1999

External revenues $ 41,075 $ 7,632 $ 1,714 $ 3,971 $ 54,392
Intersegment revenues 648 21 115 784

Total operating revenues 41,723 7,653 1,714 4,086 55,176
Depreciation & amortization 8,200 1,100 264 76 9,640
Equity in income (loss) from unconsolidated businesses 10 1 547 (1) 557
Interest income 54 5 17 15 91
Interest expense (1,623) (247) (268) (20) (2,158)
Income tax (expense) benefit (3,249) (443) 9 (780) (4,463)
Net income 5,020 626 616 1,211 7,477
Assets 69,997 16,590 12,543 2,629 101,959
Investments in unconsolidated businesses 23 1,464 7,936 35 9,456
Capital expenditures 10,087 1,497 521 50 12,155
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,,-., Reconciliation To Consolidated Financial Information Pension settlement gains before tax of $911 million and $663
t A reconciliation of the adjusted results for the operating segments million ($564 million and $410 million after-tax) were recognized

to the applicable line items in the consolidated financial 5tate- for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
ments is as follows: These gains were recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 88. They

(dollars In millions) relate to the settlement of pension obligations for former GTE
diu' 2000 1999 employees through the purchase of annuities or otherwise. There

Operating Revenues were no similar pension settlement gains recorded during 2001.
Total reportable segments $ 67,121 $ 63.699 $ 55.176

As described in Note 1, Verizon adopted the provisions of SABGenuity and GTE Government Systems 529 1,789
Domestic Telecom operations sold No. 101 effective January 1, 2000. The revenue reclassification in

(see Note 5) 766 1,151 1999 that would have been recorded had SAB No. 101 been
Merger-related regulatory settlements (69) effective January 1, 1999 would have been a reduction of
Impact of accounting change revenues of $117 million and a reduction of operating costs and

(SAB No. 101) 117 expenses of $109 million.
Corporate, eliminations and other 69 (218) (39)
Consolidated operating revenues- Corporate, eliminations and other includes unallocated corporate

reported $ 67,190 $ 64,707 $ 68,194 expenses, intersegment eliminations recorded in consolidation,

Net Income
the results of other businesses such as lease financing, and asset

Total reportable segments $ 7,757 $ 7,550 $ 7,477
impairments and expenses that are not allocated in assessing

Merger-related costs (749) segment performance due to their nonrecurring nature.
Transition costs (578) (316) (126) We generally account for intersegment sales of products and
Sales of assets, net (226) 1,987 819
(LossVgain on securities (4,858) 1,941 services and asset transfers at current market prices. We are not

Settlement gains 564 410 dependent on any single customer.
Mark-to-market adjustment

- financial instruments (179) 431 (432)
Genuity loss (281) (325)
NorthPoint investment write-off (153)
Severance/retirement enhancement (1,001)

0 International restructuring (663) (50)
Wireless joint venture 173
Other charges and special Items (95) (526) (126)
Extraordinary items (19) 1,027 (36)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (1621 (40) 8
Corporate and other 433 412 418
Consolidated net income - reported $ 389 $ 11,797 $ 8.260

Assets
Total reportable segments $161,381 $t51,755 $101,959

Reconciling items 9,414 12,980 10,871

Consolidated assets $170,795 $164,735 $112.830
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains and losses affecting shareowners' investment that, under generally
accepted accounting principles, are excluded from net income.

Changes in the components of other comprehensive income (loss), net of income tax expense (benefit), are as follows:

li4M 2000
(dollars in millions)

1999Years Ended December 31,

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, net of taxes of $••, $1 and $1
Umealized Gains (Losses) on Marketable Securities
Unrealized gains (losses), net of taxes of $(403), $(1,077) and $648

Less: reclassification adjustments for gains (losses) realized in net income,
net of taxes of $(1.059), $51 and $..

Add: reclassification of earnings due to accounting change for derivatives
Net unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities
Unrealized Derivative Losses on Cash Flow Hedges
Cumulative effect of accounting change
Unrealized losses

less: reclassification adjustments for losses realized in net income
Net unrealized derivative losses on cash flow hedges
Minimum Pension Uability Adjustment. net of taxes of $7, $(13) and $5
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

$ (40) $ (262) $ (41)

(2,402) (1.877) 1.198

(3,351)
112

88

1,061 (1,965) 1.197

(2)
(68)

(25)
(45)
13 (24) 7

$ 989 $ (2.251) $ 1.163

The reclassification adjustments for losses realized in net income on marketable securities in 2001 primarily relate to the other than
temporary decline in market value of certain of our investments in marketable securities (see Note 9). The unrealized derivative losses
result from our hedges of foreign exchange risk (see Note 15). The net unrealized losses on marketable securities in 2000 primarily relate
to our investments in caw, NTL and MFN. The increase in unrealized gains on marketable securities for 1999 is principally due to ther, change in accounting for our investment in TCNZ from the eqUity method to the cost method in 1999.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss are as follows:

4,1'"
(dollars in millions)

2000At December 31,

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities
Unrealized derivative losses on cash flow hedges
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

$ (1,448)
327
(45)
(21)

$ (1,408)
(734)

(34)
$ (1,187) $ (2.176)
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ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The tables that follow provide additional financial information
related to our consolidated financial statements:

Income Statement Information

Years Ended December 31, .i'" (dollars in millions)

2000 1999

Depreciation expense
Taxes other than income
Interest expense incurred
Capitalized interest

Advertising expense

$ 11,155
2,246
3,737

(368)
1,454

9,550
2,218
2,762

(146)

796

$ 10,276 $
2,210
3,720
(230)

1,399

Balance Sheet Infannation

At December 31,
(dollars in mitWons)

Nul 2000

Intangible Assets, Net
Intangible assets
Accumulated amortization

$ 49,081
(4,819)

$ 44,605
(2,615)

$ 44,262 $ 41,990

Accounts Payable and Accrued Uabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued vacation pay
Accrued salaries and wagesr\ Interest payable

~ Accrued taxes

$ 5,171 $ 6,247
3.224 3,063
1,086 1,043
1,985 1,346

826 574
1,855 1,692

$13,947 $ 13,965
Other Current Uabllittes
Advance billings and customer deposits
Dividends payable
Other

$ 1,840
1,061
2,703

$ 1,162
1,053
3,218

$ 5,404 $ 5,433

Cash Flow Information

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars In mtlNons)
.i.Ii 2000 1999

Cash Paid
Income taxes, net of amounts refunded $
Interest, net of amounts capitalized
Supplemental investing and

financing transactions:
Assets acquired in

business combinations
Uabilities assumed in

business combinations
Debt assumed in

business combinations

$ 3,201
3,414

$ 1,997
2,628

945
3,289

3,075 6,944 3,960

37 3,667 259

215 4,387 490

,.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Several state and federal regulatory proceedings may reqUire our
telephone operations to refund to customers a portion of ther-. revenues collected in the current and prior periods. There are also
various legal actions pending to which we are a party and claims
which, if asserted, may lead to other legal actions. We have estab-
lished reserves for specific liabilities in connection with regulatory
and legal actions, including environmental matters, that we
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currently deem to be probable and estimable. We do not expect
that the ultimate resolution of pending regUlatory and legal matters
in future periods will have a material effect on our financial condi-
tion, but it could have a material effect on our results of operations.

On January 29, 2001, the bidding phase of the FCC reauction of
1.9 GHz C and F block broadband Personal Communications
Services spectrum licenses, which began December 12, 2000,
officially ended. Verizon Wireless was the winning bidder for 113
licenses. The total price of these licenses was $8,781 million,
$1,822 million of which has already been paid, Most of the
licenses that were reauctioned relate to spectrum that was preVi-
ously licensed to NextWave Personal Communications Inc. and
NextWave Power Partners Inc. (collectively NextWave), which
have appealed to the federal courts the FCC's action canceling
NextWave's licenses and reclaiming the spectrum.

In a decision on June 22, 2001, the U,S, Court of Appeals for the
D.C. Circuit ruled that the FCC's cancellation and repossession of
NextWave's licenses was unlawful. The FCC sought a stay of the
court's decision which was denied. The FCC subsequently rein-
stated NextWave's licenses, but it has neither returned Verizon
Wireless's payment on the NextWave licenses nor has it acknowl-
edged that the court's decision extinguished Verizon Wireless's
obligation to purchase the licenses, On October 19, 2001 the FCC
filed a petition with the U.S. Supreme Court to reverse the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit's decision. On March 4,
2002, the U,S, Supreme Court granted the FCC's petition and
agreed to hear the appeal.

During the fourth quarter of 2000, Verizon Wireless agreed to
acquire the wireless business of Price Communications Corp.
(Price) in exchange for Verizon Wireless stock and the repayment
by Verizon Wireless of net debt. The transaction was conditioned
upon completion of a Verizon Wireless initial public offering. The
agreement permitted either party to terminate the agreement if the
closing did not occur by September 30, 2001. Because that dead-
line was not met, Verizon Wireless began discussing alternative
forms of consideration and other terms with Price for acquiring
Price's wireless business. In December 2001, Verizon Wireless
and Price announced that an agreement had been reached
combining Price's wireless business with a portion of Verizon
Wireless in a transaction valued at approximately $1.7 billion,
including $550 million of net debt. The resulting limited partner-
ship will be controlled and managed by Verizon Wireless. Price's
partnership interest will be exchangeable into Verizon Wireless or
Verizon stock, subject to several conditions. Price's wireless oper-
ations serve approximately 560,000 customers in the
Southeastern U.S. We expect the transaction to close during the
second quarter of 2002, SUbject to Price shareholder approval and
other customary closing conditions.

In 2001, we agreed to provide up to $2,0 billion in financing to
Genuity with a maturity in 2005, As of December 31, 2001, $1,150
million of that commitment had been loaned to Genuity, and is
reported in Other Assets in the consolidated balance sheets.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

(dollars In milUons, except per share amounts)
Income (loss) before extraordinary Items and

Cumulative Effect of Accountlng Change

Operating Operating Per Share- Per Share- Net Income
Quarter Ended Revenues Income Amount BasIc Diluted (Loss)

&DI
March 31 $ 16,266 $ 3,607 $ 1,754 $ .65 $ .65 $ 1,572
June 30(8) 16,909 3,801 (1,021) (.38) (.38) (1,021)
September 30 17,004 3,677 1,883 .69 .69 1,875
December 31 (b) 17,011 447 (2,026) (.75) (.75) (2,037)

2000
March 31 (c) $ 14,532 $ 3,828 $ 1,564 $ .56 $ .56 $ 1,515
June 30(d) 16,769 4,609 4.904 1.80 1.79 4,904
September 30(8) 16,533 4,942 2,640 .97 .97 3,466
December 31 16,873 3.379 1,702 .63 ,62 1,912

(a) Resutts of operations for the second quarter of 2001 include a $2,926 million after·tax loss on securities.
(bl Results of operations for the fourth quarter of 2001 Include a $1,932 million after-tax loss on securities, a $1,001 mUllen after-tax charge for severance benefits, and a $663

million after-tax charge related to international operations, includlng ell.

(e) Results of operations for the first quarter of 2000 include a $536 million after-tax loss on mark·te-market adjustment for ewe exchangeable notes.
(et) Results of operations for the second quarter of 2000 Include a $722 million after-tax gain on mark-to-market adjustment for ewe exchangeable notes, a $1,941 mlUlon after-tax

gain on exchange of ewe stock, and a $1 ,811 million after-tax gain related to the sale of overlapping wireless properties and non-strategic domestic access lines, partially offset

by a $1,032 million after-tax charge for direct merger, severance and transitioo costs related to the Bell Atlantic-GTE merger.
(e) Results of operations for the third quarter of 2000 Include a $245 mnllon after-tax gain ()(l mark-lo-market adjustment for ewe exchangeable notes, a $1,085 million after-tax

gain on the sale of non-strategic domestic access lines and an extraordinary gain of $826 million after-tax as a result of wireless properties sold.

Income Qoss) before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of accounting change per common share is computed independently for each quarter and the sum of the quarters

may not equal the annual amount.
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Registered Shareowner Services
Questions, Changes, Stock Transfers and Assistance-with
regard to your registered stock ownership, should be directed to
our transfer agent, EquiServe Trust Company, NA. at:

Verizon Communications Shareowner Services
c/o EquiServe
P.O. Box 43005
Providence, RI 02940-3005
Phone 800 631-2355
Website: www.equiserve.com
Email;verizon@equiserve.com

Persons outside the U.S. may call collect: 781 575-3994

Persons using a telecommunications device for the deaf (TOO)
may call: 800 524-9955

On-line Account Access- registered shareowners can view
account information on-line at:
www.verizon.comlinv8stor/accountaccess

You will need your account number, password and taxpayer
identification number. For more Information, contact EquiServe.

Electronic Delivery of Proxy Materials-registered shareowners
can receive their Annual Report, Proxy Statement, and Proxy Card
electronically, instead of receiving printed materials by mail.
Enroll at www.econsent.comlvz

Direct Dividend Deposit Servlce-Verizon Communications
offers electronic funds transfer to registered shareowners wishing
to deposit dividends directly into checking or savings accounts on
dividend payment dates. For more information, contact EquiServe.

Direct Invest Stock Purchase and Ownership Plan-verizon
Communications offers a direct stock purchase and share
ownership plan. The plan allows current and new investors to pur-
chase Verizon Communications common stock and to reinvest the
dividends towards the purchase of additional shares. To receive a
Plan Prospectus and enrollment form, contact EquiServe.

Investor Services
Shareowner Newsline-For recorded earnings highlights, dividend
announcements and other pertinent information, you may call our
newsline at: 800 235-5595

VZ Mail-Get the latest investor information delivered directly to
your desktop. Subscribe to VZ mail at our investor information web-
site-www.verizon.comlinvestor
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Stock Market Information
Shareowners of record at December 31. 2001: 1,197,000

Verizon is listed on the New York Stock Exchange
(ticker symbol: VZ)

Also listed on the Philadelphia, Boston, Chicago, Pacific, London,
Swiss, Euronext Amsterdam, and Frankfurt exchanges.

Common Stock Price and Dividend Information

Cash
Market Price Dividend

High Low Declared
2001
First Quarter $ 57.13 $ 43.80 $ 0.385
Second Quarter 56.99 47.00 0.385
Third Quarter 57.40 48.32 0.385
Fourth Quarter 55.99 48.90 0.385

2000
First Quarter $ 63.19 $ 47.38 $ 0.385
Second Quarter 66.00 49.50 0.385
Third Quarter 56.88 39.06 0.385
Fourth Quarter 59.38 45.19 0.385

Form 1o-K
To receive a copy of the 2001 Verizon Annual Report on Form 1Q-K,
which is filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, con-
tact Investor Relations:

Verizon Communications
Investor Relations
1095 Avenue of the Americas
36th Floor
New York, New York 10036
Phone 212 395-1525
Fax 212 921-2917

Corporate Governance
To receive a copy of the Yerizon Communications Corporate
Governance Guidelines, contact the Corporate Secretary:

Verizon Communications
Corporate Secretary
1095 Avenue of the Americas
38th Floor
New York, New York 10036

Equal Opportunity Policy
The Company maintains a long-standing commitment to equal
employment opportunity and valuing the diversity of its
employees, suppliers and customers. Verizon is fully committed
to a workplace free from discrimination and harassment for all
persons without regard to race, color, religion, age, gender,
national origin, sexual orientation, marital status, citizenship sta-
tus, veteran status, disability or other protected classifications.

RECORDERS MEMORANDUM
All or p~ of the text on this page was not
clearly legible for satisfactory recordation.

http://www.equiserve.com
mailto:Email;verizon@equiserve.com
http://www.verizon.comlinv8stor/accountaccess
http://www.econsent.comlvz
http://site-www.verizon.comlinvestor
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Communications System Agreement
Form 90004060 (812000)

DISTRIBUTION:
0rigineI-.sumea Opwetions & BIlling
~y- Cu.stlmeW'"c: - ~ ~nce Confntcf Control Center

H"""",",

Customer (subsequently referred to as "Customer"):

Page 301

Verizon Entity (subsequently referred to as "Verlzon"):
VERlZON ENTITY NAME

EQUIPMENT LOCATION STREET ADDRESS STREET ADDRESS

CITY ZIP CODE ZIP CODESTATE CITY STATE

BILLING STREET ADDRESS CUSTOMER HELPlINE TELEPHONE NUMBER

STATE ZIP CODE REPAIR SERVICE TELEPHONE NUMBER

CONTACT NAME CONTACT TELEPHONE NUMBER TELEPHONE NUMBERVERIZON REPRESENTATIVE NAME

PURCHASE CHOICES II PRICE

·ired Purchase

Or

o third Party LeaseIFlnance

Leasing Company Name: ----------

o E_elUSF Funding Application No.: _

o V_on Installation of the System Included

o SystemlEqulpment replaces existing Verizon equipment
o Tax Exempt Number: _

$-----

$-----

$------

$------
$

System Price

Supplemental Warranty Coverage·

Prepaid Maintenance

Third Party Vendor Maintenance

Applicable Taxes (estimate)

TOTAL PRICE 1$
Down Payment $ _

Balance Due $ _

Extends Offtce Hours warranty coverage to 24-hour coverage for major
failures during the Warranty Period

AGREEMENT

Verizon sells and Customer purchases the communicattons system (the -System-) and the installation, warranty and maintenance services shown
on pages 1, 2 and 3 and described more fully on pages 4, 5 and 6 and referenced attachments. This agreement includes the terms and conditions
on pages 4, 5 and 6. This agreement is effective on the date accepted by Verizon.

A Agreed to by Customer
SIGNATURESIGNATURE

B Accepted by Verizon:

PRINTED NAMEPRINTED NAME

DATE DATETITLE

THETEIltM8 AND CONDl1lONS PRINTED ON PAGES",' AND' ARE PART OF THIS AGREEMENT.

Page 1 of 6, Communications System Agreement (812000) Contract No.: _
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o Prepaid Maintenance - Discounted maintenance paid in advance: ____ years $-------IAnnual Ratel

Maintenance Plans are described on Page4

Data and Video Equipment

Customer purchases maintenance services for data and/or
video equipment under the Verizon Data Service Plus
Maintenance Plan as checked below and under the Payment
Option selected in Section B.

o On-5ite Office Hours

o On-5ite Around-the-Clock

o Tele-Malntenance

o Video On-5ite

o Video Tele-Maintenance

Voice Equipment

""..stomer purchases after-warranty maintenance services for
volce eqUipment under the Verizon Maintenance Plan as
checked below and under the Payment Option selected in
Section B.

o OffICe Hours

o Around-the-Clock

o Voice Service Plus

o Contract Labor

Maintenance Plans are described on Page 4

Verizon's Maintenance Services Guarantee

If, for any reason, you are not satisfied with Verizon Maintenance Services selected above, and wish to cancel maintenance
coverage, Verizon will refund the unused portion of prepaid Maintenance Services. Simply notify Verizon In Writing at least thirty
(30) days prior to cancellation.

B Verizon's Maintenance Plan Payment Options

L.... Deferred Billing - Billing for maintenance Is deferred until warranty expiration:

IYear11

Bill my deferred payment (check one):

____ years
IYear21

o annually

IYear31

o semi-annually

$ --""'''''-7""""-- $-~~~--
IYear41 IYear51

o quarterly 0 monthly

$-~~~--

c Third Party Vendor Maintenance Plan

o Customer purchases maintenance services provided by the following third party vendor:
Vendor Name: _

Vendor Service Part No.: _

Vendor Contract Reference'Number: _

When Customer purchases Vendor Maintenance, the maintenance services and the terms and conditions of those services are
specified by the Vendor and are not specified In this agreement.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment: Attachment:

Attachment: Attachment:

Attachment: Attachment:

P'''Chment : Attachment:

f, ••dChment: Attachment:

Attachment: Attachment:

TMETERM AHDCONOlllONS PRINTED ON PAGES 04, 5 AND' ARE PART OF THIS AGREEMENT.

Page 2 of 6, Communications System Agreement (812000) Contract No.: _
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7 EQUiP',"E ";T DESCRIPTION

System Type:

l)'tantity Material Code Item Description Type ot Equipment Warranty Period
(voiceldatalvideo) (in months)

Total Training Hours Allocated: I I See attached Equipment Description (Form 90004433) if equipment is notlisled above.

THETER •• AND CONDmONS PRINTED ON PAGES", 5 AND' ARE PART Of THIS AGREEMENT.

Page 3 of 6, Communications System Agreement (812000) Contract No.: _
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PART 1- Hn'ALLATION 8EIMCES
, lN8TAlJ.AnofI, by v Ia~. v...... ""_.
..... and tell .. 8vstem 10 1haI In lICCOl'dInce wlih rnantJI8cIurW'sr--,..-.:Jfi Uo .. When Customer requesIa Ihat In8tabtIon be p8l1ormed out8ide VerIzon's

, '....... _ ........ CuoIomer _ pay v Ita pNnlIum _ chorgeo. UrI-.
CuoIomer __ In wrIIlng. V CuslomoI'o _. _ for
__ for_oItho_. V _ pnl¥Ido CuoIomerwritten
.- __ tho _ tho Syalem -... __ (tho,...- Dole,.
Should Customer request delay of lnIlaIIation. Verizon may a1ol'e campoll.uts of the
SyeIIWtl at CuItomer"s rfek and expense.
2 SYSTEMACCEPrAJlCE, Tho Syalem Iaaccepted by C_ on the ... _
08le. and Customer IIQrQS to execute 8 certificate of aocepCance upon request by
v.......
a TRAINING: Wittm 30 days following the In-Servlce Dale of voice equipment. Vertzon
.. provide trWnIng on how to use the voice equipment. The nwnber of hours allocated
tor tnIInIng Is shown on pege 3. Item 7. For d&1a end video equipment. Verizon wiD
provide traInk'Ig on lnetaltation. oonfiguratlon and perfonnance tuning at Verizon's then
.....-..0-.
4. CHANQE9: Verizon will reuonabIy acx:oiihTlOdate Customer requested ch8ngee
prior to fie In.SeMc:e Date purauant 10 • written change Older executed by both parties_on __ adi_lnthe Syalem prlee and __ .

.. CUSTOIIEIlIlEllPONSl8lUTl: e- will:
(0) _V ......_ for-'1nopecIIon, 1eOIing. m_ and ropalr

01the Syalem and po""""..... 01"'Y __ .
(b) __ ...... ng_ fortheSyalemIn ....-""" ...._ ...,. __ codes

(I.a.. -. c:ondUI, .......... _ .... for_ and_In lloo<o.
c:olllnga and _I; _...- ..- and __ ......
~ -. and..- gro<rda " .." __ Inthe ... _
....... _In _ """ the __ Code and locol codo8.

(e) __ -.g. -."- and"" c:cnInlI and _ "'Y
___ -to ..... Ag-

(eI) _-..._"'-thet--Syalem-.
(e) _and_to Vorizonc:oncoolod_ ......... ",_which

_ be.- by '" __ the _Ion 01 the _. e..a-er
.. defend and hold Verizon hlrmIeq from MY dalm. dM\Ige or hbIIIty
~ from • W1ure to cIIscfoM thI8 1nIormation.

(I) Authorize Verizon, at CUlItotnef"s expense, to make servtce NQueII8 upon lhIrdpo_ for __ on ...... ...-.' __ nlng telephone

.. tvIc:e for testing where necessary.
(g) DesIgnate trash depoeh points on each toot on wtVch the System Ie: to be

Ins&8IIed where Verizon will piece waste lor removal by CLIIIotnw.

.

r". (h) CoopotaIo - Vorizon'o _ for ...-.co In _ '" 1notall0li0n.
(I) DeIignIIe Ir'Id identify to Verlzon an IncIvlduaI 10 tetve u • System

AdmbMilltW' and primary contact.
fl) Immoclotoly _ Vorizon 01 "'Y ant __ In bUldlng __ a<

inabUlIy 10 meet: Iil'l)' of the IIbove II8ted Nqlirwnent8.

PART. - WARRANTY AND IlAlNTENANCE SERVICES

'L IIAINTENANCE SERVICES: For Syslem8 inIIaIled by Verizon, during the Warranty
_ (if any) and _ the term 010 V.... on M--..... PIon _ by tho
CuoIomer end _ on pogo .. 110m 5-A, Vorizon .... moinlOln"'" _ In geed
WOItdng order, or, lor Vertzon'. TeIe-MaIntenance Plan end Verlzon', V\c:*)

TII. 'AaI"'.a PSIn. Verizon wIR provide euetomer ~ bv Ietephone to ....
.. Cwaomer 10 maIntIln the Syetem In gooc:I WOftdng order In ICCOf'del ICe with the
WIftW'lty Ir'ld'orthe Maif.6"1C8 fItBn. For Warranty and Ihoee MIlinleIleIa A..-Ior
which V.rlzon.,..,.,. the System, Verizon wilf replace or repair, lit Verizon', option,
MY materiIIe or equlp'nent neceeury tor operation of the System. TheM MrVIceI ....""'"Maln-.:o _.

2 WARRANTYPI!RIQD, Fa< __ InoIolIocl by Vorizon, tho 'W""""'" Poltod"
boglno on tho In-SeMco Dole and """""'* for tho oppIk:oble W"""",,, __
on p&gI 3. '*" 7. UnIeea otherwlIe Ilated In the Warranty Period ooh.mn, dl!da and
video equipmln Ie: 80Id with Malnten1nce s.Mces In lieu of warranty.
a IIAINTENANCE SERVICES TERM AND RENEWAL: Verizon Maintenance Planelet Wonanty begin at tho end 01 tho Wonanty _ Vorizon
__ "'- Iet __ """""' Wonanty begin" tho,,,,- Date.
HdIlI MIIntenance 8ervicee Ire provided In m~ of one year. AI thI end 01 the
IniIkII meInlenance period, Verlzon Maintenance 8eMces will thereafter renew on I
year-1o-yeIr baIIa lit VerIzon'a rate8 prwaIIIng II the beginning of eeen rnaIr'denance_(tho __ DolO"). Cuotomer...,. __ Vorizon .... ..

MY time upon 30 dIyI' pt\of written notice. Verizon may temlInate the MalnIenance
s..keI lit the end of I maintenance yMr upon written notice sjwn to the Customer
at ... 60 daya pOOr to the Renewal 0Ite. Verizon wIl( give Customer wrhten notice ofprlee _ .. _ eo _ prior 10 "'" __ Dole.

4 MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR ADDn1ONS: Verizon ~ 8eMces
h:lude maintenance tor 8ddiIIonlI to the System wNch are pun::haed from and ln8taHed
by Vorizon _ the ..... 01 Ihlo _ont. " Custcmar __ Vorizon
......... nce Servk:ee for the System and later during the term 01 thI8 AgNement
__ lrem Vorizon onlIdd1tlcr(8) to the Syotom and Vorizon _ ouch
lIddIdon(a), the Verizon WIUTIr'Ity, if any, tor such addItIon(a) IhIII M\ utltII the next

~ MIInIel .. 108 8ervleel Renewal Date, 80 that the warranty period lor the addItIon(a) wiH
F or cotInnil'lOUl wIlh the Malntenance 8erYIceI lor the System.

~ 5 IIAINTENANCE PLANS: Verizon will provide MaIntenince ServIcea under the
~ PIcl eeIecIed by CustorneI'. Maintenance Sel'Yioe8 customenI ~
priority In ropalr...- _Ing _limo and mat_ 0.--0. Once "'Y mojo<__ .... -. ..... _ """"""'- _ tho _ for the

IIPJlIcIbIe Vertzon Maintenance Plan. At CuItomer'. request. VIIfIzon wIJI conunue the
INlIntenance activity beyond the plan hours. Labor provided outside of plan hours will

Page 4 ol8, Communications System Agreement (llr'2OOO)
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be billed It the e:urrent Verizon '-bor ratae. "OfIct HounI" aN 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m .
(7:30 a.m. to 4:15 p.m. In HawlIII), ~ lime, ~ through FItdIy, uducfll'lg
VeriZOlt-Clbl8rved hoIciays.

• AFTER-WARRANTYIIMITENANCE FOR VOICE EQUIPIIENT:(0) 0flIc:0 _ PIon: ThIo .... ~_ and __ r"",",- _
0fIIc0 HounI. PBX 1lIOI'itoflng ClIpOblIlty ... be mcnItorod
from Vertzon'l Network 0perati0nIi Center ("'HOC") 8:00 a.m. 10 5:00 p.m.,_"'0019> Frtdoy only. In CuotomlM'ollmo zone ...... INo ...-- pion-... _ and"'- may be __ e.-- for ouch

moritoffng. ProbIer'n8 IhIt cause PBX I1armIIO be I'8C8ived In the HOC wUI be___ whon_. __ lafoundtobeout8ldothe_

and to be Verlzon netwoI1l reI8ted. a Vertzon ReId SeMcea T-ehnic:ian wUl
~ -.y __ to _the...- ..... ulIon. PBX
.,....... monIIonld by the NOC .... hove their -.
twice 0 _ In occcnIanc:o _ DoyIIg" _ T1mo _ .......
oppIk:obl .. Stondo<d...".,.. """"'- on ..... products .- tho 0ItIc0
Hours Pian CCMlIagII:unless ... Customer purchases Supplem .. UI Warranty
~ to _....--Iormojetayotomlalluroo to 24 _ o cloy_
thoWonanty_

(b) __ ...... , me pion ~ the same ""'"'- .. "'" 0ItIc0
HourIS Plan with the IoIIowIng edcitIons or ch8nges: Arol.nd-the-CIo coverage
~ _""'"'- letmojet_.'" _ 0cloy. __ 0_.
HoIldayo ... 1ncI.-. PBX oyatomo _ ....- ....- ClIpOblIlty "" be
monitored from the HOC MVerl days a week, 24 hours. day, lncIudng hoIiday$
_ ..... ccvorogo pion (_ equipment and_maybe ...... rod ~
.... e...tomor).llulIng tho Wonanty _ ~ Wonanty ~
provides the 181M cover8Qe .. the Arol.nd-the-CIo Plan.

(e) VoIoIl 8ervioe PIue Plan: Voice 8ervice Plus coveraoe 18 only h8BabIe on
_ Vorizon PBX and Hybrid oyatomo. me pion ~ the _
""'"'- .. the Arol.nd-the-CIo PIon _ the following __ ... _,

(1) Verlzon will pfOOtidlJ the Cuetomer 8 nn reducIion from Verilon standard___ tor ...... add and _ (MAC) """""Y. __ .... be

stated In the current Voice 8erYice PI..,. maJntent.nce procedurea or in an_tolNo _
(2) Vorizon .... pnl¥Ido ... _-houro 01 and ..... __ (In

hlC,.,lent8 of 2 hours minimum).
(3) Vorizon .... ".....,.two_ayotom ..... __ (__

equipment may be required from 1he Customer).
(4) V...... will pnl¥Ido quo_ c.-- ayotompooformonc:o.-s .
(5) Vorizon will ".....,. ayotomoJ""" _ and _ng.
(6) Vorizon "" ".....,. e...tomer d......, IOCO\IOr)' __ •
(7) Vorizon pnl¥Ido dolly CuoIomer ayotomhooIlh __
(8) V.... on _ tell haud lIUMlIIIanco (__ ...,. be

required from the Cuetomer,.. Toll fraud aurveIIIance Is the deIdon of •
susp!dous C8f1{a)bued upon • Customel-delh l8d HI of parameters and
notification to the CuI&omer. 1hla Is NOT Toll Fraud Prewntion.

(9) Vertzon will prcMde hacker .lOIIflcdon (additional equipment may be required
from the CU8tomer). Hacker nodftCl1lon II....deteCtion Of • specified l'UTlber
of ~ Mternpta to IICC88S the System from I IirVe 1OUfCI,
ImmediIte canceHItion of lUbsequent acceu attempts: from that source, 8I'ld
notifIcatlon to the et..tomer.

(eI) ~ Lobar ....., Conbw:l lJlbcr PIon ~ 0 _ Vorizon
tchnIc:Ian on the Cuatomef' lite for • epecIfted period of time. Days and tIme8i
are apec:lfIed In tin d8chilellt VeNcIe and tooII are lncIudId In the blI8e labor_. Ropol<.-.....-- IanogolIotod_.

7. MAINTENANCE FOR DATA AND VIDEO EQUIPMENT:(e) All Dole _ ........ _ PIono __ : T-.one _,
_la __ pIon __ .... NDC and. whon_
__ by Vorizon. _ V...-. __ Vander _ updoIoo and

.... are diItrfbuted from the HOC. Software updaIa. version ...... and
maintenance ,.... provided to Verizon from VerIzon'a vendors at no
ackitIONI cost are pnMded to Verizon', CUIltOmet'8 It no 8ddIIfonIlI coat.
AddItIonal charges ~ for other reIeasea and r8\Ileions. Hardware LC»Ql'8des
naeM8aIY to support new software are not Included and muet be purchased by
the Customer.

(b) All Video 0Ilta ServIce Plue IIaInWnInce "*" IncifoIde: MlCM8 to I Vertzon
help _ during pion ..... to __ .... _ quoeIlcre.

(e) Qn.4IItoOfllc:o __ ~and __ "'-:

These plana provide V8l1zM customers with an altematlve to • fJJHIme technical
otoft. Thooo pIono Include'
(1) The On-Slte 0fIk:e Hours and Video 00-SIle Plana provide labor and material_ ~ lor _ -.rayotom _loHuroo _ Ofllco

HO\H$.
(2) Tho Qn.SIto Arol.nd-the-CIo PIon __ tho 0fIIc0 HounI ""'"'-

_ In .... procodIngoubaoction. pi.. _ end ......... _
""'"'- formaj<V"_ and'or "'_.cloy.
seven days • week. HoIidaya .." included.

(3) V...... _ """Y _ to pnMdo ropalr_ by tho .... _ cloy.
(d) Till U.. ntilllolftCt ..... VIdIo T...... llbi .. ance Plane: Theee plans provide

CUItomer aupport by telephone for thoee e:t.IIlornenS who t...,. their own ttaff to___ . Thooo pIono Indudo:
(1) Tho NOC ..... phone __ CuslomoI'o 8\bloct matter __ and olio ..--(2) WhIn pert repI-=ement Ie: neceesary. Vertzon cont8d8 the approprtate

vendor and orders repI-=ement perta for fastest deIiYely to the Customer'a
lite. Verizon makes wary dort to proo.ridlI repI8cement parts by the next
buaIneaa day. Customer mtJIt retum the replaced part to the vendor within
ten days or CUsIomer will be billed tor the part.
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a REPAIR RESPONSE: ResponM Is -.:Iux:wted;:I*lt of. probIl!Im and work towatd.. -...on. _ .... or ......... "'folIowIng:...- __ , __
COI'lIdIatIon. remott WOl1I: 10 ClClfTWCI • pIObIem with noOcatIon 10 Customer IhIIt on-tfte

,..." _10 _, or~'" ~.) 1Oe.-nen __ . Tho typo ...
~_ ':replIIr reIPOI'* wII depend on ~. equipment and ........ remote
> COia-=tiol .. FIeiIpcqe Iime& .... deIeo'lihPld by ~ the 8yIIem ,..... •.... "'*" failure or a minor laIIure. MIjor end minor t.Iltna aNI the oriy caIegories___ formlljor_ wllI.. :

(0) Two hou .. for..- _ .......
(b) Four_for_orYkleo_ .......

• IU.IOMIINOR SVlITE1l FAILURE> Vorizon wllI_ 10 ...... _ .......""'*' ... limo apoc:ltlecl .. thopnlCOdng ....... (Part II, _ 8), _ 10
~ of the JMcted Maintenance Plan. A maIor SyaIem 1aI:I," Is one or l"/'lON
...thofollowing:
(.) ToIaI_ 10 origl_"- __ communlcaIiona.
(b) Tolal _ 10 _ io"«lrnlng"- __ comm_.
(e)ToIaI_ 10 _..- __ comm__ tho_.

(d) ToIaIlnablllty10_tho ..... _ Ykleo_'" -.. Ykleo
conletenclng.

(.) __ cenacI. and/ornight _ poolticn laIIunt.
(I) Twny percent (20%) or more ol tn.w*8 out of eeMce.
(g) T__ (20%) or mora"'''''''''' andIorporta ...... -'ca.
(h) __ caD acccundng __ .......
(I) ""r _ uaIIy _10 .. writing by e.-ner and Vorizon.

ArNnor_IalI IoItlY __ ...... ormolllR:llcn.Vorizonwil_
IOrNnor In .... (1) .... M88day ... -.. .... _ for_.
V....... will ......... than ",.....o!ng _ for repair ... rNnor _ fa..... thate.-ner_ ..__ .....da ... Off... Houla.

10. EXCLUSIONS: WIITaI'Ity ... Mairdenance SeMces do not Include:
(0) AddIIlona, "","-, _ -. cparaIlng auppIloa or-'"(b) _,_ ... , .... _and .. ~_

In .... _and_.
(c) ServIceIi i C I '1IteJ by ac:ddent. cuuaIty. ~ mlell",1ntentIoneI 8Cl& or

~ cawe OCher thin normal use of the SysI8m.
(<I) Repalra or rwpIecemellta neoeuitated by IghCnIng. radio frequency i1..... ICe,

power diIIurbence8. lire, flood. _l1hqu8ke, exceeeIWI mofatute or MY went
oo:cunIng _10 tho_ dI_ ork>dl_ ...... maIfunctlcn
.. lha _, • _ 10 _ lha _ 10connacted. or In
__ "- .. bla or __ ccnnecIlng tho_ 10tho.... "--_.

(e) SeMceI..,. 'Iated by use of the sv-m wIh ant other device or aystem not
IlJPPIied or approved IS to tueh combined use by Verizon. or use or any part
of the System In 8 manner not apedtIed by VeriZon.r\ (I)_or-or-ln---_-
Customer'. talttn to provldt • ~ environment for 1he System or any other
......... Cu&tcmor 10parIorm" _tea.

(g) Rapal,or_ ...Cuatomer __ plant_ ...._apaclflcaIly
_ an thoEqulpmant lleacriptlon ....

(h) Loss or t8COY8fY of Custom.r data. (Customer iI responsible tor providing__ ....... __ for __ 10_ ..... -.)

(J) Upgrmes. enhailC8lil8l1l8 or new releases of IIOIIware or fIn'nware, except u__ ...... _ and_.

11. 8YSTEII OPERA11ON: Customer operata the $yfHm In the manner
_byV ....... andIorlha_ and_not_tho_
10 ItIY __ lha prior __ coneant'" V e.--_ pay for-,,"
7 "'.-f br' unauthofIzed .....-.uon Illld such Meratkln may voIcIlhe wananIy endf()(
cauee Verizon to termInIte MaitItel .. 'ICe se.w:-. DurIng the period Verlzon provides
....... 108 SeNIcrM. Verizon may InItaII new or updated IIOftwate 10 rnairUIn a_ .......... __ ....... IOCua1omar_lIIanfor _

CIlPCtv. hardware and InetaIIatIon. Customer may U88 adtItIonaIleatl.Ir-. oIlI.ICh newor updaIad -.. for ............ oIlha oppllcabla

fee tor auch use.
12. 8YSTEM CHANGES AND RELOCATIONS: Customer ahaII not mcwe the SyItem
ewtlc:I*'Ig ~ or map System COl1IpOl"'. wtlhout the prior Wl1tIen coneent of
V8ltzon, which coneent shell not be withheld wveuonabIy, but may be condIdoned
.., modflcalkln 01 the termI of wanantIee .-ld MalnterwlCe 5eMces to reIecl:dwlgadd_ and Iccallan.• _, or __
_ ... lha _10 a oIllaranl_ add_, V may mcdIfy"_or _ lha --.. sa_"..,.,-_ lha unuaad_ ... prapald_sa __ .._

PART II - GENERAL 'JERIIS AND CONDITIONS
•• AIlIITIONALPURCHASallullnglhapariod .... _loln_, IOIncIuda
-.. T_ for ........... -. Cu&tcmor may ordar __ aqulpmant
and .......as ptnuanl to purchue ordetI or IImIIar doNnenl:a thai refetence this~ and that are accaptad by Vorizon.Such ..
__ by .... ..- _ by C_ and accaptad by
Vadmn ano__ 10 _ gocda and _ orda<ad. ""r pnwlolona

contained In ttw Customer", puroha:ae order Of other aimiIar doctment thm wOOd add
to, ..... orvaryV.rizon'. obligations tit r1ghIa an»r1Na Agreement.,. hlIreby rejected
and IhaII not becorI-. part 01.... trwvsactIon wllhoUl Verizon', speclfIc wrttMn coneent.

~ PllCE AND PAVIIEHT TEAMS:
, • (0) UnIea8 _owloa ...... , pricaa Includa dallvary 10... _ add_. IIC....

tomer and V.1Izon agree on any change to IN 8yIUm before the tn-SeMce
OllIe. Verizon wHI adjust the total purohue price and InetaIation dale IlCCOl'd-
Ingly.

(b) Cuetomet .... pay all applicable .... UN tit 4tXciM taxes on IN same 1erma.. 10.... _
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(e) n.down PIl)'I'net\lIhall.t 0,,,,,,,the IIigned ._ •• It. P~.) of the
__ .. ..- __ byVorizon._.radua_-..
... _ and ano..._ .. _ dua 30 daya ... __ • Cua10mar
.... pay IrtIeNIt on any _ due bIIIIlnce at 1.5% pet' month (not to exceed
lha __ aIowad - ..... Iaw).1I1t1Y_ for",,"*- ... tho
System Ie not rec:eiwd within .cs ca.ye 01 ... InYolce date. V.rizon mey remove
lha SyoI.- and _ .. _1agaI ramadIao. If paymant for_ ......
SaMcaalanot'- _ 45 daya oIlha __ V....... may..-
_ _and __ lha_.

(d) If Cua10mar -. ~ bofora 1"'- Data,_
......... writing and Cua10mar _ pay V •• _ .... __ 01
the System, InetaIIetion Md removal at Verlzon's 1hen eunent rates pli.- •
_ ....... ""5%"'tho __ .VarlzcnwllI_ltIY_
I'8C8fved from Customer 10 theM chargel and wfI refund any balance. If a
deficiency reeutIs. Varlzon wiD invoice the CUItomer, and Customer shall pey
..... daIic:Iancy _ 45 daya oIlha _ dale.

(a) If Customer inlInce8 this pulChBH, Verizon wlII refund III'I'll:UrtS paid by Cuskr
mar upon N08IpIof paymenlin full from the third party 1eaor0f' lander. Ct.«omer
may -!Pl" righOa and cllligaIlonos...- .... _10."", 08'\)' laser
Of lander a:c:eptabie to Verizon Of' may cause the third party Ieesor or ..., to
It8ue a purchue order In a form aoceptabfe to Verlzon. Notwithstanding such
-'IInm ... or ..... 08'\)' """*- ordar. Cuatomer _ hava ... right 10
noroe Verizon'. obligations and will Rmain iMpOiI8lble for perfotmance of
~.clIIlgaIlcna ..... , .... _1nd_poymarO forlha SyoI.-.

(~ partll,_a,lha ........ __ wlIl..- ....
_ ...-aItanna unteaa ......... bye- __
(30) daya __ or unteaa __ by Varlzcn at lha and ......
oppllcabla ..... upon."'" (llO) daya"""" _ prior 10lha and ... thotann.
Vertzon may change the Maintenance SeMces pricee for a renewal ttwrn by_ Cuatomer __ noIJca ... lha __ at _ abdy (llO)

daya priorlOlha and ... lha ............ taom. 6uch __ pricaa bacorna_
at the beginning of the ntn8W8I term, without additional am8lldrnent 10 this
Aa-

3. SOFTWAAELICI5NSE: SoIIwano"..,.,-ln__ tho_lo_
10CuaIOmor ..-Iha__ "..,.,- by tho-.. .....- or _ man-
u«acturer. CuItorner fnlIY be NqUirWld to extK:uIe. aeparate IOftware IicerM agreement
fumiehed br' the lIOftware pt'OV6dar or equipment manufcturer.
4. RISK OF LOSS: RIsk of Io8s or c:JltrMge 10 the System that Is not ceused by Vertzon
passas to Customer on delivery to the Sy8tem address If Vertzon in8taIIs the System
or upon deftvery to the carrier or pickup by Custom ... if Vertzon does not inslaIL
.. mLE AND SECURITY INTEREST: Until the fIjI payrnMI has been made, Customer
gJan1I Verlzon a pun:hase money security Interaet in the SyIlem, ag to exacute all
ooa.mantanacaaaatYlO and,tolha -.. by law, grants
VeriZon a spedet power-of-dOmey tor .... putp088 of executing Mid documents. Upon
fInai payment, We pa8$8lI to Customer and Verizon will ,.... Its security Interest .
e. WARRANTIES:

(0) IIVarlzcndcaa not_ ... _, ..... warrantIaa as may .. P_ by
the manutacturenl Of' Varizon's ltIppIIers shaI be the lOIe and exclusive
warranties for the System. except as prcMded In (e) below. In such CU8I.
Cuatomrer Is responsible tor nmnnIng delectIYe equipment and parts to the
manufacturar.

(b) _ V....... _lha _, _as"..,.,- bylha_ or
aupplla .. _ to'" _ for ... Warranty Pariod _ "lha ~
DeecrIption, Met Vwan also warrants tor Iha WarTWIty P..-kId hit the
Inttdation work of Vertzon will be free from detec:ta In rnateitaf and WOi Iu•• wNp.

(c) V.i1zon ..,..nta that good Utle to the System win be conveyed to Customerupon""......-
(d) ..,.. _ do not.... """-IO ormaIfunctlcn"'lha _ .......

10 _ or .. part by Cua10mar or !hi" pal1laa -.ogh usa
...thoSyoI.- orcauaad by ...... _ to tho_.

(a) Customer's sole and -=lU8ive remedy tor bre8:h of Verizon·. warr1lf1ISM ahaII
be limited to repair or ntpIaoernent, III Verlzon's option, of any dltfec:tNe part tit
ln8taBaIIon wo!t(, provided that Ver\zon shaJI have no liability unIMs CuItomer
_ ... V............... noIJca _tho Wa"""'Y Pariod ... tho....... daIacI.

me WARRANTES STAlED .. 1HS 8ECTIOH ARE IN LEU Of ALL OTHER
WARAAN11ES FAOII YERIZON. EXPRESS OR IIPLED, N:LUDING, BUT NOT UllfTED
TO. THE IllPUED WARRAN11ES Of IlEACHAHTABlUTY AND Fn'NESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. VERIZON MAKES NO WARRAH1'Y fOR USE OF TIE 8YS'I'EU
AS A COMPONENT .. UFE IUPPORT DEVICES OR SYSTEIIS. YERtZON IlAKB NO
WARRAN1'Y WITH RESPECf TO THE PERPORIIANCE OF Nff SOFTWAfE OR_AIlE.
7. LMfATION OF LIA8IUTY: UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL VERtZON, rrs
SUPPLIERS OR SUIICONTRACTORS BE UABLE FOR INCIDENTAL, INDRECT.
CONSEQUEN'TlAL OR SPECIAL DAllAGES,. WHE'nEA ARtSING .. CONTRACT, TORT
OR OTHERWISE, NOTWITHSTANDING 1lEIfI FORESEEA8U1'Y OR DISClOSURE BY
CUSTOMER TO VERIZON, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LMTED TO. DAMAGES ARISING
FROM DELAY. LOSS OF DATA. PFIOPITSOR GOODWIlL EXCEPT wmt ReSPeCT TO
THE INDEIINIflCA11DNS SET OUT .. PART ., SEC110N I, VERIZON'S LlABIUT'Y,
WHETHER tNCOHTRACT, TORT OR 0'T1tERWJ:SE" SHALL NOT EXCEEDTHE PURCHASE
PRICE FOR THE SY$TDL VERIZON IttALL BEAR NO LiABIlITY POR USE OF
EQUlPlEHT OR 8ERVlCES PROVI:IED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT .. CONNECTION
WITH UfE SUPPORT SY8TEIIS OR DEVICES. IN ADDITION, VERIZON SHALL HAVE HI)
UABIUTY OR AESPONSIIIUTY FOR IN'I"EftOPERAB OR COMPATIBILITY OF niE
SYSTEM WlTHnIIlD-PARTY PRODUCrS OR SYSTEMSntAT CUSTOMER MAY UTILIZE
IN CONJUNC11ON WITH THE SYSTEII OR TO WHICH CUSTOUER MAY CONNECf niE
SY8TEII. VERIZON IIA Y FROM TlIII; TO TIllE PROVIDE ADVICE, MAKE
RECOIIIENDATIONS OR SUPPLY OTHER ANALYSIS RELATED TO nE SYSTBI,
EQUIPIIENT AND 8EfMCIS DESCRIBED IN 'TMS AGREEMENT, AND CUSTOMER
ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THATTtIS UMfTAT10N OF UABIUTY SHALL APPLY
10 PRO\IJSIOH OF SUCH ADWCE, RECOIIIIENDATIOHS AND ANAL.YSI$.
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.. INDEI'NIFICATION:
(0) &bjocl IDtho _ lInd -.plIono .- in .... lIOCIlon, vollzon wII

_ end _ e.-- ogoinIIoo much of "" _, IUlt, _ or
.._og ("CI&m1oIIoging IhoIthosv-n in thotorm __ 10e.-ne,
Infmge& • veid U.s. paIent or copyright, .nd Verlzon -ore- to pay 11ft
nil: ... IIt$g8tIon Md ..atement COItI -'If attorneYs ... Incurred by
CuIIomIr In COtd ! ctic i with Inf..::h a.Irn. " .... UIe of .. Syetem Ie: ~
or 1hrMtened by • CIIim .. dIecttbed Ilbow:. Verizon may. III Its opdon rd
_, ....... fclr CuoIOmer thollghllO.. thosv-n, ...,....tho sv-n
or I'IIIevant conlpOiwn wfth ., equ/vIIent. norHnIrIngIng 8yItem or COinpcli iii 4,
modify the System or relevant OJiiipOlW1lIO .. 11becotMI nQll-klfrillgiilQ, or
_tho sv-n lInd_tho.- ..... , _ doprodalIon baed on
• flve-year snIght-fine bMis c:ommIIlCiIlQ on .. In--Servk:e Date. Verlzon ahaIl
hive no obligation lot any C08IS. feel or expenIt8lncun'ed by e..tomer without
Verizon'l prior wriIIen c:onlt8I1t, any Qalm artsIng out ot-muslc on hold" or eImIlar__ ,"'''''IndI....._oI.~''' no ...
of "" Claim.Tho _ wII ... _ ...... C_ (1)W- _en
noIIco 10V"""," -.. 15 days" recolpt .. __ of "" ouchCloIm lIndsholl
lntorm Vollzonin_ .. ""_- _-.(2) fully __ with VollzonIntho_ oIlho CloIm, ond(3) p_
Verizon with information and usistInc:e In defendlng the C&Un. Verilon shall
..... sole c:ontroI of the deIen8e of the OaIm and of an ~ for Its
""""''''_' not_ID""CloIm. ",porIIon
1her8of. IhlIt adIes from any negligent or wIIfIA IlCI or omiaion by or attributIbIeIDe-" ... "'...-,ofthosv-nin _

or programming of others, or any adcfil\on 10 or modIfIcatlon of the System, Of
YH 01 OCher than the currerd unIItet'ed ........ of any IOftwate UIed In the
_. ThoforogoIng tho__ .. VetlzonIDe.--,ond
Is Cuotomoo'. _ lInd ....-dy, with _ .. "" CloIm 01
1f1frillg8f'1811 of wry InteIIecluaI property right of any kind. and Verizon c:IseIaIms
.. _.......-lInd _ with _ lOfllftouch CIolms.

(1)) V"""," wII defend ond_ CuoIOmer _ "" _, IUlt, _ 0'
.. fog_ ... of _ ...... , _",_to 1OIVIlle.- lO
......... _ ........ by tho nsgllgencs or ....... misconduct of
VerIzOn'a employees or egentI In perfornq 88fVIceI under thII Agreemert.
_ indomnIIy _ ... -.. to fIIft porIIon .. tho ...... , _ '" _
CIlIJIed by either .... tole Of conlritIuting ~a of CUSlOr'nerorthird parties.
Verizon'8 obligation wIIh reepect to damage to .... Sv-tem Is Hmited to repelr or
-. .. Vetlzon'.option. 01 tho__ lIems.

.. COIIPUANCE WITH LAW:
(0) Tho_ ..... 0DmjlIy with opplIcobIe laws, '"""'""""" lInd_ with_to'_lholrobl_und." ...._ Tho_fica ond

Nql.inwnentl of the System, its price end InsId8IIon are baud on compiIanc:e
with oppllcoblo laws, ~ lInd__ In._ ontho_tho .....
Isq.- 10e.-ne•."__ lOoppllcoblo laws, regtAa .....
or ordinances result In • change to Verizon', COlIt8., Verizon may e4uet the price.

(1)) __ '" _ on the uport 01 the _ may .. Imposed by
Verizon'slNJlPllena or by the U.S. OO'l"iMil_iL If ~ expclftIlnY part of
the Sy8tem, Customerehall, in Its own name. 8ppIy lor any required U.S. export
_ lInd_1uI _tv lor compIlonce with .. U.S. lIndlOoolgn
country .... appIIcabte to the export of the equipment trom the United States
ond_InIo_ ...........

to.llESPllN8IllII. I'0Il TELECOIIMUNlCA11ONS CHAIlOES: The SysIOm Is
~ to be CCIf'Il'1lICted to the pIA:IIIc IWitched telephone network. CuIlom.r 18 80klfy•__ fclr -. ........ ,.. -., ond _ .. socurIty __ lor
__ ogoinII_1ong _ col1Ing. e-Is _""",-Ior
""",,"Iong _, ... lInd_ telecomm __ Incumod throUltl
.... theSyotam.
tt.1lAZAIlDOUS_ANCES, E>o:opt __ 10ond_in_
by Vertzon, CuItonw certiIeI bt It " not ...,. of the pNMnCIII of any ube8Ioe or_ _ (__ by "" oppllcoblo __ '" Ioc:al

hIDrdouI or emtronmrentallaw or ntgUatJon) at InY tocatIon where V.rt2on ki:
ID psrfonn __ ..- .... Aa- If durl!'G ouch .... ormonco Vetlzon
•• fIIo .... or agent& er'lC:OUnt« any such eubstance. CUIIOmer IIgr8e8 to take aD
nec:reuary .. , III .. own upenM, to remow or cornaln .. asbMtoI or other
hIzIrdouI eubslwlct WId to .. the prernillel to ensure that expo8l.Ii'e doeI not UCHd
lis _ .......... Ilmlt lor the .......... of _. V._ may _
.. too, .... undet thII AgreetnerC undI the NI'tlCMII or cont8iIlTlII1I hat been completed
lInd ~ by tho ... lInd V"' Performence
-...- .... __ .. -.ctlorthodol"Y by ... dclNnup
or iIImOV8I. et.tomer'. IaiIUfe to NmOW Of c:oncain hRaldoul ~betancee ehaII .,uate
Verizon to terminate this AgrMment wtlhout furtIwr liability. " Vertzon 10 temIinateB,e.-ner _ .......Vtor\zon.. _ "" oq_ IhoI notboon """"Pled,
__ Vetlzonfclr __ Incumod in ~ _ ""'I",,"Iioo, (lncIuding __ .. romoYlng _ent), ond payment
for In1 portion of the System that hu been aceepIed; n Veltzon &half i8fund toe.-ner fIIft -.. ........ fclrOlo _" lhosv-n ...... __ ad, end
...... mund tM ~ portion of *"'Y ~ ~~.

12. DELAYED PERFORMANCE: If performance W'lder tNa Agreement ls Inlertered with
by ...... God, _, ..... smbs<go, ...... tho0........... in lis oowtelgn c:apscIty,...... dIfIIa.ltlos, __ .. _or , __

byCuoIOmer, or "" _ d_ beyond tho .....",.".. ....... lInd without_tho _ .. tho__ ouch_, upon gMng ....... noIIos IDtho_ pa"",

f '.... be excuMd ftom lue:h performance on a day.to-day basis to the extent of auch
" 1nIerfel_ .. (and the ather pu1y IhllII MkewIa be excuead from Its perfotmance),

pnMdad that the party so afteded ehaII use reasonable efforts to remove aoch C8.l.IM6
01 iiiOilp800l'rnanoe and both __ shaH proceed whenever IUCh caueea are removed
Of cease. " performance of eitheI' party Ia preventecI or delayed by dn:umltanceS as
_In ............ fclr mora then _ (00) dayo, oIlho' _ may -. this

,.....,
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Agi ..... ll " .. AQi II: aotermlnllled, CuItomerthall pennIt Vertzon to remove
"" _ IhoI not _ IOCOSptlId. ............... Vollzonfclr ___1n_ Ago ........... _(lncludlng __ ofromoYlng
_, lInd_ compIoIe payment fclr "" porIIon .. tho_ IhoI.... _
""""Pled; lIndvtor\zon__ 10 e- "" -. ........ lor thosv-n "
the System .... not_1OCOSptlId.lInd__ tho........ct porIIon of fIIft""'"-_.
13. DEFAULT: II either party IaiIs 10 perform Brf'i material obHgation t.nder this
Agreement or ..... My material term Of concitIon of thls Agreement, and -.ch failure
or vioIadon Ie not cured wtthIn 30 days IoIIowlng recalpt 01 • written notice of default
from the Oltw party, then the other party IlheII have the right to lanninate this Agreement
upon ~ notice to the defaulting plIrty •

14. RESOLtmON OF DISPUTES:
(a) The parties desire 10 resotYe dlspute& arising out of lhI8 Agreement without

_. _. _lor lICIIon -..a'18lnpOnVy ~-..
Of Ir1W'1d1on related 10 the purposes 01 tt'lit Agreement, or suit to compel
compIlonce with this dispute utlon ........ tho __ lOuse theloIIowlng __ uIion __ lholr_ remedy _

respect to any 00i'It10Yer8y or ctalm arising out of or feIating to this Agreement
or Its brMch .

(b) '" tho_ ""' .... of. _, ..... _ .... _0 __ .
.......-..........., .. to.-lInd _in __ 10"- fIIft
__ ..- ....Aa- Tho_lntendlhol_~
be c:cnducted by non-Iawyer, bl8nesl .~ The location, format,
floquency, ........ ond conduoIon of _ loft lO the
_ 01 the -. Upon -. tho...- m.y
utiIze other alternattve cU8pute i1t8OfutIon procedures such .. meclatlon to aaMt
in the nagotIat\ons. Di9cuaeIons and .............,a_a among the...-
tor purpoees of these negoIiationI IhaII be 1rNted .. confIdenUaI infonnaIton
_fclr ........ of --.ond_,
which IhaII not be admissible In the arbilndion deecrI:led below Of' In any lawsuit
without the c:oncurrence of an parties. DocumanCa idenItfIed in or provided with
lOCh communications, which .,. not PfI'P8l'8d for purpoeee of the negotiations,
are not eo exempted and may, If Olherwl8a ~., be admltled In evidence
in the arbitration or lawsuit.

(e) "the _ Isnot_ ..-the _ -.... wlthln 60 days 01
tho lnMoI_ noIIco, thodlspUlo _ .. lllbmIItod 10 binding -.;0" by
• IIngIs.-. EJIher _ may __ -.;0" by ._Iog _
nodce to the AmerIcan AtbItnltIon Aesoeiation, with • copy to the other party.
Thodispute ..... _ .. .- oocordng" tho"'-icon Mllt_
AsaocIatlon's CommarcIaI ArbItration RuIa8, with the IoIIowing modfications: (1)
the llI'bitration shall be held in the city where 1Na AgNemant was executed byVetlzon;(2) tho_tor _ .. _ ID,-Iow lIndohoIl _y
..... fclrms' J- _ (3) tho _ ..... _tho-.;o"
.. if It were a bench trlat and shall use, apply and enforce the Fadel'llf Rules of
CivIl Procedure; (4) the arbitrator shaiI have no power or authority 10 make any
award that provides Ior~, ~, 1rdNtCt, punlIve or exemplary
__ ; (5) the ._ sholl contnlIthe_ so IhoIthe .......... Is
__ no _ """,120 days _tho _ .. _Ior-.;o,,; (6)
the arbitrator shall 1'\11. on the dispute by Issuing • written d«:I8kln within 30
days alter the dose of the hearing; and (7) the arbItnllor's decision IhaII follow
thepIoln mMnIng" this _ end the........ -........ J_ on
the _rei _ by tho __ may .. _ Inony co"" _no
jurtIdIctIon cwar the parties •

(eI) Eacl> """" _ boar Its own coetll of _ -. A _ -..a
<llsccwsry __ thorospondlng _tho coollI .. _ 01 docu-
..- (1OIncIuds......, tim. lInd~ coollI). The __ -.
.... the'- of tho-.;0" lIndthe_ .

ts.IIlSCEt.LANEOUS:
(a) No action or demand for atbltration a"sAng out of thII AgrearnenI may be btougtlt

by • party more than 2 years after the cause of action has accrued. The parties
_thellghltolnvokofllft __ onthe_oI...-..-
8l8te law .

(b) Vetlzonmay _ thls _ant -'ut _, but e.-- may ...
U8Ign this Agreement wkhout Verizon's written consent, which shall not unrea-
lonIlbIy be wlthheId.

(e) Ellhal' party's I.IIUN 10 enforce any of the pnMsions of this Agreement. Of to
_ fIIft riIt< 0< option Is.... _ of ony ouch_llghl or option,
and IhaI not affect the vailcity of thIa Agreement

(eI) Noficas_ked by .... __ "in_lInd_ "_byo
method which obtains a written recefpt. NotIces eha/I be eant to the addrese
...... on lho front 01 tN. _ until ouch_ Is_ by_

noIIco.
(0) __ antIsto .. govomod lIndoonstruod ~no lOthe.. _

law or the state in which this Agreement is aocepted by Verizon.
(Q Ant provlolon 01 this Ago ....... prot;bI1od by opplIcobIe low _ .. _

-... ......_ tho _ Jl'O'Ifolono 01 .... _ ..- tho

_lntentol .... _""""" .. _
(g) Tho........ _in _ ... Ior_ crlyllnd _ not

.. oonoIdsrod In Its into on.
(h)No__ 0Il- __ ,modlfy"'_rgo .... -.

in -. '" in pa'" _ouch 0Il- IsinWIltinoondoIgnod by tho_ogoinIIwhom _ 01 the_. modIIIcotlon or __ Isoought.

(I) ThIs Agraement, including 8It8chment8, c:onsdtuIaa the entire ~ent of the
partieI pertaining to ... llA:Jfed matter herein and super$8de8 aB pt'lor agree-
ments, neQOtiations and ~ whether written Of oral, concemIng
such IUbIed matter. No repreeentatIons 01' warranties, axpte88 or knpIied, haw
bean made Of reIIecI upon In the making of thls Agreement other than those
_Iy oontolnsd in tN. Aa-.

Contract No.: _



06/04/2002 Page 307

AGENDA ITEM 26

Discuss and take appropriate action on bids received for bridge replacement on CR 390, 406, and 427.

Bids were received from the following:
Bland/Schroeder/Archer, L.P., Austin, Texas
Dayco Construction Co.,Austin, Texas
Capital Excavation Co.,Austin, Texas
Ellis-McGinnis Construction Co., Ennis, Texas
FTWOODS Construction Services, Inc., Georgetown, Texas

Moved: Commissioner Limmer
Seconded: Commissioner Hays
Motion: To award bid for bridge replacement on CR 390, 406 and 427 to Ellis-McGinnis Construction
Company, as recommended by Project Manager George Tillett ofHDR Engineering.
Vote: 5-0

< Attachment>


